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Definitions

B=

"AUD"
&)

“"Board”
=3

“China” or "PRC"

[ B

“Company”,
“Greentown Service Group”
or “our Company”

[RA] - TR | 3k [ AR A

"Director(s)”

[E=%]

nou "non

“Group”, "our Group”,

" nou

we", "us”, or "our”

[ERE ] A% ] [ #A)

"GFA"
[EE

"Hong Kong”
(&%)

"HKS"
75t

“Reporting Period”or “Period”

[mEMA] - [#A)

IllRII
(B H AR

the Group”,

Australian dollar, the lawful currency of Australia

BT BAREREEER

the board of Directors of our Company

ARREEE

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report
and for geographic reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan

REARKNE  ERAFEREMEER2EME - TRETE - RFIR

Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (£ W R B S B B R A @& ), an
exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 24 November 2014

BRI EBEERAA - —MK 2014 £ 11 A 24 BRAERSIMAT
WEHRRER AR

the director(s) of our Company
AARIES

our Company and its subsidiary(ies) from time to time or where the context
so requires, in respect of the period before our Company became the
holding company of our present subsidiaries, the business operated by
such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRBREPKOMBAR > MEXERT AR RKABREMEB LR
IR AR A M - EREWNBRRAREFF AR (RFBERTE) KL
SOE

gross floor area

EEmE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRRTTRER

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREEER

the twelve months ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIE+ @A

Investor Relationship

REERBRE

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Definitions

e

“Listing”
[

“Listing Date”

[ LB

"Prospectus”

[HEkRE]

“"RMB" or “Renminbi” or “Renminbi Yuan”

[ARE]

“Shareholder(s)"”
[A& =]

“Shares”
AR ]

”Sq m.”

BT

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 2P

"US$"” or "USD"
=S

IIY/YII
(Rt ]

u%u

Bt

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRABIRAD B S PAEIR £ TR

12 July 2016, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings in
the Shares are permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

201657 A12R - BIRORERA L AUEEEEN B S

million
Er-

the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2016
ARARBER2016F 6 A28 BBRE

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of China

ARETT - PEAEE

shareholder(s) of the Company
PN/NGT 3

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.00001 each in the share capital of
the Company
AN R R B AXTE (B 0.00001 B 7T 2 & ik

square meter

FHK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERSHMABERAF

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America
E50 0 ZEMETEE

year-on-year

FIEIN

percent

Bk
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Company Overview

NEEE

AR B B ARSI R ARG
BEGEANZLERGRERFEERNEEREN -
RHMZ Tl - BAR 2R REHORY - 8
EMERS - R RS & ERRS =8RG
BESEPRHEEREZNERLRBAS
MRERP  EXIREPTHELOHAEEME
EERE  RAERZMEREERGHERT
BT o P BEEA Rk (PR —KEX
B F = FHENTTEIE) B e 2020
B R RIS BB RMTRREME L B
BRERTEMERGERREERLELES

Organization in China), we once again won the first place of “China’s —% »

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide, and is
based on owners’ full range of life scene and the entire life cycle of real
estate, and provide a wide range of services that are strongly
associated with life, which contains property service, community living
service and consulting service. We differentiate ourselves from other
property management service providers by providing our residents
with access to a broad products and services portfolio that addresses
the evolving everyday and life-style needs of our customers, property
owners and residents. In the “2020 China Property Service Top 100
Enterprises Research Results Conference” organized by China Index
Academy (a professional independent third-party Real Estate Research

8

top 100 leading enterprises in terms of Property Service Satisfaction”.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES PORTFOLIO

J Property services. We provide a range of high quality property
management services, such as security, cleaning, gardening, and
repair and maintenance services, which we refer to collectively as
“standard” property management services, and charge the
residents and owners of our managed properties or real estate
developers management fees for such services. As at 31
December 2020, we managed properties located in 187 cities
across 30 provinces, direct-controlled municipalities and
autonomous regions across China with a total contracted GFA
under management of 250.5 million sq m. which covers high-end
residential, government public construction, commercial office
buildings, urban complex.

J Consulting services. We offer consulting services to real estate
developers and local property management companies to
address various needs that arise during each major stage
throughout the course of their property development projects,
capitalizing on our brand equity and expertise. For example, we
provide real estate developers with project planning, design
management, construction management and marketing
management consulting services during the design and
development stages and display unit management services to
facilitate sales of their developed projects. We also provide
management consulting services with respect to delivered
properties to real estate developers and property management
companies.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Company Overview

NEHE

Community living services. Based on the needs of the owners’ full
range of life scene, we provide property owners and residents of
our managed communities with access to an extensive array of
daily necessities complemented by a wide assortment of life-style
products and services through a variety of channels. Our services
under this segment include community products and services,
home living services, community space services, property asset
management services, cultural & education services. As the
needs of our owners and residents for better living have been
evolving, on the basis of innovation and promotion of traditional
service, we will continue to use the mobile Internet and the smart
Community portal, offer a wider range of services and products
to satisfy the customers, and combine online and offline service,
to broaden and accelerate the flow of life services.

B@RS - RAEREINEZEFEE
LRENFR BRZBRREANBRMAEE
AROXEREFPEHSERTLEY
FmMEEMELEERMRYE - BE
R B EERERLRE - RELER
B EREERYE NMEEEETER
B XEHERY - BEXINEER
FHMEEMITENEERE  &EE
BT EREERBOER L -
MEEEERBEHEMRPEETSHEA
A #RE SRR 4R 5 & A AR 75 A E m 2R
MREP BRLETHANIA A
BAMIEAERIBREZER o
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

BE12B3MBLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTE AR®BTR
Revenue WA 3,721,993 5,140,059 6,709,906 8,581,932 10,105,646
+/-% 2,58 % 27.5% 38.1% 30.5% 27.9% 17.8%
Gross profit EF| 716,027 946,390 1,197,653 1,547,109 1,922,834
+~% BB % 34.9% 32.2% 26.5% 29.2% 24.3%
Profit for the year FAFE 294,787 392,070 465,734 472,359 740,657
Net profit attributable to equity A FIERRE
shareholders of the Company JE 15 F 285,540 387,483 483,296 477,405 710,414
+/-% 2,58 % 44.3% 35.7% 24.7% -1.2% 48.8%
Earnings per share, FiRERET
(RMB) after listing (AR#®) 0.12 0.14 0.17 0.17 0.23
% of overall revenue L -UON
by service line REK
— Property services — ME RS 70.4% 69.3% 66.5% 63.5% 63.6%
— Community living services — BERH 13.0% 17.5% 19.5% 22.3% 21.5%
— Consulting services — R 16.6% 13.2% 14.0% 14.2% 14.9%
Overall revenue FETL N 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Profitability FlE=E
Gross margin by service line REBEIHERE
— Property services — MERH 10.9% 11.2% 11.4% 11.4% 12.8%
— Community living services — BERH 43.5% 33.5% 25.5% 27.1% 28.2%
— Consulting services — RS 35.5% 36.1% 38.0% 33.6% 32.6%
Gross margin — overall EE— e 19.2% 18.4% 17.8% 18.0% 19.0%
Net profit margin attributable to 722 A5 A% 3R fE(S
equity shareholders JE FUNEES
of the Company 7.7% 7.5% 7.2% 5.6% 7.0%

2020 EHRE SWRIEEEERAA



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

BeHREAEEHBERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT ARETT ARETR

PROFIT OR LOSS B
Revenue — by service line WA — REHK
Property services MER 2,619,927 3,559,644 4,460,669 5,452,031 6,428,756
+/-% =0,/ mL % 25.3% 35.9% 25.3% 22.2% 17.9%
Property under HERYE R
construction services 522,533 572,730 787,735 983,283 1,189,722
+/-% B, % 9.8% 9.6% 37.5% 24.8% 21.0%
% of total revenue of consulting 138 AR AU A
services % 84.5% 84.2% 83.8% 80.8% 79.3%
Management consulting services & 12 & iR 7% 95,503 107,612 151,744 233,867 310,167
+/-% B0,/ "L % 27.6% 12.7% 41.0% 54.1% 32.6%
% of total revenue of consulting 1578 :RFSAKA %
services 15.5% 15.8% 16.2% 19.2% 20.7%
Consulting services B R 618,036 680,342 939,479 1,217,150 1,499,889
+/-% =0,/ mWL % 12.2% 10.1% 38.1% 29.6% 23.2%
Community products and services [& [& = 5 & R % 113,338 186,361 241,914 541,543 807,212
+/-% 2,/ m % 7.9% 64.4% 29.8% 123.9% 49.1%
Home living services ENELC S 64,620 71,075 84,432 116,239 147,241
+/-% i m ) % -55.6% 10.0% 18.8% 37.7% 26.7%
Community space services & Z=fE AR 7% 58,816 121,486 228,654 203,726 194,632
+/-% B0,/ Hd % 123.9% 106.6% 88.2% -10.9% -4.5%
Property asset management MEEETERS
services 236,171 500,986 719,020 859,568 711,076
+-% =i,/ md % 43.5% 112.1% 43.5% 19.5% -17.3%
Cultural & education services ALHE RS 11,085 20,165 35,738 191,675 316,840
+/-% B,/ Hd % - 81.9% 77.2% 436.3% 65.3%
Community living services BEER#% 484,030 900,073 1,309,758 1,912,751 2,177,001
+/-% =0,/ "L % 74.8% 86.0% 45.5% 46.0% 13.8%

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

For the year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTE AR®TR

OPERATING DATA BEYE
Property services LES RS
Total nos of contracts EREAE 809 1,035 1,236 1,454 1,759
+/- o,/ ma 172 226 201 218 305
+/-% o,/ mA % 27.0% 27.9% 19.4% 17.6% 30.0%
Reserved GFAs (m sq m.) REERE(BBEAXK) 119.4 150.0 192.1 2332 284.3
+/- #hnm 30.3 30.6 421 411 51.1
+/-% B, % 34.0% 25.6% 28.1% 21.4% 21.9%
Managed GFAs (m sq m.) EEEBE(BEFAEK) 105.2 137.8 170.4 2124 250.5
+/- oy I 224 325 326 420 38.1
+/-% o,/ md % 27.1% 30.9% 23.7% 24.6% 24.6%
Terminated GFAs (m sq m.) BEER(BBYAK) 2.0 49 11.4 8.4 7.3
+/-% B0 m % -16.7% 145% 132.7% —26.3% -13.1%
% of managed GFAs in the year {FEFHEERE% 1.9% 4.6% 6.7% 4.0% 2.9%
Avg property service fee TOYEREE
(RMB/mth/sq m.) (AR% 84~
BYAXK) 3.08 3N 3.15 3.15 3.20
+-% o,/ m % 0.7% 0.97% 1.3% 0% 1.6%

2020 EHE SPRBEBFRAF 18



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

BeHREAEEHBERE
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FINANCIAL POSITION Bt 3 AR
As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Mz ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR¥ETR
Current assets mEEE 2853076 2936359 3838216 5204290 8,609,335
Including: 8% :
Cash & cash equivalents HEeRBESEEY 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021 2,641,334 4,437,192
Trade & other receivables 2 5 & H i fEU 546,666 789,719 1,202,201 1,841,458 1,990,178
Non-current assets IEREEE 469,643 1,203,425 1,505,977 3,317,147 4,469,459
Total assets HEE 3,322,719 4,139,784 5,344,193 8,521,437 13,078,794
Current liabilities nEEE 1,554,520 2,138,300 2,922,426 4,149,275 4,685,813
Including: BE:
Bank loans FITEHK - - 950 46,822 6,000
Lease liabilities HEaE - - - 148,832 163,730
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 22,463 9,766 17,004 1,418,113 1,280,938
Including: BE:
Bank loans BITER - - - 435,992 140,456
Lease liabilities HE&fE - - - 833,395 1,037,449
Total liabilities HweE 1,576,983 2,148,066 2,939,430 5,567,388 5,966,751
Net assets FEE 1,745,736 1,991,718 2,404,763 2,954,049 7,112,043
Financial ratios Bt =
Current ratio MENLL & 1.84x 1.37x 1.31x 1.25x 1.84x
Quick ratio REPH =R 1.83x 1.31x 1.22x 1.17x 1.76x
Net gearing ratio FEEEBEXR M Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash
FHE FHE FHE FHE FHE
Net cash per share FREES 2 0.79 0.66 0.78 0.95 0.96
Rates of return [ 3R =
Dividend per share (HKY), EmEERIESE
after listing (#7T) 3 0.04 0.06 0.075 0.075 0.120
Special dividend (HK$) RIS (BT) - - - - 0.080
Return on net equity g FagElf @) 16.4% 19.5% 20.1% 16.2% 10.0%
Return on total assets BB E R K (5) 8.6% 9.4% 9.0% 5.6% 5.4%

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

Notes:

©)

Net gearing ratio is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans and
lease liabilities, and then divided by net assets

Net cash per share is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans and
lease liabilities, then divided by total number of Shares in issue at the date of 31
December 2020

This is based on total number of Shares issued as at the date of 31 December 2020:
3,220,086,327 Shares

Return on net equity is calculated as net profit attributable to equity Shareholders
divided by net assets

Return on total assets is calculated as profit attributable to equity Shareholders
divided by total assets

FEEAERHENERINAS RRS SEYHE
RITRARBEAE - AERNFEE

ERFESNAENERURE RESSEYRE
WTERREERE  AERIUEZE2020F12 A 31
HE BTN B 5

ERENBE 2020612 831 BEBITHIRMD AR
3,220,086,327 & ik 1

TR B A R R R R B R
WFAE

HB B D 3R R R EL TR R AR 28 R TR 4G 5 T BR IA
BEE

2020 EHRE SWRIEEEERAA
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHERE

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW

RERERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®TR AREFTT ARETT ARETR
Net cash generated from CEEHEHRE T
operating activities 393,661 528,574 656,232 919,439 1,315,994
Net cash used in BEEEMA
investing activities HeF8 (146,864) (749,803) (199,082) (601,689)  (2,264,312)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BI & EBFE,/ (FTH)
financing activities WeFE 1,056,525 (71,018) (119,907) 152,501 2,977,020
Net increase/(decrease) in Be KB EEY
cash and cash equivalents BFERE, CRd) 1,303,322 (292,247) 337,243 470,251 2,028,702
Cash & cash equivalents at FIRERESZEEY
the beginning of the year 835,897 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021 2,641,334
Effect of foreign exchange EXxEFHTE
rate changes 42,473 (52,978) 6,311 (8,938) (232,844)
Cash & cash equivalents at FRASRESEEY
the end of the year 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021 2,641,334 4,437,192

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Awards and Honors

RIENRE

2020 China Leading Property Management Company in 2020 China TOP 10 Listed Property Management

Terms of Customer Satisfaction Company in Terms of Comprehensive Strength
2020 HEIMERBRRREEALLE 2020 PE E IR RB L XEARESE D TOP 10
0 =4 =T% =
@ CERTIFICATE w ‘I R
. o % CERTIFICATE %
4438 FOPIOR Fropies Morchbmeat Componsain ke P o il okl i RO
TR R S WAL TN, TR ST ENEE. UM RN RIEE . N TT TR . ‘mngumtﬂmmmam.mm
* SRkl T TR ) * R %
S 2020 I Jl I 5 SRR I B S8R 2020 PR kB Y00 TOPID

2020 China High-end Property Service Leading

Company 2020 2020 TOP 100 Property Management Company in China
TESIRYEREEELE 2020 PEIMI RIS BRI
2 & e &
;1] n
% CERTIFICATE w % CERTWE:E w
lﬂ”?ﬁﬂﬂﬂ*ﬁﬂﬂ% 2020 [l 4 i R 25 1 58 4k it
2020 TOPI00 Property Management Compunies in China 2020 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China

RATERASL SA SRS ETHTRN. AN, SN KRR R N, SRR .
APISCA R T MR AT 200 PO ER AR,

© Rl TR N AL
SR 2020 < RS R 55 SR o

2020 TOP 10 Property Management Companies

MTRERALL. KR FAAEE G RN HUEN. MR MR A SN i
7

* Rk TR
SRR 2020 PR 95 R

in Terms of Satisfaction of Epidemic Prevention 2020 Top 500 Property Management Companies
iR R TS TE 2020 PRI X IR IEBF RMEE X 1058 2020 M ERK XA S E H 5008

N T B IR B T A A T ISR B S R B B P M A R N TS S R R RS

g PIdLRRSS RN SR ;;f— m

K 2020 Pl 55 il i 2w s CORGR IR

E: 2020 Top 10 Listed Gompany Zzy é&;gj:t:zm; g i i 202 %{Ejﬂﬁp ﬁ ;J_Effm %ﬁi 005’&
i 5SS S

R R A

ZOZ0%hA

Bp ey R T e T T T SR Gl T gliio gt

R AR A A
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Awards and Honors

RIERRE

2020 Leading Companies in Office Building Proper 2020 Top 100 Most Valuable Brand of Property
Service Management Service

2020 BB ERB AL LK 2020 ¥ BRI 3K R EE 10038

&
&

it bt bt ittt b b Stttk A e b fet e

Soe=.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of the
Group for the year 2020.

In March 2021, the property owners spanning across the 1,759
managed projects located in 187 cities and 30 provinces served by the
Group have sent us photos of the community through online platform,
showing us sprouting willow branches, blossoming buds, and smiles
blooming on faces, all filling up the frames with heart-warming and
fuzzy feeling. During this time in 2020, a few ten thousand employees
of the Group were defending against the pandemic together with
millions of property owners. All frontline employees and managers
were working hand in hand during that darkest period to efficiently
integrate the government’s community protection measures and
concentrate on the health and living needs of the property owners. We
gave our best, and were determined until we succeeded. Although, as
usual, spring this year is not particularly energetic, the fact that our
services are trusted by the property owners and that we have come all
the way to the front of the industry with social recognition make us
more excited than ever, and make us cherish what we have.

There is a saying that goes, “only the toughest grass can withstand the
strongest wind”. After 2020, a year intertwined with the pandemic and
changes of the century, we understand that crisis is a powerful
motivator to test the stability of the system of a country and the
operational resilience of a company. During this year, the gross
domestic product in China reached approximately RMB101.6 trillion,
representing an increase of 2.3% compared to last year, making it the
only major economy in the world to achieve positive growth. The
property industry, as one of the service industries closest to people’s
livelihood, was able to make a breakthrough despite the great
responsibility it bore during this year, and continuously make the value
of our services stand out. Ten national ministries have jointly issued a
policy, which is a rare occurrence, to encourage the exploration of the
“property service + living service” model. The industry’s development
prospects and space for imagination have been opened up further,
and we are very proud to be a part of it.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

This year, we focused on the vision of being a “happy life service
provider” more than ever. We gathered our strengths and continued
to work hard to refine and strengthen the internal impetus of property
services, and we concentrated on this to create basic units that
received valuable feedback from the community and the market: the
annual revenue exceeded RMB10,000 million to reach RMB10,105.6
million. What motivated us even more were the trust and
encouragement from our property owners that overwhelmed us, and
that they continued to give us good ratings for our services during this
extraordinary time, once again leading us to be recognized as one of
the “2020 China Top 100 Leading Property Management Company in
Terms of Customer Satisfaction” (China Index Academy) and to win the
first place in “2020 China Top 10 Property Management Company in
Terms of Pandemic Prevention Satisfaction” (China Property
Management Association). It also helped us to successfully increase
our property service fees for 168 projects; the percentage and
magnitude of price appreciation increase year after year. We also
responded to expectations and took over high-end existing projects
such as Shanghai Qinfengyayuan and Huafutiandi at a premium; our
fully commissioned projects increased by 96.8 million square meters
during the year, among them are brand new business forms including
high-tech research parks and landmark buildings in key planned
national economic bay areas, and managed GFA under our office
property brand of “Greentown Cloud Sharing” reached 25.0 million
square meters. As of 31 December 2020, the managed GFA of the
Group reached 250.5 million square meters, and the reserved GFA
reached 284.3 million square meters, providing a solid foundation for
the Company to achieve economies of scale and upgrade of living
services.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

This year, we understand better than ever that “being closer to life and
serving for life” is the new symbol of this industry, and is also a shortcut
to our continuous innovation. Concentrating on the core demands of
the human life cycle, we have deployed education, elderly care, new
retail, cultural asset (housing) services as living services, which are in
line with the expectations of the new national policy and have grown,
building on the solid foundation we have built in the past, in
accordance with our strategic plan. Our elderly care business has been
selected as a “Smart Health Management” supplier for the nine
scenarios of future communities in Zhejiang Province, and our product
line of childcare business is progressively implemented to provide
childcare centres at locations including old neighborhoods, hospitals
and research institutes. We also extended our countermeasures used
during the pandemic as innovations for living services. We expanded
and improved our online new retail and live stream spaces, and worked
together with CenturyMart to create a well-established offline “Happy
Marketplace” that is operated with light assets and connects online
and offline services to turn the “doorstep” into a “pool for traffic”.
Currently, the community retail network integrating online and offline
stores, warehouses, counters, stations and marketplaces, covering the
points frequently contacted by property owners. Despite the strong
impact of the pandemic on the main segment of cultural and education
services, the Group's revenue from the community living services
segment grew by 13.8% to reach RMB2,177.0 million for the year,
making a significant breakthrough in both total revenue and revenue
share, and continued to rank among the top in the industry.

This year, we were more determined than ever. Technology is the core
approach for our industry to break through bottlenecks, to seize the
high grounds of the new wave of development and to establish new
competitive advantages. As pioneers, we worked hard even amidst the
uncertainties. We have been building up our strength in technology
since 2013 and have developed three national high-tech enterprises,
which became partners of Ali, Huawei and Hikvision in succession,
expanding our market-oriented plans of the technology industry. We
continued to use our well-established and personalized technology
achievements to participate in the construction of platform for
technological transformation and intelligent security in future
communities and old neighborhoods, and export intelligent
management and operation capabilities, intelligent community
construction capabilities and intelligent living service capabilities to
other industries. Technology has arrived in our industry, the first ones
to master it would succeed first, and this day is just around the corner.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

All values are man-made. As always, we insist that employees are the
essence of an enterprise, and hold on to the core idea of “the best
products are people”. We have reached strategic cooperation with the
Golden Key International Alliance and China Property Management
Association to develop service standards for the property industry,
establish industry talent evaluation and recognition standards, focus on
the original quality of property services, enhance the service beliefs
and capabilities of our staff and assist small and medium-sized property
enterprises to improve efficiency comprehensively together in a mutual
beneficial alliance to break down the walls and redefine the scale. We
targeted at frontline employees to improve their income, and
implemented the “Shared Prosperity” plan to drive online work order
and offline workers, in order to keep the income of frontline employees
at a competitive level in the industry and to provide a solid guarantee
for service quality.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The freezing cold winter has faded away as the spring breezes of the
new year arrive. The new journey will refine the new development and
will reshape our lives. We have positioned 2021 as the year of upgrades
of living services, and will renew our service portfolio with a
methodology that is more pragmatic, professional, insightful and
performance-oriented to show our customers our reasonable, justified,
all-rounded and flexible services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE T AN AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide. In the
"2020 China Property Service Top 100 Enterprises Research Results
Conference” organized by China Index Academy (a professional
independent third-party Real Estate Research Organization in China),
we maintained the first place of “China’s Top 100 Leading Enterprises
in Terms of Property Service Satisfaction”, which is the praise of our
services, and is the solid foundation of the continuous expansion of our
management scale and sustained growth of financial performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group achieved:

Revenue

Revenue was RMB10,105.6 million. Compared with that of the year of
2019, which was RMB8,581.9 million, the growth rate on Y/Y basis
reached 17.8%.

The Group's revenue comes from three major businesses: (i) property
services, (i) community living services, and (iii) consulting services.
During the year, (i) the revenue from the property services was still the
Group's largest source of revenue and profit, which reached
RMB6,428.8 million, accounting for 63.6% of the Group's revenue.
Compared with RMB5,452.0 million in 2019, there was a Y/Y growth of
17.9%,; (ii) revenue from community living services reached RMB2,177.0
million, accounting for 21.5% of the Group’s revenue. Compared with
RMB1,912.8 million of the year of 2019, there was a Y/Y growth of
13.8%; and (iii) revenue from consulting services amounted to
RMB1,499.9 million, accounting for 14.9% of the Group's revenue.
There was a Y/Y growth of 23.2% compared with RMB1,217.2 million
for the year of 2019.
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2020 2019
% of % of
the total the total
RMB'000 revenue RMB'000 revenue Y/Y%
AR®TE EEKA% ARBTT  HEKA% FIEM%
Property services Y3 PR 7%
Property services ME RS 6,428,756 63.6% 5,452,031 63.5% 17.9%
6,428,756 63.6% 5,452,031 63.5% 17.9%
Community living services B ERH
Community products & B[R E A AR 7
services 807,212 8.0% 541,543 6.3% 49.1%
Home living services BEREERSE 147,241 1.5% 116,239 1.4% 26.7%
Community space services [ = AR 194,632 1.9% 203,726 2.4% -4.5%
Property asset management ¥ %% EE BRI
services 711,076 7.0% 859,568 10.0% -17.3%
Cultural & education services XAt B IR 316,840 3.1% 191,675 2.2% 65.3%
2,177,001 21.5% 1912,751 22.3% 13.8%
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2020 2019
% of % of
the total the total
RMB'000 revenue RMB'000 revenue Y/Y%
ARBTT HBEA% AR®TT  BEKA% FHEM%
Consulting services B R %
Property under construction £ ¥ % R 7%
services 1,189,722 11.8% 983,283 11.5% 21.0%
Management consulting BEE MRS
services 310,167 3.1% 233,867 2.7% 32.6%
1,499,889 14.9% 1,217,150 14.2% 23.2%
10,105,646 100.0% 8,581,932 100.0% 17.8%
Cost of sales HERA

During the year, the cost of sales was RMB8,182.8 million, which was an
increase of 16.3% compared with that of RMB7,034.8 million in the year
of 2019. The increase in the percentage of the cost of sales is slightly
lower than increase of the overall revenue, which was mainly due to the
Group's continuous improvement and implementation of relevant cost
management measures and development of meticulous management
and supplier management for performance improvement, to further
expand and enhance the coverage and efficiency of automated and
intelligent equipment when rendering services, as well as the partial
reduction of the cost of social security for employees supported by the
government during the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
pandemic.

Gross profit margin

—  Gross profit has reached RMB1,922.8 million, a growth of 24.3%
compared with RMB1,547.1 million in 2019. Gross profit margin
was 19.0%, increasing by 1.0 percentage point compared with
18.0% of the year of 2019.

—  Gross profit margin for property service was 12.8%, increasing by
1.4 percentage points compared with 11.4% in the year of 2019,
which was mainly due to the Group's effective measures for
strengthening the cost control, supplier management, and the
gradual appearance of the effect of technology empowerment,
as well as the partial reduction of social security costs for
employees supported by the government during the COVID-19
pandemic.

—  Gross profit margin for community living services was 28.2%,
increased by 1.1 percentage points as compared with 27.1% in
the year of 2019, which was mainly because our community living
services focused on core business operation capacity
establishment, which optimized product structure and promoted
business model transformation, and improvement in gross profit
margin was achieved in terms of community products and
services and community space services.
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—  Gross profit margin for consulting service was 32.6%, slightly
lower than 33.6% in 2019 by 1.0 percentage point, which was
mainly affected by the business structure adjustment of
management consulting services.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses was RMB155.8 million, an increase of
3.0% compared with RMB151.2 million in 2019. The growth rate was
significantly lower than 154.5% for the full year of 2019, which was
mainly due to the gradual maturation of the Group's community living
services business segment and the focus on internal operational
capacity enhancement and business model optimization during the
year, as well as the overall slowdown of community living services
business expansion during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB891.4 million, an
increase of 15.6% compared with RMB771.0 million in 2019. This
growth rate was slightly lower than the revenue growth rate of 17.8%
for the year. The main reasons being that the Group has adopted a
series of cost reduction and efficiency enhancement measures to
continuously strengthen the control of costs and expenses, the
business sectors related to community living services are also gradually
on the right track, and the administrative expenses were effectively
controlled. The Group is in the process of establishing and refining a
data-driven, intelligent and efficient peer-to-peer management system
which provides platform services and automatic supervision in order to
realize the “penetration” of vertical businesses and the “connection”
of horizontal businesses through its sharing center with the aim to
achieve the objectives of efficient management and convenient
services. The effect is gradually becoming visible.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by 100.9% to RMB43.2 million for
the year from RMB21.5 million for the year of 2019, primarily due to the
increased provision of impairment on certain associates as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Profit from operations
Profit from operations was RMB969.6 million, a growth of 50.6%
compared with RMB643.8 million for the year of 2019.

Operating profit margin was 9.6%, an increase of 2.1 percentage points
compared to 7.5% in 2019.

Net finance costs

The net finance costs during the year was RMBO0.1 million, decreased
by 87.5% compared with the net costs of RMBO0.8 million in the year of
2019. The Group relied on the financial sharing centre to strengthen its
fund management. Interest income on bank deposits for the year was
RMB44.4 million, representing an increase of 72.8% as compared to
RMB25.7 million for the full year of 2019. In addition, interest expense
on the lease liabilities increased due to the increase in the leased
properties required by the business during the year.
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2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000 Y/Y%
ARET T ARETTT FLt%
Interest income on listed debt FHESITAEFNERA
instruments (4,942) (5,358) -7.8%
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T1E R EUA (44,365) (25,739) 72.4%
Interest expense on bank loans RITERH B R 13,907 11,366 22.4%
Interest expense on lease liabilities A& & & F] 2% H 51,275 38,300 33.9%
Less: interest expense capitalised @i : ERELEEZETREN
into construction-in- FMEZE
progress (15,745) (17,819) -11.6%
Net finance costs BB AR 130 750 -82.7%

Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures
Share of profit of associates for the year amounted to RMB23.6 million,
an increase of RMB28.5 million compared to the losses of RMB4.9
million in the year of 2019. This was mainly due to the improvement of
the operations of certain associates and the earning contribution by
new associates during the year.

Share of profit of joint ventures for the year amounted to RMB4.6
million, a Y/Y increase of RMB2.3 million compared with the profit of
RMB2.3 million in the year of 2019. This was mainly due to continued
improvement in profitability for certain joint ventures.

Income Tax

The income tax for the year was RMB262.4 million, increased by 53.5%
from RMB170.9 million for the year of 2019. The effective income tax
rate decreased by 0.4 percentage points from 26.6% in 2019 to 26.2%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group was not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI during the year.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities incorporated in Hong
Kong for the income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax is 16.5%. A two-
tiered profits tax rates regime was introduced in 2018 whereby the first
HKD2 million in assessable profits earned by a company will be taxed
at half of the current tax rate (8.25%) while the remaining profits will
continue to be taxed at 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group did not earn any income subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities incorporated in
Australia for the income subject to Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
during the year is 30%.

Companies within the Group in the PRC are generally subject to
Corporate Income Tax at 25% on taxable income determined
according to the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC
unless otherwise specified.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

DIEBERSEARFEREER
FA-DEBERRNBESARKE 23688
TC o 20192 FERARKLIEETAAL -
MEEMTARE28588T - T2REAARF
MR DB & N RIS A RATIE B 2 AR Y
BMBRATEL -

FR - DMERERFANMERARBLIBET
H2019F2Fha AR 23FETHAL - I
sELIEMT ARK2388 T TERKRA
RED A ERABMEENOFERTT -

FriS®t

FR-AERBARB 202488 T - 82019
FREARKI709B8T £KR535% A
MFTISI R /326.2% » 82019 F 2 F #)26.6%
TFE0AEEDE -

REFAEHEMNABEBARESNRAILR
B REBEFABASRENFSESE NEB
HBREBNAEH -

REBRILMALEEEEARFNBREEF
BROWARBERSHRER16.5% 12018
FEBHEREENEHHE  ARKINESE
200 BB L E ST B A B AS IR IR AT R R B — -5
Fi(8.25%) » HerFBAIIE 16.5% 181 - ARE
ZE2019F K 2020512 A3 HILFEHEAE
B2 8 MEVT R AN E BT S ARA -
AN E B I S BB RIS TAE L T8 -

FA - R AN G5 M R RN 1997 FFR1F
MM EEERNERMGHRER
30% °

AREERE R EH R REERRERTEA
B 25% MM RFAEH - BRABRIA - HER
BB S RAR G FOEREE



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE T AN AT

Hangzhou Greentown Vocational Training School (771 77 4% 4 B 2= 55
SR, a subsidiary of the Group, was recognised as a small profit
enterprise in 2019 and 2020. The portion of annual taxable income
amount which did not exceed RMB1 million shall be computed at a
reduced rate of 25% as taxable income amount, and be subject to
enterprise income tax at 20%. The portion of annual taxable income
which exceeded RMB1 million but did not exceed RMB3 million, shall
be computed at a reduced rate of 50% as taxable income amount, and
be subject to enterprise income tax at 20%.

Pursuant to Chapter 28 of the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax, enterprises are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% after being recognised as high and new technology
enterprises. Hangzhou Greentown Information and Technology
Company Limited (H1 1 &% % {5 B £ 1iT B BR 22 71), a subsidiary of the
Group, obtained a high and new technology enterprise certification in
2018 and was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from
2018 to 2020.

Lvman Technology Company Limited (4% J& %l % % B2 2 7)) (“Lvman
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Group, obtained a high and new
technology enterprise certification in 2016 and renewed the
qualification in 2019. It is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% from 2019 to 2021.

Zhejiang Huixiang Information and Technology Company Limited (J#
TE=Z ([ BRHEBR AT, a subsidiary of the Group, obtained a high
and new technology enterprise certification in 2020 and is entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

Pursuant to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax and its relevant regulations, additional tax deduction is
allowed for qualified research and development costs.

Profit before taxation

For the year, profit before taxation reached RMB1,003.0 million,
increased 55.9% from RMB643.2 million for the year of 2019, which was
mainly due to the steady growth of the managed projects and
managed GFA of the Group, effective cost control, as well as the
effective improvement of the profitability of part of the community
living services business.

Profit for the year
Profit for the year was RMB740.7 million, representing an increase of
56.8% compared with RMB472.4 million for the year of 2019.

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year was RMB710.4 million, representing an increase of 48.8% as
compared with RMB477.4 million for the year of 2019.
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Net profit margin for the year was 7.3%, an increase of 1.8 percentage
points compared with 5.5% in 2019, which was mainly because the
Group adopted effective measures to increase revenue and reduce
expense to effectively control administrative expenses and improve the
operational efficiency of property services and community living
services.

Major investments, major acquisitions and disposals

On 14 June 2020, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (“Zhong Ao Home") (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1538), in relation to the subscription of 36,928,000 shares of Zhong Ao
Home by the Company (the “Zhong Ao Share Subscription”), at the
subscription price of HK$0.98 per share of Zhong Ao Home. The Zhong
Ao Share Subscription was completed on 19 June 2020.

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 23
June 2020, 29 June 2020 and 17 July 2020, respectively. On 23 June
2020, the Company entered into (i) a sale and purchase agreement
with Central Oscar Holdings Limited (“Central Oscar”), which related
to the purchase of 81,452,650 shares of Zhong Ao Home held by
Central Oscar by the Company, (the “First Acquisition”); and (ii) a sale
and purchase agreement with Decision Holdings Limited (“Decision
Holdings"”), which related to the purchase of 41,190,650 shares of
Zhong Ao Home held by Decision Holdings by the Company (the
“Second Acquisition”), each at the sale price of HK$1.80 per share of
Zhong Ao Home.

The completion of the First Acquisition and the Second Acquisition
took place on 29 June 2020 and 17 July 2020, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group had no major investment, major acquisitions and disposals.

Subscription and placing of Shares

Subscription of new Shares under general mandate

Pursuant to a framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”)
dated 27 December 2019 and entered into between, among others,
the Company and Sail Link Holdings Limited (“Sail Link”), on 24 April
2020, the Company (as issuer) entered into a subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”) with, among others, Sail Link (as
subscriber), pursuant to which Sail Link conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
an aggregate of 155,208,702 Shares (the “Subscription Shares”) at the
Subscription Price of HK$8.3833 per Subscription Share (the
“Subscription”). The 155,208,702 Subscription Shares have a nominal
value of approximately HK$1,552.09 and a market value of
HK$1,457,409,711.78, based on the closing price of HK$9.39 per Share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the Subscription
Agreement.
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The Directors considered that the Subscription would broaden the
shareholder base of the Company and improve the liquidity of the
Shares. It would also strengthen the capital base for science and
technology capacity-building, and the cultivation of core services, etc.,
which would be necessary for the development of the Company.
Furthermore, the Directors considered that the Subscription would be
a preferred method of fund raising as compared with other equity fund
raising exercises based on time and costs involved.

Completion of the Subscription took place on 7 May 2020. Prior to the
Subscription, pursuant to the Framework Agreement, Sail Link (as
purchaser) entered into a sale and purchase agreement with, among
others, Lilac International Investment Company Limited (“Lilac”, as
vendor), a substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which
Sail Link conditionally agreed to purchase, and Lilac conditionally
agreed to sell, an aggregate of 139,465,661 Shares (the “Share Sale”).
The completion of the Share Sale took place on 6 January 2020. As
such, Sail Link held an aggregate of 294,674,363 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
immediately after completion of the Subscription.

The net proceeds from the Subscription, after deduction of any
financial advisory fees payable to the joint financial advisers and other
costs, expenses and fees incurred in relation to the Subscription,
amounted to approximately HK$1,301.2 million. The net price per
Subscription Share was approximately HK$8.38.

During the Period, HK$626.2 million of the net proceeds from the
Subscription was utilized for loan repayment and working capital. As at
31 December 2020, the remaining net proceeds raised from the
Subscription amounted to HK$675.0 million. The Group will use the
remaining proceeds from the Subscription in accordance with the
intended uses as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 24 April 2020, namely for loan repayment, working capital and
general corporate purposes. It is expected that the net proceeds from
the Subscription will be fully used before 31 December 2023. The
expected timeline for utilizing the remaining unutilized net proceeds
from the Subscription is based on the best estimation of the future
market conditions made by the Group and is subject to change based
on the current and future development of market conditions.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 27 December 2019, 6 January 2020, 24 April 2020 and 7 May
2020, respectively.
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Placing of new Shares under general mandate

On 3 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”) with (i) CLSA Limited, (ii) Citigroup Global
Markets Limited and (iii) China International Capital Corporation Hong
Kong Securities Limited (the “Placing Agents”), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to appoint the Placing Agents, and the
Placing Agents conditionally agreed to act (on a several basis but
neither joint nor joint and several basis) as placing agents of the
Company for the purpose of procuring, as agents of the Company, the
placees to subscribe for, or, failing which, subscribing for, 266,600,000
Shares (the “Placing Shares”) at the placing price of HK$10.18 per
Placing Share (the “Placing Price”) on the terms and subject to the
conditions set out in the Placing Agreement (the “Placing”). The
266,600,000 Placing Shares have a nominal value of approximately
HK$2,666.0 and a market value of HK$2,820,628,000, based on the
closing price of HK$10.58 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the Placing Agreement.

The Board considered that the Placing would represent a good
opportunity to broaden the shareholders base and to raise capital for
the Company for its future business developments.

On 10 June 2020, the Placing Agents successfully placed an aggregate
of 266,600,000 Placing Shares to not less than six placees at the Placing
Price in accordance with the Placing Agreement and the Placing was
completed. The net proceeds of the Placing, after deducting related
fees and expenses, amounted to approximately HK$2,693.4 million.
The net price per Placing Share was approximately HK$10.10.

During the Reporting Period, HK$701.7 million of the net proceeds
from the Placing has been used for the Zhong Ao Share Subscription,
the First Acquisition, working capital and general corporate purposes.
The remaining net proceeds raised from the Placing amounted to
HK$1,991.7 million. The Group will use the remaining proceeds from
the Placing as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3
June 2020, namely for potential future merger and acquisition, strategic
investments, working capital and general corporate purposes. It is
expected that the remaining proceeds from the Placing will be fully
used before 31 December 2023. The expected timeline for utilizing the
remaining unutilized net proceeds from the Placing is based on the
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group
and is subject to change based on the current and future development
of market conditions.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 3 June 2020 and 10 June 2020, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no issue or placing of Shares during
the Reporting Period.
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Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a good financial condition during the year. The
current assets as at 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB8,609.3
million, increasing by 65.4% compared to RMB5,204.3 million as at 31
December 2019. The Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB4,437.2 million as at 31 December 2020, increasing Y/Y by 68.0%
compared with RMB2,641.3 million as at 31 December 2019. Net cash
generated from operating activities remained a stable upward trend,
amounting to RMB1,316.0 million during the year, grew Y/Y by 43.1%
from RMB919.4 million in 2019. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to RMB2,264.3 million, up by 276.3% compared with
RMB601.7 million in 2019. Net cash generated from financing activities
was RMB2,977.0 million, up 1,852.1% from RMB152.5 million in 2019,
which was mainly due to the significant increase of the cash generated
from the Subscription and the Placing (“"Such Financing”).

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 29
March 2019, 11 April 2019, 21 June 2019 and 5 July 2020, respectively.
On 21 June 2019, Greentown Education Holding Group Co. Ltd
("Greentown Education”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the borrower, and the Group and a subsidiary of the Group, as the
guarantors, entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, as
the lender, in relation to a loan facility in the principal amount of
USD49.0 million with a term of three years (the “Loan”). The Loan was
used to fund the purchase price of the acquisition of 7,057 shares of
Montessori Academy Group Holdings Pty Ltd. (“"MAG") by Greentown
Education (the "Acquisition”). The Loan was fully repaid on 3 July
2020.

The debt ratio (total liabilities/total assets) of the Group was 45.6%, a
decrease of 19.7 percentage points compared with 65.3% at the end of
2019. This was mainly due to the significant increase of the cash
generated from Such Financing.

Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

As of 31 December 2020, the value of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to RMB1,921.1
million, which increased by 22.9% from RMB1,563.4 million as at 31
December 2019. Among which, investment property amounted to
RMB479.5 million, representing an increase of 64.3% from RMB291.9
million as at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the
addition of investment properties and right-of-use assets of education
projects and the increase in expenditure for the renovation of property,
plant and equipment during the year.
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Intangible assets

As of 31 December 2020, intangible assets amounted to RMB362.2
million, representing an increase of 10.8% compared with RMB327.0
million as at 31 December 2019, which was due to the increase of
intangible assets related to daily business activities, such as software.

Trade and other receivables

As of 31 December 2020, trade and other receivables amounted to
RMB1,990.2 million, increasing by 5.9%, from RMB1,879.2 million as at
31 December 2019. Among them, the largest proportion of trade
receivables amounted to RMB1,258.1 million, an increase of 21.6%
from RMB1,034.6 million as at 31 December 2019, which was slightly
higher than the total revenue growth rate of 17.8%, which is lower than
the growth rate of 56.3% in 2019. The main reason was that the Group
maintained a good collection rate and strengthened the cash flow
control at the end of the year.

Trade and other payables

As of 31 December 2020, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB2,965.2 million, increasing by 11.5% from RMB2,659.0 million as at
31 December 2019. This was mainly due to the expansion of
procurement volume resulting from the growth of business scale.

Lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, lease liabilities due within one year, which
were included in current liabilities, were RMB163.7 million, increasing
by 10.0%, from RMB148.8 million as at 31 December 2019. The lease
liabilities due after one year, which were included in long-term lease
liabilities, were RMB1,037.4 million, representing an increase of 24.5%
compared with RMB833.4 million as at 31 December 2019, which was
mainly due to the increase of new rental properties of retail business,
cultural and education business and industrial operation service.

Property Services — accounting for 63.6% of total revenue,

and 42.7% of total gross profit

Property services are the Group's largest revenue and margin source.
The Group has been mainly adopting the overall rationing system for
service charging. Based on our management experience and cost
control capability over the past 20 years, property services provide us
with stable revenue and profit, as well as good reputation, and is the
cornerstone of the Group’s implementation of its living services
strategy. Throughout 2020:

— Revenue reached RMB6,428.8 million, an increase of 17.9%
compared with RMB5,452.0 million in the year of 2019. As the
revenue base of property services continues to increase, the
growth of this segment is expected to stabilize in the future.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BEEE

HE2020F12A3181L BREEZEARE
322AETT B2019F 12 A31TAMARE
R/0BEBETHER108%  FTEATMEZEAE
K EEN R B A E A FTIEN -

B85 &k 2 MEYRR

BZE2020F 12831 AL BHRAMEUK
EARK1,9902HET - |W2019412A31 1
MARB18792BB T RS9% - £d - 1h
LR E 5 B EARE1,258 1 B5ET
B2019F 12 831 HMARK1,034.6 BB T
R21.6%  BBRNBIRAERE178% KR
2019 F B RE563% TERALFNEE
BRI R EOKT - BEFRINAT
REMAEE -

B 5 & H At B A RREK

BZE2020F 12831 AL BHRAMENK
EARK29652HET - |W20194612A31 R
AR 26590B88TER115%  TEEMH
REBRIRERFRORBRIZOMEAL -

HESE

2020512 A31H - —FAEZAHNEESR
BEAARBIGBIAEBTAARDAE B
2019F12A3TEM AR 14888 & T 15 /N
100% —FUELBRIMNNEERBERARY
10374BETHARBHERE  W2019F
12A31 B ARM833.48 B Tig H124.5% °
TERHRIENEE  LHBEREXEE
RIBHE X -

MHERH — HBRRA63.6%  HEEF
42.7%

W RIS R A R R B R S A W AMER IR o
—ENUR REEXZRDEHHHREKET
X ERBMBE0ZFERNERLRM
FRAAEHIBE S - MEREFHERRPIHRIZE
MURA - FER EEDE - TREEEEELEE
IRISEBR ) 2R ETE - R2020F 24 ¢

— WABARM64288FETT + B20195F
PFEARB545208 8T K17.9% -
BEEMERBUAZBNTEIEAX - 1B
AERKZIBREHBNIRE



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE T AN AT

EMABARKESI2EE T 820194
2FEAREG9IEE T EFA3R% - E
& E12.8% 0 B2019F 2 F 8 11.4%
EH14EEDE - TBEENAEEE
(¥BHRTPBABZEF MENAETE
sl EEREEL BHTFEX
B OANBABEREE  REUEESIEE

— MR T+ o 220205 COVID-19 % 15

—  Gross profit reached RMB821.2 million, up 32.5% from RMB619.9  —
million in 2019. Gross profit margin for property service was
12.8%, increased by 1.4 percentage points compared with 11.4%
in the year of 2019. This was mainly due to further improvement
to management efficiency as a result of the Group's effective cost
control in various aspects of business development: project
allocation optimization, technology platform support, internal
incentive for wealth sharing. During the COVID-19 pandemic in

valth she R BREAEMES  ReTAT
2020, some social security expenses for employees were reduced AR o
under the relevant national policies.
2020 2019
% of % of
property % of property % of
service managed service managed
revenue GFA revenue GFA
LEEIES EEE EEYES HEE
BRI A % E & % BRFSULA % 15 %
Contracted GFA BHEE
— Residential —fF= 69.5 78.1 70.2 78.8
— Non-residential —¥EE=E 30.5 21.9 29.8 212
Total et 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
The managed GFA reached 250.5 million square meters, — HEEME&EA25058 5 F 5K B2019
representing an increase of 17.9% or net increase of 38.1 million FH2124BEFHARER179% - 30F
square meters compared with 212.4 million square meters in KEAN38.1 B &F 7K - b 20204 R B A

2019, or a net increase of 24.6 million square meters compared
with 225.9 million square meters in the interim period of 2020.
Due to the impact of the pandemic, there were delays in the
planned delivery of projects. The delivery of incremental projects
and the expansion of existing projects have provided us with
growth momentum and are the main sources of continuous
increase in revenue and profits from property services. We not
only pay attention to the increase of managed GFA, but also
focus on the improvement of service quality. We continue to
refine our service capabilities by operating under separate brands
in segments of the target markets. We have established E.O
housekeeper and cloud sharing for commercial and office
properties to expand the brand effect in the industry.
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Reserve GFA, as a major source of the future managed GFA,
reached a new height during the year, reaching 284.3 million
square meters, an increase of 21.9% compared with 233.2 million
square meters in 2019, or a net increase of 51.1 million square
meters. This demonstrates that the Group's project reserves
remain adequate and will continue to provide a solid foundation
for the Group's future growth. During the year, we focused on
the core cities and, with our good reputation and high service
level, signed many new first- and second-tier high-end residential
projects and developed many urban landmark projects, such as
Southern Yangtze Global Harbor, Guangzhou CCCC Huitong
Center, Zhuhai Hengqin Plaza and Lishui Yintai City. We have also
made significant breakthroughs in urban services, signing a
contract for national-level research experiments, namely Zhijiang
Laboratory. We joined hands with Greentown China Holdings
Limited to build the Quzhou Lixian Future Community. We have
also reached strategic cooperation with our government and
corporate partners, Chengdu Urban Investment and Yuexing
Group, to accelerate the development for urban services. Under
the impact of the pandemic, the annual expansion volume still
exceeded 95.0 million square meters.

Managed projects reached 1,759, covering 187 cities in 30
provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China.

Regional distribution: as at 31 December 2020, our managed
GFA and revenue by region were distributed as follows:
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2020 2019

% of % of
managed % of managed % of
GFA revenue GFA revenue
HEEEE% HERA% (HEEMES HEBIIA %
Greater Hangzhou AATM 20.2 33.9 21.2 355
— Hangzhou — Fu 14.5 29.4 15.3 30.3
— Yuhang — R 5.7 4.5 5.9 52
Ningbo st 6.7 6.6 6.6 6.9
Yangtze River Delta RI=AR 39.0 30.7 38.7 28.5
Bohai Economic Rim BB %)/ &7 = 141 12.9 14.6 12.6
Pearl River Delta WI=ZAE 7.3 5.7 8.0 55
Others HAih 12.7 10.2 10.9 11.0
100 100 100 100
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Community living services — accounting for 21.5% of our
total revenue, and 31.9% of our total gross profit

During the year, the community living services continued to grow and
gained revenue of RMB2,177.0 million, an increase of 13.8% compared
with RMB1,912.8 million in 2019. Among them:

(1) The community products and services (accounting for 37.1% of
the income from community living services): in 2020, the annual
revenue reached RMB807.2 million, a Y/Y increase of 49.1%
compared with RMB541.5 million in 2019.

(2)  Home living services (accounting for 6.8% of the income from
community living services): in 2020, the annual revenue reached
RMB147.2 million, an increase of 26.7% compared with RMB116.2
million in 2019.

(3) Community space services (accounting for 8.9% of the income
from community living services): in 2020, the annual revenue
reached RMB194.6 million, a decrease of 4.5%, compared with
RMB203.7 million in 2019.

(4)  Property asset management services (accounting for 32.7% of the
income from community living services): in 2020, the revenue
reached RMB711.1 million, decreasing by 17.3% compared with
RMB859.6 million in 2019.

(5)  Cultural and education services (accounting for 14.5% of the
income from the community living services): in 2020, the revenue
reached RMB316.8 million, an increase of 65.3% compared with
RMB191.7 million in 2019.

EERKE — H#BEKA21.5%  HEEF
31.9%

FRN - BRREESRFIRERIEZER - WESK
AARM217708 B0 B2019F AR
19128 A& LIER 13.8% « Heb :

N BEEESMRKRSEEERRBS KA
37.1%) : 2020 F W A B AR 80727
EBIL RH2019F ARESMS5HETT
#549.1% o

2 EBHREBERE(UEEREREWA68%)
2020 FIRA B AR 14728 8T - Rk
2019F AREN62EBITIER267% °

Q) BEREZEERSE(GERRSIALI%)
2020 F WA B ARE1946BETT * Rt
2019 FE AR#E203.7 BEIT NE4.5% °

@ YEEEESERS(EERRERE KA
327%) : 2020F WA B AREINIAEA
B0 F2019F ARS9.6H BT
TFE17.3% °

(5 XIbEHEBERB(EERRKRSKAD
14.5%) 1 2020F WA B AR ¥ 31685
B RAL2019FARBEINTIEEL
R 65.3% ©

2020 2019
Revenue % of Revenue % of
RMB'000 total Y/Y % RMB’000 total
WA 1A% Eil=4 WA (ot
AR T % % AREFT %
Community products & B[ = A RS

services 807,212 371 491 541,543 28.3
Home living services BEREEIRS 147,241 6.8 26.7 116,239 6.1
Community space services  [&[& %= 5 R 7% 194,632 8.9 -4.5 203,726 10.7

Property asset MEEEEERY
management services 711,076 32.7 -17.3 859,568 449
Cultural & education services XAt # B IR7% 316,840 14.5 65.3 191,675 10.0
Total Bt 2,177,001 100.0 13.8 1,912,751 100.0
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Community living services offer systematic product and service
solutions for all life service scenes of property owners throughout the
life cycle of real estate. They are an extension of property services and
an important part of our strategic vision of being a “happy living
service provider”. During the year, by deepening our research based
on the strategy of living services, we built a virtuous ecological circle of
discovering needs, matching resources, connecting effectively and
forming states. By adopting technology and focusing on community
scenarios, we promoted the upgrading of our products and improved
the competitive strength of our services and products.

—  Community products and services

During the year, we continued to optimize the capacity of supply
of community products and the layout of community retail
system, using stores, warehouses, counters, stations, and markets
as carriers to build a full range of consumption scenes for
property owners in the community. We also provide better
products and service experience to the property owners through
“live broadcast” and other forms according to the gradual
change of their living and consumption habits. In the next step,
we will continue to promote businesses such as “GreenMart” and
"Happy markets” and continuously provide high-quality products
and service experience for property owners.

During the pandemic, as a people’s livelihood guarantee and
supply enterprise, we restored our operation as soon as possible
to solve the problem of property owners’ difficulty in shopping
for groceries during the quarantine period, and provided safe
and convenient fresh products by relying on the previous layout
of "GreenMart”.

— Home living services

We will continue to rely on the home service platform called
"Four Seasons Housekeeping” to integrate high-quality
resources and to build a home service system driven by customer
data, with daily cleaning, home appliance maintenance and high-
end nursing care as our core businesses. For the next step, with
the national encouragement for property service enterprises to
develop “property service + home-based elderly care service”,
we plan to further develop community home-based elderly care
service pilot sites in the community to provide safe and
professional healthcare services for elderly people.

—  Community space services
Advertising business of community space experienced a relatively
significant decline during the year. We have gradually developed
self-operated space business to reduce the dependence of
community space services on upstream companies for advertising
placement. At the same time, based on the research of
community businesses and implementation of “future
communities” in Zhejiang Province, we plan to integrate our own
life service business forms, build community space solutions and
realize the output of service capabilities to third-party customers.
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—  Property asset management services

Property replacement services and asset management (e.g.
parking space business) are the largest sources of income of this
segment. As affected by the pandemic during the year, the
growth of the development of our replacement services and
parking space sales business were affected to a certain extent. At
the same time, the Company has slowed down its parking space
business to “select high-quality asset operation as the goal and
be asset-light as the strategic orientation”. Our asset-light
operation model of “Uhome” brand in the housing rental/hosting
service business has achieved initial success, which has reduced
the impact of the pandemic on the profit to a certain extent. In
the future, we will continue to focus on the management and
operation services for high-quality assets in first- and second-tier
cities based on our existing business model, continuously
optimize the business structure and operational mode of this
segment.

—  Cultural and education services

The segment’s business growth was mainly driven by the
performance contribution brought about by the Acquisition. Due
to the impact of the pandemic, the operation of the domestic
business only resumed gradually in the second quarter of 2020;
the impact by this business segment was comparatively
significant. Overseas kindergarten businesses benefited from the
Australian government’'s support policies for education
enterprises and employees. While its business development was
affected by the pandemic to a certain extent, the impact of this
on the profit of the Group's overall education sector was limited.

Currently, the enrollment rate and the community capacity have
steadily recovered. We will continue to pay close attention to relevant
government policies, strictly fulfill safety and control requirements and
maintain teaching quality. With the government’s emphasis on early
childcare, we will further optimize the business model of this sector,
enhance cooperation with governments, universities and high-quality
enterprises so as to become an asset-light and low-risk operation
service provider.
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Consulting services — accounting for 14.9% of the total BHARE — HBRWA14.9%  EEEF
revenue, 25.4% of the total gross profit 25.4%

During the year, we continued to focus on the full life cycle of real FR > BMEEREEEMEEmBEY @ £)%
estate products, deeply analyzed our clients’ needs, and continuously ADMEPERMIER T » HREANE LFEE
extended our service content and types and strengthened core  #{TTEBEITEM - BBEGERES 2%
competitive advantages of our consulting services through methods (ERZR N EFEIFNEF R @ FER{LEAR
such as the integration of quality resources, construction of a B 0OEEFH - R2020F 24 ¢
standardized system and business innovation, for the whole year of

2020:
—  The income reached RMB1,499.9 million, an increase rate of — IWAZEARE1,4999BE T @ B20194F
23.2% compared with RMB1,217.2 million in the year of 2019. PEMAREI2I72AEETHLER
23.2% °
2020 2019
Revenue % of Revenue % of
O G 7 L'ON hies
RMB'000 total Y% RMB'000 total
AR®T T % % ARETT %
Project under construction  fE 2 ¥ % k75
services 1,189,722 79.3 21.0 983,283 80.8
Management consulting ~ EE& RS
services 310,167 20.7 32.6 233,867 19.2
Total F 1,499,889 100.0 23.2 1,217,150 100.0
—  Our gross profit increased by 19.5% to RMB488.3 million from — EFR AR®4883 B & T H20194F
RMB408.6 million in 2019. Our gross profit margin decreased AR 408.6 8 & LML EF19.5% °
slightly to 32.6% from 33.6% in the year of 2019. This was mainly E N EKPE2019F & F33.6%H T F =
due to the decrease in gross profit margin for management 32.6% - FERZHEERBARBENE
consulting services, but the overall gross profit margin from TRATE BEEBHARBEFNERK
consulting services remained at a high level. ARFEEKF o
2020 2019
No. of Average No. of Average
projects revenue/ projects revenue/
at the project at the project
year end Y/Y% RMB'000 year end Y/Y% RMB’000
¥4 13
RER WA/1EH RER WA/ TEE

HEER Eit% AR¥TR  BEEH Rit% ARETT

Project under construction 7EZ¥E IR

services 891 49.2 1,335 597 36.3 1,647
Management consulting BB R
services 669 11.7 464 599 47.2 390
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Confronted with the change of the consulting services market
environment, we continued to study the development trend of
real estate market and the application of new technologies in the
above-mentioned business sector, and fully integrate them with
the development strategies of each business segment to
maintain the advantages of the Group’s own services and
products. Based on the changes in demand for consulting
services of developers, we have begun to cultivate operational
technology capacity of non-residential properties, including
industrial parks, office buildings and commercial complexes. We
have determined to coordinate the development of consulting
services and property services based on a “consultation+operati-
on+property” model.

Property Under Construction Services

Our revenue reached RMB1,189.7 million, an increase of 21.0%
compared with RMB983.3 million in the year of 2019. Following
the upgrade of our traditional field services to better life
experience services in 2018, we have further empowered our
employees through methods such as hierarchical training system,
centralised accreditation, live training and skills contests. We
focus on creating a team of "better life designers”, who are
confident, keen, altruistic and yearning for a better life. We have
continuously innovated and upgraded the high-end and ultra-
high-end projects to customized seven-second high-end service
experience. For the top four service scenarios where prospective
property owners spend more time in experience centers, we
specially designed and customized a high-end service system,
presenting more refined, professional service procedures and
qualities that exceeded expectations, to provide ultimate service
experience and pursue quality high-end services. As a result, our
services have achieved high service awareness and recognition,
and our business has developed rapidly.

Management Consulting Services

Our revenue reached RMB310.2 million, an increase of 32.6%
compared with RMB233.9 million in 2019, maintaining a relatively
high growth rate. On the one hand, we relied on the client
resources from property consulting projects to deeply develop
and provide real estate consulting services, enhancing the
customer value. On the other hand, the "Green Alliance”
services, by giving full play to its leading quality advantage in the
property service market, joined hands with associations and
branch companies to organize alliance lectures, which
significantly expanded the brand influence in the Yangtze River
Delta region. At the same time, we focused on the key cities to
form a regional scale and establish a systematic urban operation
model; focused on the development of state-owned enterprises,
continued to understand needs through customer relationships
and expand customer sources; focused on the integration of
business management empowerment and technology to create a
quality cloud platform with alliance-empowered logic. We
provided management/technology solutions for property
customers.
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

At the Board meeting held on 26 March 2021, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for 2020 of HK$0.120
per Share (2019: HK$0.075 per Share) and a special dividend of
HK$0.080 per share (2019: Nil), subject to approval by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held on 18 June 2021.
The final dividend and special dividend will be paid on or before 13
July 2021.

The Board is of the view that the Group has generated considerable
cash from its remarkable operating performance in the year, and gave
effect to the Group's firm belief in sharing the positive return from the
Group's growth with its Shareholders through dividend distribution.
The Board has fully taken account of the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the Group’s operations. After the dividend payment, the
Group continues to keep a large amount of cash, which is sufficient for
normal operations and battle against the pandemic.

ACQUISITIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

We adhered to the acquisition and investment strategy of “adhering to
robustness overall while focusing on synergies with existing
businesses”. During an acquisition, the Company focuses on factors
such as the extent to which the target company’s business fits the
Group's business, whether the target company can increase the
Group’s market shares in key regions, the extent to which the target
company contributes to the project scales of the Group. At the same
time, the Company pays attention to details such as the extent to
which the target company contributes to the development of the
Group's core service capabilities, whether it can improve the coverage
density of service of the Group, and the acquisition consideration.

In recent years, in order to cultivate and accelerate the development of
the core business of community service, we have made relatively
frequent and active acquisitions in the community service sectors.
Through two or three years of intensive cultivation, we have initially
completed the preliminary layout and will enter a stage of endogenous
growth capacity cultivation. However, the scale of competition in the
property industry has increasingly intensified, our product and service
capabilities need to be supported in quantity and supported by
technological products and capabilities if we want to continue to firmly
occupy the first echelon of the industry. To this end, we will more
actively seek out the acquisition and equity cooperation opportunities
of high quality property companies and/or upstream and downstream
companies in related industries that have strategic synergy with us, and
continue to strengthen our core competitive advantages, so as to
promote the improvement of the comprehensive strength of the
Group.
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During the year, we raised approximately HK$3,994.6 million through
Such Financing, which will be used primarily for strategic investments,
mergers and acquisitions, and the building and development of our
core business capabilities. In addition to ensuring endogenous growth,
it assists in bringing about steady and continuous growth of our
performance and maintaining our scale and size in the industry through
equity merger and acquisition, etc..

We believe that through the form of acquisition and equity
cooperation, our business scale can be effectively promoted to always
be maintained at the front-end of the industry, and also help to
promote the construction of our life service alliance, the construction
and upgrading of core business capabilities, and bring better
contribution to the development of the Group. We will not blindly
pursue the linear expansion of scale, but will focus on high quality scale
growth. Next, we will adhere to the consistent acquisition strategy,
continue to focus on the market, capture appropriate acquisition
opportunities, and accelerate the realization of the Group’s "happy life
service provider” platform strategic objectives.

PLEDGED ASSETS OF THE GROUP

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 29
March 2019, 11 April 2019 and 21 June 2019, respectively, in relation to
the entry into the Facility Agreement between Greentown Education
and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Lender”), in
respect of the Loan. The Group pledged to the Lender 100% equity
interest in Greentown Education, together with all ancillary rights and
claims associated with the equity interest (the “Pledge”) in accordance
with the Facility Agreement. The Loan was fully repaid on 3 July 2020
and the Pledge was deregistered on 10 September 2020.

As referred to in the 2019 Annual Report of the Company, MAG has
obtained a loan of AUD28.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB136.2 million) from a bank for the purpose of supplementing its
working capital, and has secured certain property, plant and equipment
held by it with a carrying amount of AUD58.2 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB291.8 million) as of 31 December 2020 as collateral.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, there was no pledged asset
of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on 18 June 2021 and a notice convening the
AGM will be published and dispatched in the manner as required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the "Listing Rules”) in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For the purpose of determining the qualification of the
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 15 June
2021 to 18 June 2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents are required
to be lodged accompanied by the relevant share certificates with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 11 June 2021.

(b)  For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend and special dividend (both subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the AGM), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 24 June 2021 to 25
June 2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend and special dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company are required to
lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 June 2021.

THE RISK OF BUSINESS OPERATION BEING
AFFECTED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

As the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic cannot be ascertained, it
exists uncertainty of its impact on the operation of the Group. We will
closely monitor the situation of the COVID-19 pandemic in the main
business operation locations, including local policies, etc., to assess its
impacts on the Group's business, financials and operations, and
formulate corresponding response strategies. In the meantime, we will
enforce strictly the prevention and control measures in accordance
with the requirements of the pandemic situation, continue to fulfil
various business management tasks, and use our best efforts to ensure
the continuous and stable operation of the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group conducts substantially all of its business in Mainland China
and in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to limited foreign
currency exchange rate risk. The Group has not entered into any
foreign exchange hedging arrangement during the year. However, due
to the Acquisition and Such Financing, the depreciation or appreciation
of the Hong Kong dollar and the Australian dollar and the adjustment
of interest rates will have impact on the Group’s performance. The
Group will continue to closely monitor its exposure to exchange rate
and interest rate risks and actively explore foreign exchange hedging
options with major banks, and may employ derivative financial
instruments to hedge against risks when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE T AN AT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020.

TREASURY POLICY

To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Our Group adheres to its philosophy of “people-oriented and service-
oriented” and regards our employees as its top product. We aim to
add partnership-sourced income to the compensation system, and
provide diversified training and personal development platforms for
employees. The Group has established the College of Better Life
Services, with secondary professional colleges and city branches in
safety, housekeeping, quality, engineering, consulting and living, and
has reached strategic cooperation with Golden Key International
Alliance to empower key talents, innovate professional talents and
build a people-oriented talent moat. The remuneration package
offered to the staff was in line with their duties and the prevailing
market terms. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. The Group also provides its employees with staff
benefits, including pension, medical coverage, and provident funds.

On 23 January 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 33,150,000
share options to subscribe for ordinary Shares to an associate of an
independent non-executive Director, a senior management of the
Company and certain employees of the Group, subject to acceptance
of the grantees, under the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 25 May 2018. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 23 January 2020.

On 14 September 2020, the Company further granted an aggregate of
25,770,000 share options to subscribe for ordinary Shares to an
associate of an independent non-executive Director and certain
employees of the Group, subject to acceptance of the grantees, under
the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 25 May 2018.
For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 14 September 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, our group had 31,911 employees, an increase
of 9.5% compared with the year of 2019, which was lower than the
growth rate of 17.9% in managed GFA during the year. The total staff
cost was RMB3,360.8 million, an increased rate of 23.1% compared with
the year of 2019, which was mainly due to the increase in the number
and the average wages of employees and extra spending in pandemic
subsidies and overtime expenses during the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Investor Relationship

REEBR

OBJECTIVES

Transparency in corporate information forms part of the basis for
investors’ confidence towards listed company, though it is also the
responsibility of a public company. A stable, diversified shareholders
base in which communication is effective, is essential to facilitate
shareholders value creation. And in the process, it could contribute to
a stable share price performance. This is a valuable intangible asset for
the Company. And IR is the very bridge of two-way communication
amongst shareholders, investment institutions and the public at one
end, whilst that of listed company at the other. Externally, in
compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company provides regular, real-
time, accurate and complete corporate information and updates. This
facilitates shareholders and the public alike to understand the
Company's operation and value, the state of development. Should this
be well co-ordinated, this should contribute to the establishment of a
long term and mutual relationship between the Company, shareholders
and the public. In the meantime, the Company is able to make known
of its corporate culture, business philosophy, strategy and planning, as
well as industry changes. This would enable investors and the publicto
appreciate the Company’s positioning in the industry, business model
and competitive advantages, differentiating the Company from the
peers further. Internally, the Company takes shareholders and the
public’s independent and valuable opinion seriously. Through
dialogues, the Company would listen and consider their views, aiming
to enhance the Company's corporate governance.

CAPITAL MARKET RECOGNITION

Since the Listing in 2016, the Company has been researching diligently
on the capital markets and its expectation towards the Company.
Through various communication channels, the Company has built
effective and two-way relationships with shareholders, investors, fund
managers and analysts, other related parties in the capital markets and
the public. The Company is very honoured to receive many
recognitions in the capital market in the past year:

— In the last year, the Company became the subject of the
reports prepared by 22 domestic and international brokers.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BE

CREBEAERREAY LHRARREILEDL
MER 2 —  ERABRAFNEL - RFHAE
—EEBAY  BE  ZLIEMBRREREE
MRARERREE  BERERRND  BEA
ATAZEN—EETLEE - MREERE]
JEZE LM ARMBR - REKE - ARER
BENERBR - B REEFNE EHARR
MRTEE T - RRHEH - BE - ERNTENRE
SBYEH  FRRNARER N BEEME
B AREBERBER EASENG  &F
By RAIMEIR  ARERTRE - BN
& RS- ARAILERES FHEEXE - &
BT BRERE - (TROB(ESE  BRERA
AREBFRERERAMNITEEM - KERA
HHRED BRARRTHEZER - HA - Q[F3F
FEARRMAZNBUMEESR §BE
BERMER - HERE—TRITRADRE

BEARATHNR A

NAIB2016F LMK —EREGMEERE
AMIGIRIE - ERMSHATNME - BiEZ
BRBIBERER  REA  E2LE - 5
fh - BATISNED RAREIL T AREHH
R - BEM—F1E - REREKEFIEART
HREE MR

— BEFE RAREST2Z2HXEAME
B FERR MRS RE -



Investor Relationship

REEBR

MAJOR COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

1.

"Wechat Official Account” — Company’s latest news will
be updated weekly

Brokers, investment banks organized investor marketing
activities

Reverse roadshows — regularly invite investors to visit
our headquarters and communities we manage to
conduct onsite research

Twice a year results announcement and public briefing

Media reports

Wechat Official Account — “ # 3 iR 7% 2869IR” (only
available in Chinese version)

In order to maintain timely communication with the market, the
Company has set up the Wechat Official Account in 2016,
covering three main aspects: capital market development,
business development, and owner resident feedback. It is to
keep the market and the investors informed of the latest business
development in the business segments of the Company. The
contents include analyst reports, media coverage, awards,
strategic cooperation, takeover, new business plan, development
and growth of existing business etc. We reasonably and strictly
follow the rules to maintain information disclosure and
transparency as much as possible. Throughout the year of 2020,
the Company published 59 articles on Wechat in total, with an
average of 1.1 articles per week. Currently, we have more than
1,977 followers.

Marketing activities organized by brokers and
investment banks

The Company has participated in various roadshows and
conferences organized by brokers and investment banks in China,
met with a large number of investment institutions, and actively
maintained communication with the market. The Company is
pleased to interact with the investors and keep them informed of
the business development. During the Period, the Company met
with 939 investors in total (including repeated visits), representing
a significant increase in the number of investors and institutions
met compared to 2019. Meanwhile, the Company has
participated in various roadshows internationally, such as in
Singapore and London, to expand the base of overseas investors.
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Reverse Roadshow and Open Day — regularly invite 3. RENENMMAER — EHHE
shareholders and investors to visit our headquarters BER BEARGEBEEEERE
and communities we manage
During the Period, the Company held various Open-Day activities B RRZRXBRAMRBEY  £F)
and proactively conducted reverse roadshows, inviting investors, AERMAEBELE BEREA ED
fund managers, analysts and media to visit our headquarters as IR SATENFIIEEE - RAR B RE
well as communities under our management to conduct onsite EREEREMATFER  AMBERMME
research. It is an opportunity to showcase our various services AMEGRRARNSHER WHER
and operation openly to capital market, and follow up with BiETTalim o BEERE AT KEE -
management discussion. Given the increasing demand from 202025 - RAI—HAB T 6RERE
investors, throughout 2020 the Company organized 36 on-site B o
visits in total.
No. of reverse roadshows
REREHE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
No. of activities RN 23 43 64 36
No. of visitors 20AE 19 169 234 135 83
Twice a year results announcement and public briefing 4. SFEMXIEERGD

The two results announcements followed by briefing conducted
in the financial year, are great opportunities for the Company to
meet with a large number of shareholders and investors,
discussing business and prospects directly. Therefore the
Company actively engages, with great detail, in presenting our
core as well as the three service lines business. The impact is
noticeable.
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Investor Relationship

REEBR

5. Investment report from brokers and investment banks 5 38 BITNRERS

The Company is honoured to be recognized by the capital NAIRBEKE  BIFEAMISLS
market. In 2020, the Company received 68 reports. 20204F « AR HEGHFERBHME 68
7 e
NO. Brokers e 1] Rating LR
1 Morgan Stanley JEE AR+ 73R Add 4%
2 Zhongtai Securities FRFEH Add b
3 CLSA PEES Buy BEA
4 CITIC fEE S Buy BA
5 Guosheng Securities B 3% 55 5 Buy A
6 Tianfeng Securities ANEE Buy BEA
7 Nomura [SINECE Buy A
8 CITIC EEE R Buy EUN
9 Huatai HK ERDRIER Buy BA
10 HSBC ELEE Buy A
11 Everbright Securities HRFESH Buy BA
12 First Shangahi F— F Buy A
13 Soochow Securities HRFES Buy A
14 DBS ERIRTT Hold A
15 Northeast Securities HLEH Hold g
16 CMBI IR BT Hold KA
17 JP Morgan JEER KR Neutral R
18 UBS miRER Neutral A4
19 Goldman Sachs Gao Hua R Neutral At
20 BAML FEHREM Neutral At
21 cicc N Outperform AT
22 SWS RERR Outperform BERAT
23 Haitong Securities i3 EIES Outperform HE AT
24 Industrial Securities B2 B 5 Prudent TIE
Recommend
25  CRIC R E Prudent BEHIER
Recommend
26 Huachuang Securities EAIF S Recommend SR HE
27 Dongxing Securities RS Recommend BT
6. Improvement of Roadshows Information 6. KREERNE
Every roadshow represents a valuable opportunity for the BN EEHEARBREEARZRRNE
Company to communicate with the investors. Thus, the Company EHe  AFFBEZBEHN - PlnES
strives to optimize investors education through various methods BMme N PESTELES  FalaeH ML
including result presentation and corporate video. The Company WEBEHRE - NABIREREBENDGE
revises the presentation regularly and on-time, with reference to REENTRIBENESR  THEESE
the feedback from the investors, and the demand of the investors SRR o

at different stage.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEkaRERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Li Hairong (Z=i§%g), aged 63, was our sole Director from the date
of the incorporation of our Company until 26 November 2015 and was
re-designated as our chairman and executive Director on 27 November
2015. From June 1997 to September 1998, Ms. Li held various positions
at Greentown Property Group Co., Ltd. (4¢3 B b EE S B B R A &)
(being the wholly-owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900),
including being its vice general manager, executive vice general
manager and executive general manager. She joined our Group in
October 1998 and has been responsible for the development strategy
and strategic planning of our Group as well as for making decisions for
material operational matters. Ms. Li was the Chairman of Greentown
Property Management Service Group Co., Ltd. (“Greentown Property
Management”) from October 1998 to March 2018, and was also its
general manager from October 1998 to February 2011, where she was
primarily responsible for its overall management and daily operation.
She also served as the executive general manager of Greentown
Holdings Group Co. Ltd. (“Greentown Holdings”) from January 2006
to October 2015.

In addition, Ms. Li currently holds directorship in various other
subsidiaries of our Company.

Ms. Li graduated from the Department of Basic Specialized Training for
Party and Government Officials (2 & 12 # & E M HIEH}) of Zhejiang
Radio and Television University (#T) T E#EE 1R K E2) in Zhejiang Province,
the PRC.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (% Z£7£), aged 49, has been an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company since 27 November 2015.
He was appointed as the vice Chairman of the Board and ceased to be
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 23 March
2018. He is responsible for making decisions for material operational
matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing the
resolutions of the Board. Mr. Yang joined our Group in February 2002
and has served in various positions in Greentown Property
Management, including the assistant to general manager from April
2002 to March 2003, the vice general manager from March 2003 to
February 2008, the executive vice general manager from February 2008
to January 2009, the executive general manager from January 2009 to
February 2011, the general manager from February 2011 to March 2018
and the chairman of its board of directors since May 2019. He is also
the Chairman of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting Co. Ltd
(T 4% ¥4 5 3 2= 56 58 6 FR 2 &]) and is in charge of its development
strategy and strategic planning.
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Directors and Senior Management
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In addition, Mr. Yang currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Yang is the vice president of China Property Management
Association (F B2 E 2 1% ) and president of Hangzhou Property
Management Association (1 T ¥ % B 2 % €). He graduated from
Zhejiang University (47T KX 2) in Hangzhou, the PRC and Hunan University
(M KX2) in Changsha, the PRC majoring in real estate development
and management, and business administration, respectively.

Mr. Wu Zhihua (R EEE), aged 42, has been our executive Director since
27 November 2015 and been our Chief Executive Officer since 23
March 2018. On 4 August 2018, Mr. Wu was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer. He is responsible for the overall business operation
and daily management of our Group, making decisions for material
operational matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing
the resolutions of the Board. Before joining our Group, Mr. Wu worked
in Zhejiang Guesthouse Co., Ltd. (ML & fE B R A &) from July 2002
to June 2003. Mr. Wu joined our Group in June 2003 and was
subsequently promoted as the vice executive general manager and the
general manager of Zhejiang Lvsheng Property Management Company
Limited (T &AW EEIRFR A A]) from April 2008 to August 2008
and from August 2008 to December 2008, respectively. He also served
as the assistant to general manager, the vice general manager, the vice
executive general manager and Chairman of Greentown Property
Management from January 2009 to February 2011, from February 2011
to November 2014, from December 2014 to March 2018, and from
March 2018 to May 2019, respectively.

In addition, Mr. Wu currently holds directorships in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Wu is now the president of the Property Management Association
of Xihu District, Hangzhou (#T /N 71 75 4 [&@ #7 % & 2 # &). Mr. Wu
graduated from Zhejiang University (417 L X 2%) in Hangzhou, the PRC
with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in tourism management, and
obtained his master’s degree in science in quality management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (/& T AZ) in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chen Hao (F#7%), aged 51, has been our executive Director since
27 November 2015. He joined our Group in May 2015 as a vice general
manager primarily responsible for the management of community
products and services of the Group. He has been a director of
Greentown Property Management since November 2015 and a director
of Zhejiang Twin Cities Network Company Limited since April 2015. Mr.
Chen has served as a director of Hong Kong Hung Seun International
Resources Limited (&R EBIRERABMR A F]), a company primarily
engaged in trade of copper, market research and fund investment,
since October 2009. He is also the director of the Ningbo Yule
Investment Co. Ltd. (the joint venture of the Group) from August 2018
and holds the director position in MAG since July 2019. Mr. Chen
studied in Jiangsu Xinhai Senior High School (Tt #1/8=F ) (formerly
known as Jiangsu Xinhai Secondary School ((TE#RFT/GH £2)).

In addition, Mr. Chen currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shou Bainian (2484 ), aged 67, has been our non-executive Director
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Mr. Shou became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2000. Mr. Shou has more than 15
years' experience in the property development industry. He worked as
the vice executive chairman and the general manager of Greentown
Property Group Co., Ltd. (A& FEHEEBEER 2 F]) (being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900)) from April 1998 to
March 2015 and was primarily responsible for its overall business
operation and financial management. He is the director of Greentown
Holdings from January 2002 and is primarily responsible for its overall
business operation and financial management. He also served as the
executive director of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900) from July 2006 to April
2018. Mr. Shou is qualified as a senior economist (&= A4 AT) in enterprise
operation and management by Zhejiang Province Human Resources
and Social Security Department (3# /T & A 71 & )R Ml 4L & (R [& B2).
Mr. Shou graduated from Hangzhou University (F1/AX22) in Zhejiang
Province, the PRC with a bachelor’s degree majoring in history.
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Ms. Xia Yibo (E—J¥), aged 58, has been our non-executive Director
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Ms. Xia became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2002. Ms. Xia was the chairlady of
Hangzhou Greentown Decorating and Design Co., Ltd. (F1 AR EEE
FEFEMRAF]) from September 1996 to August 2002. Ms. Xia graduated
from the Department of Chinese of Zhejiang Radio and Television
University (L EE B AZ) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Mr. Wang Guangjian (E %), aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on é January 2020, graduated from Chongging University with
a master’s degree in technical economics and management in December
2001. Mr. Wang has served in Chongging Longhu Development
Company Limited (“Chongqing Longhu”) since 2000 and been the
chairman of the board of directors of Chongging Longhu at the end of
1 June 2020. Since 2017, Mr. Wang has served as the vice president of
Longfor Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 960) and the chairman of the board
of directors of Longhu Property Service Co. Ltd and has been
appointed as an executive director of Longfor Group Holdings Limited
on 24 March 2020. Since 2019, Mr. Wang has also served as the chief
executive officer of Guanyu Commercial Management Co. Ltd.
Furthermore, from February 2013 to December 2016, Mr. Wang was
the general manager of Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real Estate Co., Ltd.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (3% B8 Bl), aged 59, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 12 July 2016. He is responsible for
supervising and providing independent opinions to the Board. He
holds a master’s degree in international accounting, a post-graduate
diploma in laws, a bachelor’s degree in laws and a bachelor’s degree in
business studies. He has over 29 years of experience in regulatory
affairs, listed company corporate finance, listed companies governance
and management. He is an executive director, vice president and
company secretary of Huabao International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 336), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
Honghua Group Limited (Stock Code: 196), Yanzhou Coal Mining
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1171), AUX International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 2080), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 1292), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 631), Sunac China Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1918), Yuanda China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2789)
and Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (Stock Code:
2362). Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director of Tonly
Electronics Holdings Limited (whose shares were formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange until 8 March 2021). Mr. Poon was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of TUS International Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 872) from 1
September 2015 to 17 July 2020.

Mr. Poon was awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws and a
Bachelor degree in Business Studies and a Master degree in
International Accounting. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member of its Technical
Consultation Panel, Mainland China Focus Group and Audit Committee.
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Mr. Wong Ka Yi (E % H), aged 46, has been our independent non-
executive Director since 12 July 2016. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent opinions to our Board. Mr. Wong Ka Yi
currently serves as a director and investment director of Regent Capital
Management Co. Limited. He is a licensed person to conduct type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. He was a
director and investment director of HX Innovation Capital Management
Co. Limited from October 2017 to February 2019. He was a director
and investment director of China Metamorphosis Investment Limited
from June 2017 to October 2017. He was a managing director of
Fundatech Capital Limited from February 2015 to May 2018, worked as
a portfolio manager in HT Capital Management Limited and Munsun
Asset Management (Asia) Limited. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst
recognized by the CFA Institute. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Feng (Z[&), aged 62, has been our independent non-executive
Director since 5 December 2017, and he has years of rich experience in
property management industry and he currently is the general manager
of Shanghai Donghu Property Management Co., Ltd. (_E )& 55 ¥ %
B 12 A PR A 7). He served as management in Honggiao State Guest
Hotel Shanghai ( /84L& & £7), Dongjiao State Guest Hotel (A&
£8) and Shanghai Lilac Garden Hotel (/8T BHEE &) Mr. Liis a
vice president of China Property Management Association (/1 Bl 4 %
&1 €) and Shanghai Property Management Association (_E /&4
HEEEITEWE). He is also the vice director of the Industrial Research
Committee on China Property Management Association (4 B %) % &

EmEERERMERES).

Mr. Li was awarded as the Leader of the 25th anniversary of the Trade
Association of Shanghai Property Management ( E/8 T ¥ £ & B 1TE
W 25 FF RF|REEEAY) in 2019, the outstanding Entrepreneur
of 2018 Shanghai Modern Service Industry (2018 F /8RR RIS EEF
B2 %), Person of the Year of 2015 in Property Management Industry
(2015%) % & B 17 % F E A ¥) in 2015, Shanghai Brand Strategy
Implementation of 20 Years Influential 50 People (_-/8 2 & & B & 5 20
FHFE50 ) in 2014, Shanghai World Expo Advanced Individual (£
8t 8 & 56 # {8 A) in 2010 and China’s Economy 100 Outstanding
Figures (FF B A4 % B & 4 1 A #) in 2003. Mr. Li was qualified as a
senior economist by Shanghai Accreditation Committee for the
Qualifications of Senior Professional and Technical Positions Majoring
in Commercial and Industrial in the Economic Field ( /& T 4L 7 51| T
ARBEXSREXRMBBEBERETEZ B ). He was also
qualified as a Shanghai government procurement review expert (/&
BT REFFEER). He graduated from Shanghai University (_E/8 X
£) in Shanghai, the PRC with a master's degree majoring in management
engineering.
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Ms. Wu Aiping (RE ), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2020, graduated
from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s degree in Finance in July
1987. Ms. Wu obtained the qualification of Certified Public Accountant
from the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1998 and became a Certified Public Valuer and a Certified Tax Agents
in February 2007 and December 2011, respectively. From March 2003
to December 2015, Ms. Wu had held various positions in the group
companies of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3900)), including
the roles of deputy chief accountant, manager of the audit department,
manager of the finance department, assistant to the general manager
and deputy general manager.

Senior Management
For details of Mr. Wu Zhihua (R E%E), please refer to the sub-section
headed “— Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Jin Keli (£%E), aged 38, has been our Chief Operating Officer
since 23 March 2018. She is responsible for management work in
relation to the overall operation of our Group as well as for
management of administration and human resources. Ms. Jin joined
our Group in May 2006, and served as administrative president and
executive general manager of Zhejiang Xinhu Lvcheng Property Service
Company Limited (47T ¥4  # 2 BR 7% BR 2 B1) from January 2012
to January 2014, and from January 2014 to July 2017, respectively. She
also worked as the assistant to president, vice president and president
of Greentown Property Management from February 2015 to July 2017,
from August 2017 to March 2018 and from March 2018 to present,
respectively. Ms. Jin graduated from China University of Political
Science and Law (FFEIBUEARZE), with a bachelor's degree majoring in
philosophy.

Mr. Yuan Weidong (R &), aged 51, has been our Chief Technology
Officer since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for the coordination
and operation of the “smart community” project of our Group. Prior to
joining our Group in November 2014, Mr. Yuan worked in NEC
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (B B @& A R 2 ) from July 1992 to
May 2002 as the head of the engineering technology department and
the general manager of eastern China region. He also worked as the
vice executive general manager of Zhejiang Ronghui Communications
Equipment Co., Ltd. (/T b IE 8 15 2 8 IR A 7)) from May 2002 to
May 2014. Mr. Yuan has been a Senior Engineer in Electronic
Information authorized by Tianjin Municipal Personnel Bureau (K2
AZE /@) since October 2001. He graduated from Jilin University (& #&
AKZ)in Changchun, the PRC in July 1992 with a bachelor’s degree majoring
in electronics and information systems.
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Mr. Zhou Hong (B ), aged 54, he is now our Chief Safety Officer, he
joined the Group in October 1998, he is now also vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited (435 ¥ ¥ RIS B R A 7).
He is now responsible for the security management operation of the
Group. He has also been the general manager of Greentown Property
Service Company Limited (Shanghai Branch) (4k 3 ¥ % Bk 75 /85 A )
from February 2013 to August 2018.

Ms. Weng Yafei (§E:7%), aged 41, she is now our Chief Quality Officer,
she is now responsible for the management of the service quality and
customer relationship of the Group. Ms. Weng joined the Group in
June 2001, she is now vice president of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited. She has been the general manager of Greentown
Property Service Company Limited (5th branch) since February 2013
and she was the general manager of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited (Chongqging Branch) from February 2015 to
November 2016. Ms. Weng graduated from the Program of
Management of Xi‘an Jiaotong University (78 &2 2 i K £) in Shaanxi
Province, the PRC.

Ms. Xu Yaping (#R3E3%), aged 41, she is now our Chief Marketing Officer,
she is now responsible market development of our Group. Ms. Xu
joined the Group in October 1998, she is now vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited. She has held various
position of the Group, including being vice general manager of
Greentown Real Estate Consulting Group Company Limited (4T 4%
FE i EE RS E) (formerly known as Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate
Consulting Group Company Limited (AT LR E I EFREBEGR A
A])). She has also been the general manager of Greentown Real Estate
Consulting Group Company Limited with effect since January 2013.
Ms. Xu graduated from the Program of Marketing of Hangzhou
Commercial School (F1/N &2 B3 ) in Hangzhou City, the PRC.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company carried out the global offering (the “Global Offering”)
on 28 June 2016, comprising of 777,776,000 Shares at HK$1.99 per
Share. For details of the relevant use of proceeds, please see the
section headed “Use of Net Proceeds from Listing” below.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of residential
property management services in the PRC, which includes three types
of services: property services, consulting services and community living
services. An analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 142 to 143 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.120
per ordinary share (2019: HK$0.075) and a special dividend of HK$0.080
per ordinary share (2019: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The final dividend and special dividend are subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the AGM to be held on 18 June 2021 and will be paid
on or before 13 July 2021 to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 24 June 2021.

No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend is the embodiment of the operational capability of the
Company, which is also a commitment to share the results of the
Company'’s growth with all shareholders. The payment and the amount
of dividends (if any) depend on our results of operation, cash flows,
financial position, future prospects, and other factors that we may
consider relevant. Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company
disclosed in the Prospectus, and combined with the payments of the
dividends after Listing, we intend to pay dividends in the amount of
not less than 25% of our profit after tax for each year. Annual dividend
is subject to the approval of general meeting of shareholders. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the laws
of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing, a discussion on the Group's future
business development and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period using key financial performance indicators
are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 23
to 43 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been working on sustainable development and
environmental protection. We spare no effort in making the most out
of resources in our business. Laws and regulations in terms of
environment and health are strictly complied with. Meanwhile, the
Group holds various activities to promote environmental protection in
our business. Our goal is to educate proprietors and all walks of life on
creating a green city for the future.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group clearly understands the importance of regulatory
compliance and the risk of non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. To the best of the Board's knowledge, during the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2020, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the sales revenue from the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
total purchases.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 31(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 31(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and pages 146 to 147 of this annual
report under the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity”.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution (including share premium, share option reserve and
retained earnings of the Company), amounted to approximately
RMB4,722,675,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,103,063,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of bank loans was RMB146.5
million. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no bank loans
regarded to be recorded. The Group is flush with cash.
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References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 29
March 2019, 11 April 2019 and 21 June 2019, respectively. On 21 June
2019, Greentown Education, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as borrower, and the Company and Greentown Property
Service Group Co. Ltd, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, collectively, as the guarantors entered into the Facility
Agreement and related financing documents with the Lender in
relation to the Loan in the principal amount of USD49 million with a
term of three years. The Company pledged to the Lender 100% equity
of Greentown Education together with all ancillary rights and claims
associated with the equity upon the completion.

The Loan was fully repaid on 3 July 2020 and the Pledge was
deregistered on 10 September 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Shou Bainian

Ms. Xia Yibo

Mr. Wang Guangjian (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu
Zhihua, Mr. Chen Hao, Ms. Xia Yibo, and Mr. Wong Ka Yi shall retire by
rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 26 April 2021.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 48 to 55 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of three years
subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years, which may be renewable subject to both parties’
agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or entity connected
with the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company was set up for reviewing the Group's emolument policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior managements and
comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with applicable PRC regulations, the Company currently
participates in pension contribution plans organized by the PRC
Government. Such pension contribution plan is a defined contribution
plan, under which, the Company may not utilize any forfeited
contributions (i.e. by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) in order to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S INFORMATION

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok resigned as an independent non-executive
director of TUS International Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 872) on 17 July 2020. Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of Tonly Electronics Holdings
Limited (whose shares were formerly listed on the Stock Exchange until
8 March 2021).

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirmed that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND CHANGES

IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEES

On 6 January 2020, Mr. Wang Guangjian was appointed as a non-
executive Director and Ms. Wu Aiping was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), Remuneration Committee
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company. For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 January 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERBRSTRAERRAD - HHE
ROREESTHEENEER AR

2020612 A31H » EFRARAHZR®ITH
ABBEARBGESF MGG ((BERH
BEHRBIDDEXVEET RS EMNE KRR A
KR RN R RIS E AT AR OAE (BER A
(FE 7 MHIE 5P XV ER) BB ~ ERER D
KiE#ENERD AR (BRREB(GES NS
RPDB R FIRXEFRE FRE R EAE
@ MORR) - HRECE F R E 5P )5 352
HBEBLRNATHREFIECH  HRELETR
AP SR P EMBEITAERETESRR
ZHIREST A ((BESF A ) ARG AAR R
B PR ROk RN

(i) Interests in Shares of the Company (i) MEATIRGHER
Number of
underlying
shares held
pursuant
to the share Approximate
options granted  Percentage of
under the share  Shareholding
option scheme in the Long/short
Capacity/ Number of adopted on Company position/
Name of Director Note Nature of Interest Shares 25 May 2018 (%) Lending pool
BER 2018 F
5 F 25 A4
BRET RN
BIREET s REDEH #R/ KR/
EEnA W 56/ #EutE ROBE HEROHE #HOBREIHL ARG
Mr. Shou Bainian (1,3) Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 - 31.68 Long position
SHFEE corporation e
XEHERES
Ms. Xia Yibo (2,3) Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 - 31.68 Long position
ERi N corporation HE

XL B
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Number of
underlying
shares held
pursuant
to the share  Approximate
options granted  Percentage of
under the share  Shareholding
option scheme in the Long/short
Capacity/ Number of adopted on Company position/
Name of Director Note Nature of Interest Shares 25 May 2018 (%) Lending pool
REN2018F
5 A 25 A kH
BRETHREN
BIREE T FriEm NG : #e/ KE/
B Wi 56 EntE ROEA HRRAHE HAERBEIL AR AR 47
Ms. Li Hairong @) Interest of a controlled 423,868,339 - 13.16 Long position
ENS S corporation HE
REGEE RS
(5)  Interest of spouse 28,000,000 - 0.87 Long position
[T S e
(6)  Beneficial interest - 800,000 0.02 Long position
ot iod (underlying shares HE
under the share
options)
(BREETH
HEERMEE)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa (7)  Beneficial interest 60,000,000 - 1.86 Long position
BEEEE EniEn e
(8)  Beneficial interest - 3,000,000 0.09 Long position
ot iod (underlying shares HE
under the share
options)
(BREETH
HEERMEE)
Mr. Wu Zhihua (9)  Beneficial interest 30,000,000 - 093 Long position
REERE ot iod e
(10)  Beneficial interest - 4,142,000 0.13 Long position
ot iod (underlying shares HE
under the share
options)
(BREETH
HEERMEE)
Mr. Chen Hao (1) Beneficial interest - 2,500,000 0.08 Long position
BESE ot ot (underlying shares HE
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Notes:

Mr. Shou Bainian holds all issued shares in Lily International Investment
Company Limited (“Lily International Investment”), which holds 39% of the
issued shares in Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited (“Orchid
Garden Investment”).

Ms. Xia Yibo holds all issued shares in Shenalan International Investment
Company Limited (“Shenalan International Investment”), which holds 21%
of the issued shares in Orchid Garden Investment. Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse
of Mr. Song Weiping.

Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited (“Osmanthus Garden
Investment”), Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid Garden
Investment. Therefore, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International
Investment and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties
acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping (the holder of all issued shares of Osmanthus
Garden Investment), Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all
deemed to be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden
Investment (being 1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Ms. Li Hairong holds all issued shares of Lilac International Investment.
Accordingly, Ms. Li Hairong is deemed to be interested in the total Shares
directly held by Lilac International Investment (being 423,868,339 Shares in
total).

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated 27
December 2019 and 6 January 2020, respectively. Lilac International
Investment (as vendor), Sail Link (a subsidiary of Longfor Group Holdings
Limited (“Longfor Group”), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 960), as purchaser), Ms. Li Hairong and
Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding) Limited (“Juntion
Development”, a subsidiary of Longfor Group) (each as a guarantor) agreed
to enter into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the sale and
purchase of 139,465,661 Shares. Prior to the Share Sale, Lilac International
Investment held 563,334,000 Shares. After completion of the Share Sale,
which took place on 6 January 2020, Lilac International Investment holds
423,868,339 Shares.

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Ju Jianhua is interested in.
Mr. Ju Jianhua was awarded 28,000,000 Shares as one of the grantees under
the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme (as defined in the Prospectus) and, thus, is
the beneficial owner of 28,000,000 Shares.

SO S 445 A Lily International Investment
Company Limited ([Lily International
Investment|) FT & B # 17 §% {7 - i Lily
International Investment 3§/ Orchid Garden
Investment Company Limited ([Orchid
Garden Investment ) #939% 2 1T/ {5 °

E — ¥ & £ % A Shenalan International
Investment Company Limited ([ ShenaLan
International Investment|) fT 5 B % 17 i
3+ il Shenalan International Investment
A Orchid Garden Investment f)21% 2 % 17
f&th o BE— R LT RARETFLENERS -

Osmanthus Garden Investment Company
Limited ([Osmanthus Garden Investment ) *
Lily International Investment }z Shenalan
International Investment % i Orchid Garden
Investment@ A 2 S RO M= - Mt
Osmanthus Garden Investment ~ Lily
International Investment 2 Shenalan

International Investment##% A —EBITEIAL ©

It R @& F % 4 (A Osmanthus Garden
Investment fTA B 2T 2 #HB A) « 348
FRERE-RZTERBESENHERA
&) ( BlOsmanthus Garden Investment * Lily
International Investment &2 Shenalan
International Investment) # 1% % 7 Orchid
Garden Investment B #1578 KR 19 42 8k
A (B4 #£1,020,000,000 BRAR )

288254 Lilac International Investment
FIABETRD - Bl THRLZTHRA
# Lilac International Investment B # 5 & &)
P& 1) 48 2ok 75 # 2 (B & 2£423,868,339 %
&)

AR AR R DRI HR2019F 124278 &
202061 A6H 2z A & o Lilac International
Investment (YE/& & 77 ) ~ Sail Link (325 &
TRAEMRAF ([EWEE]) - ERMOARER
FrER £ (RGBSR 960) 2B AR
EREBER)  THRZTREAEREBER
BRAR(EARR] EHEBEZHEA
7)) (D RIERERA) B 139,465,661 RAZ1H
ZEBIVEEGH  ETROBEEA
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6B 52K - Lilac International Investment 3
B ARA R 423,868,339 &% 19
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6  FEEZTRZERENERBEAA -

() Ms. Li Hairong is the holder of the share options.

7) Mr. Yang Zhangfa is a beneficial owner of the Shares.
(8) Mr. Yang Zhangfa is the holder of the share options.
9 Mr. Wu Zhihua is a beneficial owner of the Shares.
(100 Mr. Wu Zhihua is the holder of the share options.

(1) Mr. Chen Hao is the holder of the share options.

(i) Interests in associated corporations

(7 BEREERZERONERFEEA
® BEERRERZERENEREAA -
© REERLERZEROHNERBEAA -
(10 REEEERZBEENERFEEA

) BEERERZBEENESEAA -

(i) RAEBEZENER

Number of  Approximate

Nature of Name of associated issued share percentage of
Name interest corporation capital interest  shareholding
BT BARR
=S EEME EEEE AR RAEZHE Bak
(%)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa Beneficial interest Shenyang Greentown N/A 20.00
Property Services
Company Limited
BEELE gt e EGRMEREER AR TEA 20.00

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFQO), or required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate or had exercised any such right.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Br AT R SN - 20204512 A 31
B BMEZEEXAAQTZSTRAER
AR RERE LB (F & A(EH LY
BIEBINE XV ER) M%) - MR D Sk E
EER - EERB(GESMBEKRNDSE
XVEE7 R85 F A E AN A A KR
FrtEm sk e (BREREGES MPE
BODMZEBRNESEWEERRAES
Mz AR AR RIBE(GES
N HRE &) )YE 352 (& B T B Z M
A AR BRIREST RIZEME AN A K
RETH TR TORE o

EERERDEREZER

BRRAFRPAWEEIN - AR B HEEMHE
ARR IR E HIE TS R R SR 2Bk
HEESAEBEANR RS EMEMEARR
ik fEEEMER  BEXBEFHRE A
B8R A A F R ER TERERN AR
AR B RAE A EAEA B R R A KB =
7 REITEEMRFEN -



Report of Directors

EEEWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

FERRRRS RAEBEREG DA
BmRAR

202012 A31H » REFFRA - THAL
(AFEFHARAZHTRAR)RARBK
0 BRI D h A AR IBCRE 5 R B 1R H))F
XVERE 2R3N BAAARARFRELE ELR
AR AR AECRE 75 R B R G1) S 336 (R B T
Trz BRMAZERIOXE -

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding in Long/short

Capacity/Nature Number of the Company position/
Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool
RARQ R
BARR  HE %R
i 54 REttE RHEE BOL (%) AHEHNRG
Orchid Garden Investment Beneficial interest 1,020,000,000 31.68 Long position
(Note 1) (&£ 1) B e
Osmanthus Garden Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 31.68 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 20512 ZEGEEER a5}
Mr. Song Weiping Notes 1.2 Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 31.68 Long position
R 55 -2 FR A A
Lily International Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 31.68 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 3 (1 - 3) EiEHEE R HE
Ms. Yao Huanjing Nete4 Interest of spouse 1,020,000,000 31.68 Long position
P E L e FoiBrER e
Shenalan International Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 31.68 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 9 (i 15 ZEGEEER a5}
Lilac International Beneficial interest 423,868,339 13.16 Long position
Investment Mote & (it &) Bafs e
Mr. Ju Jianhua Mote7) Interest of spouse 424,668,339 13.19 Long position
PR EE o 4 (M) FoiBtEs a5}
Beneficial interest 28,000,000 0.87 Long position
a3 e
Longfor Group Holding Ltd. ™*® |nterest of a controlled corporation 294,674,363 9.15 Long position
EAEEERAR LD R M XEHEEER e
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Notes:

Orchid Garden Investment is owned as to 40.0%, 39.0% and 21.0% by Osmanthus
Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment, respectively.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid
Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment
and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Osmanthus Garden Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song
Weiping is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Osmanthus Garden
Investment for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Song Weiping is the spouse
of Ms. Xia Yibo.

Lily International Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Shou Bainian. Mr. Shou Bainian
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lily International Investment for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Yao Huanjing is the spouse of Mr. Shou Bainian. Therefore, Ms. Yao Huanjing is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Shou Bainian is interested in.

Shenalan International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Xia Yibo. Ms. Xia Yibo is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shenalan International Investment.
Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song Weiping.

Lilac International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Hairong. Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lilac International Investment for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated 27 December
2019 and 6 January 2020. Lilac International Investment (as vendor), Sail Link (a
subsidiary of Longfor Group, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 960), as purchaser), Ms. Li Hairong and Juntion Development
(a subsidiary of Longfor Group) (each as a guarantor) agreed to enter into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the Share Sale. Prior to the Share Sale, Lilac
International Investment held 563,334,000 Shares. After completion of the Share
Sale, which took place on 6 January 2020, Lilac International Investment holds
423,868,339 Shares.

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Mr. Ju Jianhua is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Ms. Li Hairong is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua
was awarded 28,000,000 Shares as one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme (as defined in the Prospectus) and, thus, is the beneficial owner of
28,000,000 Shares.

To the knowledge of the Directors, Longfor Group held 294,674,363 Shares through
the companies under its control.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Orchid Garden Investment F§ Osmanthus Garden
Investment - Lily International Investment ;&
Shenalan International Investment % 51| 4 40.0%
39.0% & 21.0% iz ©

F 7 Osmanthus Garden Investment * Lily International
Investment }2 Shenalan International Investment &
i#8 Orchid Garden Investment [ 12 % 4 B% 5 #E 25 -
Osmanthus Garden Investment ~ Lily International
Investment 2 Shenalan International Investment #

BR—BITBHAL-

Hit - REFEE  SHFLERE— KLt &
R %% & 84 B H 2 7 BlOsmanthus Garden
Investment ~ Lily International Investment &
Shenalan International Investment) * 18 BlEA
Orchid Garden Investment B £ # 5 #) 2 20 f& 15 4
% (B4 #£1,020,000,000 BRAR S )

Osmanthus Garden Investment i R {5 °F % 4+ 2 & 1
Ao IEHFRHEERINEXVHME  REFLEE
%18 /& % 5B Osmanthus Garden Investment F 35 &
WA R - RETFAERE B THER -

Lily International Investment (1 55 10 F & 4 & & #
B EFRBMEREDEXVIME - FAFEE
AR B ¥EA Lily International Investment FT#% A 8%

s -

R ELLTIBHFRENRE - Bt hizE X
TR BSHF LA RENBRMAORELS

Shenalan International Investment f3 & —Jf Z - %
BB E— KX+ HB A EHBShenalan
International Investment FT#5 B MR (D  E— K
ZTRREF MRS -

Lilac International Investment A 2§ £ 2z £ 2 &
B EHFRHERINDEXVHmE  TEELL
1% B ¥ A Lilac International Investment FT#5 4 #9
ftn 2w o

ZARMA AR S BRI 2019612 B 27 B K& 20204 1
A 68 Z A% - Lilac International Investment ({E %
EF) - Sail Link (BEMEE - ERGOREZTER
RN : 960) ZHBAR - tERER) - =8
KL RFARRENEE2HBLR) (DRIER
ERAN)BBROBEILESHZE - BETTROEE
A - Lilac International Investment$ & & 2 &
563,334,000 A% i 17 = Rt 85 & M 2020551 R 6 H 58
X 1% - Lilac International Investmenti¥ A &N 2 &)
423,868,339 & 17 ©

BMEESEDTERLTOERS - Bt - EEL
AR BEA BB R LT EA SRR MR -
BMRELERBRARTENROIEDFE(EERR
BIRE)WER —FERA - BT 28,000,000 i ik
1 #tt + 28,000,000 RN HIEZSHEE A ©

BEEMMN BYVEEREBEERNRAFE
294,674,363 &I An



Report of Directors

EEEWRE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, to the knowledge of
the Directors, they were not aware of any persons (who were not
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

Share Options
The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 May 2018 (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

Please refer to the circular of the Group dated 24 April 2018 for details.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties who are working for the interests of the Group an
opportunity to obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus aligning
their interest with the interests of the Group and thereby providing
them with an incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the employees of the Group
(including Directors and Senior Management) and such other persons
as the Board may consider appropriate may be granted options which
entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company, up to
a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company as of 25 May
2018, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the
Shareholders to renew the said limit or the Shareholders specifically
approve the grant.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the amount payable by a
grantee on acceptance of a grant of the option is HK$1.00 (or its
equivalent in RMB or any other currency acceptable to the Company).

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
to each participant in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue. Any further grant of options which would result in the
number of the Shares issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit
must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting at which
such participant and his or her associates must abstain from voting.
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Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director, chief
executive, or substantial Shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associate must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors, excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by the
Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall expire
no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 11
September 2018. On 11 September 2018, the Company issued a total
of 133,500,000 share options to a number of Directors and employees,
subject to acceptance by the grantees. Since some of the grantees are
no longer eligible participants or do not meet the issuing conditions,
22,097,450 share options have automatically lapsed in accordance with
the Rules of the Company’s Share Options Plan for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 23
January 2020. On 23 January 2020, the Company issued a total of
33,150,000 share options to an associate of an independent non-
executive Director, a senior management of the Company, as well as
certain employees of the Group, subject to acceptance by the
grantees. Since some of the grantees are no longer eligible
participants or do not meet the issuing conditions, 2,680,000 share
options have automatically lapsed in accordance with the Rules of the
Company'’s Share Options Plan for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 14
September 2020. On 14 September 2020, the Company issued a total
of 25,770,000 share options to an associate of an independent non-
executive Director and certain employees of the Group, subject to
acceptance by the grantees. Since some of the grantees are no longer
eligible participants or do not meet the issuing conditions, 530,000
share options have automatically lapsed in accordance with the Rules
of the Company’s Share Options Plan for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Each of the share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is
conditional upon the achievement of certain performance objectives as
set out in the respective offer letters, including but not limited to the
respective job objectives as determined by the Group, and subject to a
waiting period of 12 months from the date on which the Grantee has
achieved the length of service in the Group.
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As at 31 December 2020, Share Options for the total number of
231,966,925 Shares (representing approximately 7.2% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the report (i.e.
3,234,621,177 Shares)) available for issue under Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least and the
highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of a share
option which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black-Scholes model. Reference is made to the note 28 of
the financial statements of the annual report. Regard to the subjectivity
and uncertainty of the values of options to the effect that such values
are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the
limitation of the model.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 25 May 2028 and the
remaining life of this scheme is around 7 years and 1 month.
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Details of the share options granted, exercised, lapsed and cancelled & ZE2020F 12 A31BILFE - A A RIBRIEE
by the Company in accordance with the Share Option Scheme for the  FRIETEIEFEHE - E17# - AR R D FEHN

year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: AR RERE B E AT ¢
The weighted
average
No. of Share No. of Share closing price  Closing price
Options  No. of Share  No. of Share  No. of Share  No. of Share Options immediately of the Shares
Outstanding Options Options Options Options  Outstanding before the  immediately
atthe  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed atthe Year during which Exercise exercise date  before the
Beginning during during during during End of Share Options are Price per ~ of the options date of grant
of the Year the Year the Year the Year the Year the Year  Date of Grant Exercisable Share (HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
HREEE  ROERE
fkEH  EhAH
£4 £R £R £R £R L3 ZAfE P i
HATTHR Rk BN SHEN Rl ERGRE BROGE FHUTE LG
Name of Grantee BETALS BREZE BREHE BREHE BREHE BREZE BREEA  RUEH HRRRENSR (%7) (%) (#7)
Director iz
Ms. Li Hairong E3i] 800,000 - - - - 800000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6116 - 606
N18F9A11H to 10 September 2028
N19F9ANAE
NBEIA10A
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BERTE 3,000,000 - - - - 3000000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6116 = 606
018F9A 1A to 10 September 2028
N9F9ANAE
NBFIA108
Mr. Wu Zhihua REERE 4,500,000 - 358,000 - - 4142000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6.116 10720 606
N1BEIANE to 10 September 2028
N9FIANEE
NBEIA10E
Mr. Chen Hao [yt 2,500,000 - - - - 2500000 11 September2018  From 11 September 2019 6.1 - 6.0

018F9A 1A to 10 September 2028
N19F9A1AE
NBEIA10A

Subtotal gt 10,800,000 - 358,000 - - 10442000
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The weighted
average
No. of Share No. of Share closing price  Closing price
Options  No. of Share  No. of Share  No. of Share  No. of Share Options immediately  of the Shares
Outstanding Options Options Options Options  Outstanding before the  immediately
atthe  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed atthe Year during which Exercise exercise date  before the
Beginning during during during during End of Share Options are Price per ~ of the options date of grant
of the Year the Year the Year the Year the Year the Year  Date of Grant Exercisable Share (HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
HREEE  ROERE
fkEH  EhAH
£4 £R £R £R £R L3 ZAfE P i
HATTHR Rl BN SHEN Rl ERGEE BROGE FHUTE LG
Name of Grantee BEFALS BREZE BREHE BREHE BREHE BREZE BREEA  RUEH R RERENSR (%7) (%) (#7)
Employees BI
Certain employees from  ARFMHEAR - 93054825 - 8,435,100 - 4160800 80458925 11 September2018  From 11 September 2019 6116 9802 606
subsidiaries, associates, BEEAFR NI8E9A1E to 10 September 2028
andjoint venturesof  AEGEA N19F9A118%
the Company (other than & FES NBEIA10A
the connected person ()L TR EH
as disclosed below) BALRN
- 32,940,000 - - 2680000 30260000 23 January 2020 From 23 January 2020 9.214 - 9.3
NNF1ABA to 22 January 2030
NNF1ABAZ
N0E1A2A
- 25450000 - - 530000 24920000 14 September 2020 From 14 September 2020 930 - 909
N0F9A 1A to 13 September 2030
NNFIAUBE
N059A138
Subtotal Nt 93054825 58,390,000 8,435,100 - 7370800 135638925
Connected Person ~~ BEAL
Ms. Lv Hanyao BilERT - 210000 - - - 20000 23 January 2020 From 23 January 2020 9.214 - 9.3
N0F1ABE to 22 January 2030
NNFIABEE
N0F1A2E
- 320,000 - - - 320000 14 September 2020 From 14 September 2020 930 - 9.09
ANNE9A14A to 13 September 2030
NNEIAURE
N0EIA1IA
Subtotal gt - 530,000 - - - 530,000
Total a3 103854825 58,920,000 8,793,100 - 7310800 146,610,925
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme (as defined in the
Prospectus) and Share Option Scheme, the Company has no equity-
linked agreements that were entered into or subsisted during the year
of 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESSES

Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza Property Management
Company Limited (“Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza")

As at 31 December 2020, Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza is
indirectly owned by Greentown Holdings (which is indirectly owned by
Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo as to 40%, 39%
and 21%, respectively) as to 98.75%. Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza
is engaged in the business of property management, housing and
building facilities maintenance and repair, the provision of gardening
services, cleaning services, home services, renovation services and
parking services. The business operated by Zhejiang Greentown
Century Plaza is subject to a non-competition undertaking executed by
Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza in favour of our Company on 13
January 2016 (as supplemented by a confirmation letter dated 7 March
2016) (the “"Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking”).

For further details of Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza and the

Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.
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Excluded Group
The below entities (the "Excluded Group”) have limited competition
with the Group, details of which are set out as follows:

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company Limited
("Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2020, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering is
a company established under the laws of the PRC in September 2005
and owned as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company
Limited ("Hangzhou Dangui Investment”) and 50% by Hangzhou
Guangri Elevator Engineering Co., Ltd., an independent third party.
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering is engaged in the business
of elevator repair and maintenance services as well as carrying out
actual repair work. Our Group's property management services relating
to elevators are limited to regular inspection of the normal operation
of elevators and supervision of maintenance and repair work relating to
elevators.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition undertakings entered into
amongst Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment, Shenalan
International Investment and Orchid Garden Investment (the
“Covenantors”) on 13 June 2016 (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally, with the Company that he/she/it shall
not, and shall procure that its/his/her associates (other than members
of the Group) shall not directly carry on, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to, provide
any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or interested in,
whether alone or jointly with another person and whether directly or
indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in concert with any other
person, any business or investment activities in the PRC and Hong
Kong which is the same as, similar to or in competition or likely to be in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be carried
on by any member of the Group from time to time.

For details of the Deed of Non-competition, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
Shareholders confirming their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Reporting Period for disclosure in this annual
report.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting
Period based on the information and confirmation provided by or
obtained from the controlling Shareholders, and were satisfied that the
controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the Deed of Non-
competition.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THE LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling Shareholders under Rule
13.18 of the Listing Rules

On 21 June 2019, Greentown Education, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (as borrower), and the Company and
Greentown Property Service Co. Ltd, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (collectively, as guarantors) entered into the
Facility Agreement and related financing documents with the Lender,
in relation to the Loan.

Under the Facility Agreement, Greentown Education and the Company
undertakes that, Mr. Song Weiping (a controlling Shareholder), Ms. Li
Hairong and the persons acting in concert with them (collectively, the
“Subject Shareholders”), will maintain no less than 25% ownership of
the Company in aggregate, either directly or indirectly, and they shall
collectively remain as the largest Shareholder in the Company. Failure
of the Subject Shareholders to comply with the aforesaid obligations
could constitute an event of default under the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2020, the Subject Shareholders were collectively
interested in approximately 57.76% of the total issued Shares.

The Loan was fully repaid on 3 July 2020 and the Subject Shareholders
have ceased to be subject to the aforesaid obligations since.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29 March
2019, 11 April 2019 and 21 June 2019 for further details.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following parties are our connected persons.

REBRERS
THEH ARMOBEAL -

1. Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering WIRBEEHTE
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering, a company IR EBEBRIREANTEKIMNE
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged BAF TBEKASETHIZHESH
in the provision of elevator maintenance services in the PRC HARTS - H50% MR BMMNAHERE
which is held as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment (with A (E51% R AR B ARIER (2 A
51% of its equity interest being held by Greentown Holdings AIRREFELEE  SAFEERE—F
(which is indirectly owned as to 40%, 39% and 21% by Mr. Song Lo RIEEEE 40% - 39% K& 21% 1
Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, respectively), and )RR - HERA9% RAER B EREKE
the remaining 49% equity interest being held by Ningbo RECELCE(BRER)FE %%
Ronghua Investment LLP (Z R SR ERE S B P X (ARG ®)), M¥E L+ RFB LD RIFEHB80%
which is in turn held as to 80% and 20% by Ms. Ju Yao (¥8#%) and K 20%  MABHBEGELZTHREK
Ms. Li Haizhi (Z78:2) (both family members of Ms. Li Hairong). E)VEE B IRERERE TR ARE
Therefore, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering is an FRE -BSHFEE E—RELZLEE
associate of Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo HETTHBMBA - WARQRREE
and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a connected person of the AT e
Company.

2. Zhejiang Lansong Supply Chain Management Company WIEEMEEEERR AR (E

Limited (“Lansong Supply Chain")

Lansong Supply Chain is held as to 51% and 49% by Zhejiang
Greentown Community Service Group Company Limited (a
subsidiary of the company) and Bluetown Agricultural Technology
Company Limited (“Bluetown Agricultural Technology”),
respectively. Bluetown Agricultural Technology is wholly-owned
by Bluetown China Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-
owned by Delta House Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through
his wholly-owned company Osmanthus Garden Investment, is
indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment, a
controlling Shareholder which holds approximately 31.71% of the
total issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Song Weiping is
also the spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo, a non-executive Director.
Lansong Supply Chain is therefore an associate of Mr. Song
Weiping and hence was a connected person of the Company.
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Zhejiang Greentown Football Club Company Limited 3. WMIKRBERELBERAF (M
(“Zhejiang Greentown Football Club”) SRR R BRIBLEER )
Zhejiang Professional Football Club Co. Ltd. (“Zhejiang AT ¥ R IRELI AR AT ([HI&
Greentown Football Cub”, formerly known as “Zhejiang WEBRE LI B [T ERE
Greentown Football Club Co., LTD."), was originally 50%-owned SIWERDT ) - R B ERINIER KT
by Greentown Holding and Zhejiang Greentown Education BHBBEREESHEA % - Bt
Investment an associate of Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian BREFLLE SHFLERE—RK
and Ms. Xia Yibo and hence a connected person of the Company. TBEA WEAmMARRT ZEBEA
+ .
On 4 September 2020, Greentown Holdings and Zhejiang 20209 A48 » BRI BT 8RR ZL
Greentown Education Investment transferred their respective BEEABHEZE BB AN LG EEE
shares of Zhejiang Greentown Football Club to Zhejiang Energy LR R RS T IR REBR AR
Group Co., Ltd. (a company controlled by the State-owned RE—FREMIEAARBNREEEERE
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Zhejiang BEERZEEMEHNAR)  AltB
Provincial People’s Government). Since 4 September 2020, 20205F9 R4 B1& - ATTARMUR IRIBLEH
Zhejiang Greentown Football Club was 100% owned by AR B E S B A R R B M T A B
Greentown Real Estate Group Co., Ltd and Zhejiang Energy BEEARARA A 100% HI X AE -
Group Co. Ltd. Since Greentown Holdings and Zhejiang BRI AN TS EIRE TS
Greentown Education Investment no longer hold any interest in AT AR R BB LT T
Zhejiang Greentown Football Club, Zhejiang Greentown Football T4 B KBRS TNEBEAANRI 2
Club is no longer a connected person of the Company. BAL e
Bluetown Agriculture Technology 4. EHBEEME

Bluetown Agricultural Technology is wholly-owned by Bluetown
China Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Delta
House Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is wholly-owned by
Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through his wholly-owned
company Osmanthus Garden Investment, is indirectly interested
in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment, a controlling Shareholder
which holds approximately 31.71% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of
Ms. Xia Yibo, a non-executive Director. Bluetown Agriculture
Technology is therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and
hence a connected person of the Company.
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The Group has entered into a number of continuing connected ZAEECRBE R —IREKIBIZHEERTEA
transactions with its connected persons in the ordinary and usual  +E[ 7 %IBAEESF RIS 14AZIE YR
course of business, which are subject to the reporting, annual review  #§ « FEERM  AERENFEBERS

and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

1. Provision of Elevator Maintenance Services by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group
We engage the elevator maintenance services of Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering in the ordinary course of our
business.

Details of the transaction

On 10 June 2016, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering
entered into an elevator maintenance services framework
agreement (the "Elevator Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement”) with our Company, as supplemented by a
supplemental elevator maintenance services agreement dated 6
November 2017. The Elevator Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement expired on 31 December 2018. On 28 December
2018, Greentown Property Service Group Company Limited
entered into a new elevator maintenance services agreement (the
“"New Elevator Maintenance Services Agreement”) with
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to renew the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement. Pursuant to the
New Elevator Maintenance Services Agreement, Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering agreed to provide elevator
maintenance services, including but not limited to conducting
annual inspections, safety maintenance, and providing repair
services to our Group for the properties projects managed by our
Group ("Elevator Maintenance Services”), for a term
commencing from 1 January 2019 until 31 December 2021.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Elevator Maintenance Services provided
by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group was
determined based on (i) cost of raw materials and wages needed
for carrying out the Elevator Maintenance Services; and (ii) the
comparison of the fee quote provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering to our Group with the fee quotes provided
by other independent third party elevator maintenance
companies engaged by our Group for its other property
management projects. When comparing the fee quotes, our
Group considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to perform
such services in a timely manner. The New Elevator Maintenance
Services Agreement was entered into on normal commercial
terms.
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Annual caps

Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee payable by our
Group in relation to the Elevator Maintenance Services to be
provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering under the
New Elevator Maintenance Services Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2021 would not exceed
RMB20,795,334, RMB25,612,493 and RMB31,545,528, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fee paid by the Group
for the Elevator Maintenance Services provided by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering amounted to RMB16,678,383
and the payment for the same period last year was
RMB17,775,965.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps of the Elevator
Maintenance Services provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering to the Group are expected to be more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the transactions under the New Elevator
Maintenance Services Agreement are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club to the Group

Zhejiang Greentown Football Cub provide certain specified areas
to Zhejiang Dual-City Culture and Creativity Company Limited
("Zhejiang Dual-City Culture”) for advertising the information of
products or services of third parties for promotion purposes.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture, a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the framework agreement with Zhejiang
Greentown Football Club and renewed on 28 December 2018.
Pursuant to which, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture would be entitled
to advertise in certain areas specified by Zhejiang Greentown
Football Club and Zhejiang Dual-City Culture would procure
independent sponsors to advertise their services and/or products
in such areas. The term of the agreement commenced from 1
January 2019 until 31 December 2021.
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Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club for the provision of the advertising service was determined
with reference to (i) the advertising fees charged by Zhejiang
Dual-City Culture from the independent sponsors which would
advertise their services and/or products in the areas specified by
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club; (i) the total cost incurred by
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture with respect to procuring such
independent sponsors; and (iii) a margin to be deducted
therefrom, which is not less favorable than the margin applied to
other independent third party advertising space suppliers of
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by the Group in respect of the advertising services for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 would not
exceed RMB24,000,000, RMB28,800,000 and RMB34,560,000
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the advertising services was
RMB19,952,830, and payment for the same period last year was
RMB16,811,321.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps of the
advertising Services provided by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club to the Group are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the transactions under the Framework Agreement are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but are exempted from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Services provided by Lansong Supply Chain to the
Group

We receive the goods supply service provided by Lansong
Supply Chain to the Group in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 10 January 2017, Greentown Property Management, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales
framework agreement with Lansong Supply Chain and renewed
on 31 December 2019. Pursuant to which, Lansong Supply Chain
agreed to supply various types of agricultural goods and
products, including but not limited to fresh products and foods
to Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2020 until 31
December 2022.
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Consideration RE
The fees charged to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain for the BE 0B (R G ) AN £ (B 44 A S T URCERLAY
provision of goods was determined at arm'’s length with reference ERANERATMAFETE : ()BF

to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale market prices
published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC from time to
time; (ii) the purchasing costs of such goods and the operation
costs (including packaging, processing and distribution costs)
incurred by Lansong Supply Chain for supplying goods to
Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries or
branch companies under the Sales Framework Agreement. The
prices for the goods to be supplied by Lansong Supply Chain to
Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries will not
be less favourable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties in similar transactions.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by the Group to Lansong Supply Chain for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2022 would not exceed
RMB46,130,000, RMB54,772,000 and RMB65,033,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the goods supplied by Lansong Supply
Chain was RMB10,392,564 and the payment for the same period
last year was RMB40,617,423.
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As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain
are expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions under the Sales Framework Agreement are subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements,
but are exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by the Group to Bluetown
Agricultural Technology

We provide goods supply service to Bluetown Agricultural
Technology in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Lansong Supply Chain, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the framework agreement with Bluetown
Agricultural Technology and renewed on 31 December 2019.
Pursuant to which, Lansong Supply Chain agreed to supply
various types of agricultural goods and products, including but
not limited to fresh products and food to Bluetown Agricultural
Technology and/or its subsidiaries for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020 until 31 December 2022.

Consideration

The fees charged to Bluetown Agricultural Technology by the
Group for the supply of goods was determined at arm'’s length
with reference to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale
market prices published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC
from time to time; and (ii) the price of the same or comparable
type of various goods sold to independent third parties in its
ordinary and usual course of business. In determining the price,
the Group would also collect the relevant market information,
review and compare the costs and profits of transactions in the
most recent year for the provision of the same or similar type of
agricultural goods and products with at least two independent
third parties.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2022 would not
exceed RMB26,242,000, RMB30,178,000 and RMB34,704,000
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount payable by
Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group in respect of the
goods supply service was RMB8,150,136, and the payment for the
same period last year was RMB21,210,825.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided by the Group are expected to be more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions under the Supply of
Goods Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
the Prospectus and the announcements of the Company
published on 10 January 2017, 6 November 2017, 13 August
2018, 28 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, respectively.

The Company adjusts the scope and amount of continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps exempted from
disclosure (where necessary) in accordance with its internal
control procedures. During the Reporting Period, the Company
has followed the pricing policies and guidelines for each of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this annual report
when determining the price and terms of such transactions
conducted. The Directors are of the view that the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure
that transactions are so conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(iii)  in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued their letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the board of
directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
their attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

ARBAERBZEEMREELESTMAE
M8 1 B9 7 R R SR 9 ZE 1) 55 3000 % (48
ER])) 2 B B E R B BB AN
e T W2 E(EBHAE7405)
[E& LRI AR ER 50
BMEK ] - AR ERERERX S IEHE
o BB RIE LT AR A 14A56 (5§
RAEER LASEREXZHELEA
HBB MR R

1. BIEERERRERBEEEE
BREMERFAKESSHA

2. BAKEREHEEDRRBOHRZM
5 BB ERRBUEREENAE
PR EEERGRAAEASTE
RARIRE B EEBORETT

3. BIEIIREEMFEZBENAEITT
ERERERGVIIESERNTA
EREEZERZMB@EWER]
AVAREY3

4. BBFEEEXZFEEME - RE
IR IR B AZ BRAD AR (5 P I BE 5
BRERX S EBBARRGENF
LR -

ARBCAEBBIMEREBAEE
BHZE2020F 12 A3 B L FENFHEH
B 5 BN R B

2020 EHRE SWRIEEEERAA

85



86

Report of Directors

EEEWE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules,
except for the transactions described in the paragraph headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules have been complied with.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with the
provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
disclosure of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions, and the Company has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “"CONNECTED
TRANSACTION" in this Report of Directors, during the Reporting
Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has entered
into any material contract with the controlling Shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries. And there is no entering
into of any material contract in respect of the services provided by the
controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the matters disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statements,
no other significant events which have an impact on the Company have
occurred after the end of the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

No material litigation or material claim of material importance is known
to the Directors to be pending or threatening against the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year of 2020, the Company maintained liability insurance for
Directors and senior management (being the liability insurance for
Directors and senior management and prospectus liability insurance)
to provide the appropriate coverage for the Directors and senior
management of the Company.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had, together with the management and
external auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”), reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 88 to 107 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The auditors of the Company has not changed in the past three years.
KPMG was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December
2020. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Li Hairong
Chairman

Hangzhou, 26 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERME

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors its business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee” and, together,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and acted in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Shou Bainian

Ms. Xia Yibo

Mr. Wang Guangjian (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has, at all times,
met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that the diversity of the Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company's
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of,
amongst other things, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on merits and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of the diversity of
the Board. The Board diversity policy is summarized below:

The Company attaches great importance to the gender diversity of the
Board: women now hold 27% of the total directorship, which is in line
with and higher than the ratio of most listed companies.

The Board includes Directors with diverse backgrounds: executive
Directors have extensive industry management experience and are in
charge of the principal businesses of the Company; non-executive
Directors are highly experienced in corporate management, hence
they are able to provide effective recommendations on the Company's
operation and development; independent non-executive Directors
have experience in the property management industry, investment,
finance, corporate governance and the international market.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the
Company considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
with any other Director and chief executive of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Board Committees.

As regards code provision A.6.6 of the CG Code, which requires each
director to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments, the
identity of the public companies or organizations and an indication of
the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments and any subsequent changes to the Company in a
timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with the necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the Company’s operations and businesses, as well as his/her
responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide the Directors
with updates on the latest developments and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time
to time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director. During the year ended 31 December 2020, all
Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development trainings and provided the Company with their records
of the trainings they received. These trainings included reading
regulatory updates, attending seminars, conducting training sessions
and exchanging views.
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Continuous Professional
Development Training
FEEERRE
Reading or attending briefings
and/or seminars and/or conferences
relevant to regulatory and
governance updates

MESHFEEERER
Name of Director EHEREANERER R
EEHE BER /HEE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman) TR (FE) Yes B
Mr. Yang Zhangfa HBERLE Yes B
Mr. Wu Zhihua RAEFELLE Yes B
Mr. Chen Hao RRE S A4 Yes B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shou Bainian SRELE Yes &
Ms. Xia Yibo Bzt Yes B
Mr. Wang Guangjian FHRERE Yes &
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITESE
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERRBI S Yes &
Mr. Wong Ka Yi mmHEKE Yes &
Mr. Li Feng FREE Yes &
Ms. Wu Aiping RESFR+ Yes B
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

The Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) are currently two separate
positions held by Ms. Li Hairong and Mr. Wu Zhihua, respectively, with
clear distinction in responsibilities. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the
business development of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 12 July 2016,
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of three years
subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Li Feng, Mr. Wang Guangjian and Ms. Wu Aiping)
has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be renewable
subject to both parties’ agreement. Mr. Li Feng, an independent non-
executive Director, has signed a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 5 December 2017, which may
be renewable subject to both parties’ agreement. Mr. Wang Guangjian
and Ms. Wu Aiping, a non-executive Director and an independent non-
executive Director, respectively, have each signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 6
January 2020, which may be renewable subject to both parties’
agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is

not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year and at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
propose matters for the agenda of the regular Board meetings.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also
held meetings with the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of the executive Directors
during the Reporting Period. The revised code provision A.2.7 of the
CG Code, which has been in effect since 1 January 2019, requires the
Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
other Directors. The Company has made arrangements to comply with
the provision.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given by the Company. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee
members at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared
for the meetings. When the Directors or Board Committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and be given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman of the Board prior to the meeting. Minutes of
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company, with
copies circulated to all Directors for their information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by the
Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, eleven Board meetings and one annual RIEHA  EFESLEIT+—REFSEE
general meeting were held. The attendance of each Director at these N —XBERBEFAS EAEELEZSSH

meetings is set out in the table below: HIEREHN TR -
Number of
Number of annual general
Board meetings meetings
attended/eligible attended/eligible
Directors to attend to attend
EHE

BHE RREFAERY
ETaRy  EBUHERRBS

== EHEESSRE RERE
Executive Directors HITESE

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman) EFETLE(EFE) 11/11 1/1
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BERESE 11/11 11
Mr. Wu Zhihua REERSE 11/11 1/1
Mr. Chen Hao ERE 11/11 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Shou Bainian SRELE 11/11 1/1
Ms. Xia Yibo BE—R&Z+ 11/11 1/1
Mr. Wang Guangjian Tt 10/11 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors B JE#{TEE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok E A B S A 11/11 11
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERESLE 11/11 1/1
Mr. Li Feng FR&E 11/11 1/1
Ms. Wu Aiping RENL L+ 11/11 1/1
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees of the Company
(the "Securities Dealing Code”). The Company has made specific
enquiry with all Directors as to whether they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2020 and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Directors have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions being
entered into by the management of the Company.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the Directors and the
employees of the Group;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on matters; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee comprises four
members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman), Mr. Wong Ka Vi,
Mr. Li Feng and Ms. Wu Aiping. All of them are independent non-
executive Directors. Ms. Wu Aiping was appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee on 6 January 2020.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the
work performed by the Auditor, their fees, and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Auditor;

2. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer of the Company or the Auditor before
submission to the Board; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system, and risk
management system, and the associated procedures, including
the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs, and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, three meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to discuss and consider the following matters:

o to review the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
as of 31 December 2019;

J to review the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
as of 30 June 2020;

o to review the auditor’s report in relation to the audit plan and
strategy of the Group; and
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o to review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure, e
internal control (including the Company’s internal control of
corruption risks and the handling and identification of business
conflict of major shareholders in listed companies), risk
management system and procedures, and re-appointment of
external auditor. The Board did not deviate from the
recommendations of the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors.

The attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the ‘BEXRZESKELRFXZENERIHINT
table below: ES
Number of
meetings
attended/eligible
Directors to attend
BHERE
BE=E FE IR B
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman) ERB A (FE) 3/3
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE 3/3
Mr. Li Feng FRSLE 3/3
Ms. Wu Aiping RENLL 3/3
Nomination Committee BEZEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee comprises four 202012831 H ' REZZLZEeBHUEKE
ARk - BIEREEAE(XF)  EBRRLE =
REERRENLT  BEZHBABILIENTT
BEE - RENZIR2020F1A6BEZTA

RELZBEKE -

members, namely Mr. Wong Ka Yi (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok,
Mr. Li Feng and Ms. Wu Aiping. All of them are independent non-
executive Directors. Ms. Wu Aiping was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on 6 January 2020.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the EHZRZEeWTEBIHOT :
following:

1.

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

ELBFRVNEFTENRE - AZ LA
P(BRERAE - MB NS mE) Wi
ER R LA AN 2 B H SRS M 1E B a0 &
BRESSRTES

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board MERBEEERIEEEENAL
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on WHEEBA TS B WIRZOAL
the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; mMEEeRHEER

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive SIS IEITE ERIE SN

Directors;

2020 EHRE SWRIEEEERAA

97



Corporate Governance Report

EEERME

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer; and

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses candidates or incumbents on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skills, and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to
the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, composition,
size and diversity of the Board and relevant recommendations were
made to the Board, which included the appointment of additional
Directors and the re-election of retiring Directors. The summary and
performance of the Board diversity policy disclosed on page 90 of this
annual report.

The attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in
the table below:

4. HREBFZAEXEFZEAREZ(LHR
TERITHREER) BEFEMESESRH
B R

5. EHEFENEZITEEE-

REAZBERHE &% BEEARSEITR
BT 2 KR RS HFFREF B IREASE
TA - REZBEZEBBNERRERESS
PMERTE - RBEZ BN EMBEEENER
At AR BASvE AT & ] -

BE2020F12ANBLEFER BREEZES
BRTMAEH NEHEFTENRE A
Ko R\ERZTE YRR EESRIE
@ BRZEEHESNERRIES - FH
EFEENEZ BRI E LERERHNA
FHRWFIOE -

EREZEEKELEZEEZNBRERT
=

Number of

meetings

attended/eligible

Directors to attend
BHERE

E= PEHERE
Mr. Wong Ka Yi (Chairman) BRALE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERRB S 2/2
Mr. Li Feng FRSE 2/2
Ms. Wu Aiping REFLL 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprises four
members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman), Mr. Wong Ka Vi,
Mr. Li Feng and Ms. Wu Aiping. All of them are independent non-
executive Directors. Ms. Wu Aiping was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 6 January 2020.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
determined by the Board;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including but not limited to benefits in kind,
pension rights, and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to assess the performance of the executive Directors and approve
the terms of their service contracts;

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

6.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

7. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

8. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
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SREARE
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise ZELTHRANGHR 8 BRERES
reasonable and appropriate; and HWER—2 BERABENESEEE
&

9. to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined 9.  #EREIMEESHETMBHEA BE LT
in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own HAMER) T SLHEEME CHNE
remuneration. B -

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are  ¥NE B @ 492 B &6 B 5 AT AR 7]
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. FUL AT AR -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the EHZE2020F12A3MHILFEERN  HFMEES
Remuneration Committee was held to discuss and consider the ZBHE TMASE  UilmkEBUATRA :
following matters:

e the remuneration policy of the Company and its subsidiaries; o ARAIKREWEBRRRFBCE

° the remuneration of the Directors and proposed adjustment to e EEYN THESoREFHEES
the Board; and &

e issuing Share Options to an associate of an independent non- o  [ABVIEMITEE VBB AE THERE -

executive Director.

The attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out &KFHFMEESKELFZZESENERIHNRT

in the table below: =

Number of
meetings
attended/eligible
Directors to attend
BHERE
S FE IR
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman) ERBE LA () 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE 2/2
Mr. Li Feng FREE 2/2
Ms. Wu Aiping REFRL 2/2

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management ESREREEBNEMH

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and & Z 202012 31 HIFF/E » EFE R AR T
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out =RERE(KEEREHANTFRFEIBES
on pages 48 to 55 of this annual report, for the year ended 31 E558) MBS EFRITIWNT -

December 2020 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB) Number of individuals
MeERK(ARE) A
0-2,500,000 9
2,500,001-4,000,000 5
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 130 to 141 of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound risk
management and internal control system is established and maintained
within the Group, as well as its responsibility to review its effectiveness.
Such system aims to manage and reduce the business risks faced by
the Group to an acceptable extent, but not eliminating the risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. Moreover, it can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
loss or fraud.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to take charge of the
on-going monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control system, as well as the annual review of its effectiveness. Such
review covers all material control aspects, including financial control,
operation control, and compliance control.
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Under the Company's risk management and internal control structure,
the management is responsible for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of the risk management and internal control system,
thereby ensuring, in particular, (i) appropriate policies and procedures
are designed and established to safeguard the Group's assets from
misappropriation or disposal; (ii) compliance with any relevant laws,
regulations or rules; and (iii) reliable financial and accounting records
are kept properly in accordance with the relevant auditing standards
and regulatory reports.

The key features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) designated departments are responsible
for the implementation and execution of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and heads of major operating
units or departments are in charge of the management and mitigation
of identified risks; (i) the management ensures appropriate measures
have been taken in relation to significant risks that may affect the
Group's business and operation; and (iii) the internal auditor provides
independent confirmation to the Board, Audit Committee and the
management on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s main duties on risk
management and internal control include:

J each of the major operating units and departments carries out
daily risk management activities, which include identifying
significant risks that may affect the Group's results, assessing and
evaluating significant risks identified based on their impacts and
possibilities of occurrence, formulating plans for and
implementing measures, control and emergency response plans
to manage and reduce such risks;

J the management and finance department monitor and review
the risk management and internal control system on an ongoing
basis and report to the Audit Committee on its status;

J the management regularly follows up and reviews the measures,
control and emergency response plans in place for the significant
risks identified and builds security risk management, classification
of risk prevention and control of double prevention mechanisms,
so as to ensure sufficient attention, monitoring and response is
given to such risks;
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o the management regularly reviews the risk management and
internal control system for the purpose of identifying deficiencies
in the procedures and control function and designs and
implements rectification for such deficiencies;

J the management ensures the normal functioning of the
appropriate procedures and measures, such as making sure there
is no unauthorized use or disposition of assets, controlling capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring the reliability of financial information for business
operation and public disclosure; and

J to build and improve the safety protection system of the
Company, enhance the safety protection ability of the area in the
service scope, maintain the safety of lives and properties of the
owners and staffs, and ensure that the Company operates
orderly.

The Company focused on clients’ documents and supplier relationship
management. For clients’ documents, to collect, use and protect the
clients’ information, the Company complies with the laws related to
information security protection, and the information security
management system of the Group. For supplier relationship
management, by public bidding, batch purchase, vender assessment,
and other forms, the Company strictly controlled the supplier selection,
quality of products and services, to make sure that cost control is
suitable and the quality of products and services is protectable in the
meantime, with a further improvement of our overall competitive
advantage.

To ensure that the information was transmitted successfully, the
internal communication system has been continuously improved. Risk
control system has been landed to help the management in decision-
making with timely and accurate feedbacks.
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The internal audit function monitors the Company's internal
governance and provides independent confirmation on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function report
directly to the Audit Committee, submit the internal audit report to the
Audit Committee based on the auditing plan as approved by the
Board, and report the results of the internal audit to all Directors.
During the Reporting Period, the internal audit function performed
analysis and evaluation on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control system; in particular,
it inspected the documents in relation to risks, prepared by operating
units and the management, and interviewed staff members at all levels.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function attended
the meeting of the Audit Committee, explained the results of the
internal audit and answered questions raised by the Audit Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the internal audit department of the
Company reported and reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems to the Audit Committee every six months. The content
covers the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions,
and their training programs and budget. The Board of Directors and
Audit Committee reviewed the above content and were satisfied with
its effectiveness and adequacy.

The Company has established the inside information policy for fair and
timely dissemination of information to public based on applicable laws
and regulations. The chief executives authorized by the Group to take
charge of the investor relations, corporate matters and financial control
functions are responsible for ensuring and monitoring compliance with
the applicable disclosure procedures for inside information. The
relevant chief executives may access inside information on an “as
needed” basis at any time. Personnel and professionals involved are
reminded to keep inside information confidential until public
disclosure. The Company has other procedures in place to prevent the
mishandling of inside information, including prior approval of any
trading of the Company’s securities by the Directors and the
management, regular notice of black out periods, restrictions on any
securities trading by the Directors and staff and the use of codes for
project identification.

The Company has established arrangements for employees and other
stakeholders to raise concern on suspected misconduct in financial
reporting, internal control or other aspects in confidence. The Audit
Committee carries out regular reviews to ensure appropriate
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigations and
proper actions for such matters.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company and its subsidiaries. The annual review included: (i)
reviewing the financial control, internal control and risk management
systems of the Company and its subsidiaries; (i) regular discussion with
chief executives at the management level on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control and the work of the internal audit
function; (iii) evaluating the scope and quality of the management's on-
going monitoring of the risk management and internal control system;
and (iv) reviewing the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
report of the Company, evaluating related policies and providing
suggestions.

Based on the above, the Audit Committee was not aware of any
significant issues that would adversely affect the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately as follows:

EHRERA - BEREEERH T ARAREN
J& R0 [E B B IR MY RRAE B R B RRE o
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RBREARE  FHEER BRI IR 12 -
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BREE <

B BT A B E 20204 12 431 A IEE A
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Type of Services Amount (RMB’000)
PR 75 28 Bl SHEAR® TR
Annual audit services FEETR
Professional review services on 2020 2020 F R ERBA S S

interim financial report EHHXER 1,150
Professional audit services on 2020 2020 FF E B SRk

annual financial statements Bt HE R 3,350
Total et 4,500

COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and the applicable Hong Kong laws, the
Company engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng"), associate director of
TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as
the company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person of Ms. Ng at the company is Ms. Wang Zhenyan.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Ng has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding the Group's business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of the Company’s information, which will enable the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
will attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions. The Auditor will also attend the annual general meetings to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy, which aims at establishing a
two- way relationship and communication between the Company
and the Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at
www.lvchengfuwu.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company's business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the Company for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

The Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company according to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more members holding as at date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Laws for Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Written requisitions to the Board shall be sent to ir@lvchengfuwu.com
and written requisitions to the company secretary of the Company shall
be sent to ir@lvchengfuwu.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the Investment &
Management Center via email (email address: ir@lvchengfuwu.com).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change in the
Articles of Association.
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The content of this ESG Report mainly includes the core businesses of
the Group in China, covering the Company and its subsidiaries. Unless
otherwise stated, the reporting period is from 1 January to 31
December 2020.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the following
principles:

M

Materiality: environmental and social issues which the Board
considers to be important to investors and other stakeholders are
disclosed in this ESG Report. The Board determines the
materiality of a matter through distinguishing the nature of
business.

Quantitative: where possible, this ESG Report sets out
quantitative analysis of the Group's environmental and social
performance to allow for effective evaluation. Quantitative
information disclosed in this ESG Report are accompanied by
narratives, explaining its purpose and impact. Comparative data
are given where appropriate.

Balance: this ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the
Group's performance and avoids selections, omissions, or
presentation formats that may inappropriately influence a
decision or judgment of a reader.

Consistency: consistent methodologies of this ESG Report are
used to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

The Board provides oversight on matters relating to ESG by evaluating,
prioritizing and managing ESG-related issues that are material to the
Group, and monitors the progress made towards its goals and targets.

COMMUNICATE WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We consider that listening to, responding to and dealing with the
stakeholders’ comments effectively and continuously, and what
they are concerned, are beneficial to the Group's business
development. For this purpose, we have constructed a number of
different platforms, including: mobile applications,
communication software and websites, to not only allow our
stakeholders to share and express their concerns, but also
promote a more harmonious neighborhood relationship and
better social custom, so as to build a service ecosystem for the
interaction, symbiotic co-prosperity and mutual promotion
among property owners, property management department,
merchants, and users.
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2. CORPORATE VISION

We believe that by realizing the common progress of employees,
the company and the society, to achieve a sincere, kind, exquisite
and perfect life is the mission and responsibility of the Group,
and we strive to develop a social welfare undertaking supported
by the business model so as to create a safe, convenient,
comfortable and happy community for the public, and we are
committed to becoming the “China’s most valuable happy life
service provider”.

3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

3.1. Care for the environment
Management guidance and policies
Improvement of the property image and environment is an
indispensable part of creating a beautiful city. Therefore,
environmental management has become an important part
of the Group's development strategy, and we have
endeavored to integrate the concept of sustainable
development into our core business through the
implementation of a number of environmental
management measures, so as to make more effective use
of natural resources, reduce pollution, and build a better
living environment for our next generation.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations such as the
“Environmental Protection Law of the PRC", and has not
been prosecuted for violating environmental laws during
the Reporting Period.
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3.1.1. Pollution control

Tackling climate change

The “Paris Agreement” which clearly states that
countries should work together to deter global
warming entered into force in 2016. To this end, the
Group has also endeavored to reduce carbon
emissions over the past year to assist the State in
fulfilling responsibilities under the “Paris Agreement”.
Through instructing the staff, the Group conveys a
message of “Working together to reduce carbon,
beginning with energy saving”. We post signs with
content about saving electricity consumption on the
lighting system switches, air conditioner system
switches, photocopiers and meeting room in our
office, to influence and help the staff to form the habit
of saving power. The staff turn off their computers
and other office equipments of their own accord
during non-working time, a testament of the benefits
of posting signs mentioned above. In addition, the
Group takes into consideration of the correlation
between the vehicles used by the staff to and from
work and daily energy consumption, in particular, the
fuel consumption of automobiles. Consequently, we
encourage our employees to try to use public
transportation means instead of their private cars,
which not only saves the fuel consumption of their
private cars, but also produces a positive influence to
reduce carbon, achieving a result of “Less carbon
emission contributed by everyone of us”. As the
Company'’s business is concentrated in the office and
the carbon emission measures mentioned above are
difficult to measure, we have not been able to
quantify the effectiveness of carbon emission. The
greenhouse gas emissions generated during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

Greenhouse gas emission and density
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Total greenhouse gas emission 236.41

BEREBHFBAE

Direct emission (Range 1) 42.23

BEEER(EHE—)

Energy indirect emission 194.18
(Range 2)

BeIRE B A (FE =)

Notes:

Calculations are based on the reporting guidelines on environmental
key performance indicators published by the SEHK, the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines on National Greenhouse Gas Inventations, the IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report and the latest grid emission factors.

Range 1 includes fixed combustion emissions from diesel and natural
gas, direct combustion emissions from mobile sources of diesel and
unleaded gasoline, and escape emissions from refrigeration
equipment; and range 2 includes the purchase of electricity from
energy indirect emissions.

metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

NS EE

metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

RE—SREE

metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

NS EE
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3.1.2.

|

Waste Management

Greentown Service Group operates mainly in offices,
so there is no hazardous and non-hazardous waste
generated. In addition, the Group's properties and
offices are equipped with recycling bins to promote
the concept of garbage classification among
employees and customers.

Waste gas emission, sewage discharge and land
pollutant

During its operation, the Group did not produce
waste gas emission, sewage discharge and land
pollutant that are adverse to the environment.

Use of resources

To make more effective and prudent use of all
resources, including energy, water and other natural
resources, we have set up a series of resource
management measures to provide staff with more
specific advice and guidelines on the management of
energy, water and packaging materials.

Green office

Over the years, we have implemented a number of
energy conservation measures and initiatives of green
office, and we are constantly seeking and adopting
new ways to reduce the consumption of the
environment and natural resources in our operations.
We have made measures of green office for the
operation in offices, including: ventilating through
windows as much as possible in Spring and Autumn
to reduce the use of air-conditioning; setting the
operating temperature of air-conditioning system to
reduce energy consumption; requiring staff to
effectively use water to avoid waste; and using
electronic office system to reduce paper application
process, thus saving papers.

The water supply is provided by third party and there
has not been any issue in sourcing water.
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3.1.3.

During the Reporting Period, the major resources
consumed by the Group during its operation and
production are summarized below:

R|E MR KEEEFER
TEMSEMERNSEEE
BRBEHT

The total energy consumption of the Group is as EBMATEREENT ¢
follows:
Types of energy Usage Amount
of Energy Unit Density Unit
BERER BERMEE B RE By
Total usage amount of Energy 424,482.90 Thousands kWh 13.30 Thousands kWh/
each employee
BELREE FEFE FEAFEE
FHET
Direct usage amount of Energy 183,147.90 Thousands kWh 5.74 Thousands kWh/
each employee
HERRES FEF R FEFEE
BHETL
Indirect usage amount of 241,335.00 Thousands kWh 7.56 Thousands kWh/
Energy each employee
MEEREE TE T FLbs FEFERE
BHET
Note: &L -
Energy data refer to lower calorific value converted to kWh; direct ERBEES2EREREREATR
energy consumption includes the use of unleaded gasoline; indirect B HiEEREEREEN A A
energy consumption includes power consumption. 2 M REEREENRE -

The total water consumption of the Group is as
follows:

EEMBIEKENT -

Types of energy Usage Amount

of Energy Unit
RERESE BERAER B
Total usage amount of Energy 340.00 m?3
BELRAEE AV
Density of Total usage amount of Energy 0.01 m?/each employee
HEUREERE MNFHK/ BEHRETL

Promote green operation 313 EBRERE

The Group actively integrates environmental
responsibility into its daily operation activities to
minimize the impact of business on the surrounding
environment as much as possible. In the meantime,
we have strengthened the awareness of
environmental protection of the stakeholders and
have done our best to extend the concept of
sustainable development to all aspects of the
community.
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3.2. People-oriented Management 3.2. LAABK

Management principles and policies FELHREE

Greentown Service Group has been adhering to the SRS —ERATUAEAR] B
"people-oriented” spirit, and always bears in mind the B EERRESHNRNSERIE
implementation of social responsibility while developing RETHSEM  SWREH NS
business. Greentown Service Group is committed to caring BREMANEENSEZRRES O
for the career development, as well as physical and mental B~ BEMOHEER M SERNRS
health of every employee, and providing our supply chain BREARKMOEPITERL A%
with the best treatment and the safest and most reliable HEEYEERRYS - RSHMIR
quality property management services for our customers. EBRLENEAERNLRE
At the same time, we are actively participating in and MITE - LERAREXTHEN
sponsoring meaningful community initiatives and activities, A °

so as to achieve the vision of creating a better society.

3.2.1. Equal employment

Equal opportunities and pluralism co-existence

We believe that creating a respectful and harmonious
working environment for our employees is our first
mission. As such, Greentown Service Group respects
international human rights and labor standards and
strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations to
provide fair and lawful employment opportunities.
Guided by our business philosophy of sincerity, well-
intentioned, impeccability, and perfection, we always
respect the career development of staff, protect their
legitimate rights and interests, and continuously
improve their working environment since inception.
During the year, the Company maintained
harmonious relationship with its employees.

As a responsible employer, under the guidance of
national laws and regulations such as the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Protection of
Women's Rights and Interests Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Provisions on Prohibition
of Child Labor, the Group adheres to lawful
employment, and uses information technologies to
accurately examine the ID information of the persons
to be employed to ensure no child labor in
employment. We recruit and attract potential
employees through online recruitment,
recommendation from HR organizations, internal
recommendation and University campus recruitment.
Employees come from different nationalities, regions
and various educational backgrounds, with no
restrictions on gender and age. The Group will handle
cases of labor turnover, including resignation,
retirement, withdrawal, lay off by the Company, etc.,
according to the requirements of national laws and
regulations of the Company.
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Salary and welfare

We think that employee care is the most effective way
to embody corporate culture. Thus, we provide a
comprehensive welfare plan for employees, including
social insurance, housing fund, the only-child
allowance, high temperature subsidy, festive welfare,
holiday benefits, life benefits, employee traveling
benefits, team activities benefits, birthday blessing
benefits, etc., aiming to improve the quality of life of
employees.

We have a sound Salary Management System. The
starting salary range varies with different job
responsibilities of employees. The assessment and
adjustment of starting salary range for different ranks
are conducted on a regular basis. And employee’s
salary and rank will be adjusted according to the
Company’'s economic benefits and employee
performance. In terms of working hours and holidays,
the Group has strictly followed the PRC Labor Law
and the PRC Labor Contract law, and other relevant
laws.

Friendly workplace

We also encourage employees to strike a balance
between work and life, to promote “happy work,
healthy living”. To this end, the Group has established
the "Employee Care System”; we will listen carefully
to understand the staff’s personal interests and
hobbies, so as to develop a number of friendly
workplace and employee-care activities for them such
as "Warm-heart Action”, “Chunhui Action”, and “Zijin
Initiative”, and invite staff to have fun together to
make up for their hard work at weekdays; to
encourage colleagues to work with the physical and
mental balance for the pursuit of a healthy and
sustainable lifestyle.

The Group strictly complies with relevant employment
legislation and has not been prosecuted for any
breach of employment-related legislation during the
Period.
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3.2.2. Occupational health and safety 322 BiHREHEZE

Health and safety of workplace

Greentown Service Group regards employees as
important assets of the Company. We are committed
to, by complying with the requirements of the law,
creating a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment for our employees to fulfill our basic
commitment to our employees. We focus on the daily
behavior of employees, from the safety management
point of view, try to enhance the staff's self-protection
awareness, improve the ability of employees to
respond to emergencies, and strive to keep
employees safe during daily work and while working
outside. In addition, Greentown Service Group
provides annual physical examination to employees.
After the completion of the physical examination, the
examination results will be recorded and kept for the
staff, and employee health records will be established,
to facilitate follow-up work when it is necessary.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety
legislation and has not been prosecuted for breaching
occupational safety-related legislation during the
Reporting Period.
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3.2.3. BHIBE

3.2.3. Training development

Management objectives and policies

We firmly believe that continued training and
development for employees will enhance the value of
the team and professional quality of the employees
themselves, thus bringing higher production efficiency
for the Group. The sustainable development of
employees has many benefits. The Group has a talent
training philosophy, which guides us to develop
different types of tailored training programs for
employees, such as the “Lemon Program”, “Sailing
Program”, “Voyage Program”, “Pilot Program”,
“Business School Program” and "Accreditation” to
provide staff with systematic training at various
professional stages to support and promote the
career development of employees.

B T RIK R
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Training philosophy
BEER

Encourage learning at work Combine work and study with experience and guidance as an
integral part of learning

SETEhEE TEREBEREMS  REBRIIEEREBBN —F)
Comprehensive talent nurturing  Focus on nurturing staff's leadership, professional capacity and core
competence

STEEETIEEN  EERNRKRLEE

Accompany employees at different stages of their careers to

2HEMAMBES
Comprehensive career
support their growth
TEMBER R — M - XFHEIKE

development

TEMBUERR

Greenhand training/integration program

This year, Greentown Service Group continues the
“Lemon Program” for fresh university graduates and
new employees hired through social recruitment. We
provide fresh university graduates with 5 years of
training to assist them in moving from theory to
practice, thus accelerating their adaptation to social
workplace culture. At the same time, we also provide
orientation training for new recruits from the
community to enable them to quickly transform their
professional roles, and integrate into the culture of
Greentown Service Group.
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Special Training for Talents

“Sailing Program”, “"Voyage Program” and “Pilot
Program” are in-house training programs for
managers and the management. These programs
provide different management training and meetings
on a regular basis, strengthen the shaping and
training of employees’ professional competence and
professional quality, and create a communication
platform for the staff with the same profession to
share and deepen their knowledge, and let the
employees of different businesses to understand each
other to make up for their deficiencies, thus
comprehensively strengthening business ability of the
management of the Company.

In terms of external training, the “Business School
Program” of Greentown Service Group is working
with high-end business schools to further enhance the
management vision and pattern of senior managers,
enrich management knowledge and enhance
leadership. At the same time, we will also arrange
qualification training and related certification for staff
to encourage them to move towards a more enriched
career.

In 2020, Greentown Service Group provided
professional skills training for employees, the training
content covers basic property management
knowledge, HR, finance, laws and regulations and
courses related to their duties, as well as other topics
covered by our training and education funding
programs.

In order to improve efficiency and provide more
flexible training and communication methods, the
Group regularly publishes and updates training
information provided by the Group on its internal
network platform. Employees can log onto the
platform through smartphones, computers or other
mobile devices, and check all kinds of training courses
anytime and anywhere, and choose the knowledge
and skills required for learning and working. We also
encourage employees to take the same courses
repeatedly as needed.
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3.2.4. Rights and interests protection 3.2.4. FERRE

Management objectives and policies

Green Service Group strictly complies with the laws
and regulations related to minimum employment age,
prohibiting the employment of persons under the age
of 18 to engage in any job position. We check the
identification documents of the job seekers during
the recruitment to make sure that they have reached
the minimum employment age prescribed by laws. At
the same time, Greentown Service Group prohibits
any form of forced labor and upholds the human
rights and labor rights of employees.

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service
Group complies with the relevant policies, laws and
regulations relating to the prevention of child labor or
forced labor.

3.3. Operating Commitments
3.3.1.Supply chain management

Management objectives and policies

Greentown Service Group has always attached great
importance to the relationship with supply chain
business partners, and also knows well the importance
of promoting and facilitating the operation mode of
responsible and sustainable development in the
entire supply chain. To this end, we have formulated
the Supplier Code of Conduct, which specifies social,
environmental and commercial ethical requirements.
Through sound and effective supply chain
management, we work together with suppliers to
create safe working conditions, promote respect for
the dignity of workers, and promote responsible
environmental protection measures.
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We have a comprehensive procurement management
process, to centrally standardize procurement/
tendering processes to reduce operating costs; to
adopt stringent measures and monitoring systems,
and we will assess the bidders’ policies, practices and
performance in relation to compliance to regulations,
occupational health and safety, environmental
protection and community care, and require them to
provide certificate of service quality and financial
capability or reference document. After awarding the
contract, we regularly review and evaluate suppliers
to ensure that they comply with local laws and
regulations and meet environmental and social
standards set by the Group. If irregularities are found,
we consider to terminate the partnership.

Anti-corruption

Greentown Service Group will declare any conflict of
interest to the tendering company and its directors in
order to prevent fraudulent conduct in the
procurement process, and we encourage the use of a
whistle-blowing mechanism to expose any suspected
misconduct. In addition, the Group establishes strict
guidelines and enforces appropriate disciplinary
punishment to prevent any subcontractor or supplier
from breaching the regulations. The Group's anti-
corruption policy makes it clear that there will be no
cooperation with any offending suppliers. The
Group s Audit and Supervision Department has
developed an integrity course, “Adhering to the
Professional Bottom Line and Building a Prosperous
Greentown” and continued to carry out integrity
training, while adding a rolling banner of “Build a
Prosperous Greentown Together”, increase channels
for complaints and reports and strengthen the internal
control system.

Safeguarding human rights and labor rights across
the supply chain

Greentown Service Group complies with relevant
local legislation and will not tolerate the employment
of child labor and forced labor, and we also require
suppliers to comply with relevant legislation.
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3.3.2. Service with Heart 3.3.2. UL BRTS

Management Objectives and Policies

Greentown Service Group upholds the aspiration of
building a first-class property service business with
advanced, excellent service, leading scale, and
rigorous system, and advances towards the direction
of becoming China’s life service provider with the
most complete value. We have always kept “customer
first, quality orientation” as our hospitality spirit. On
the basis of traditional property service, we have set
up an excellent quality management, environmental
management, occupational health and safety
management system. At the same time, we fully
implement 85 management and cordial service, in
order to build a better home for customers. The
Group also strictly adheres to all relevant laws and
regulations related to product liability, such as
customer’s health and safety, advertising promotion,
labeling and protection of privacy data.

Happy Community

Greentown Service Group has implemented the
operation policy of “Cordial Service”, oriented
towards people, starting from the heart, to create a
functional and aesthetic home of happiness for the
owners and customers. The Group insists on service
with “heart”. We have broad and comprehensive
service scope, with our target customers ranging from
pre-school children to elderly people, which covers
the various needs of owners from life to spirit, so that
they can enjoy quality life and realize the dream of
living ideally. In addition, we provide service with
“love"” to provide personalized service and service
process to owners, and bring them happiness with
cordial and user-friendly property service to satisfy
and move customers.
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Quality Living

Greentown Service Group is one step ahead of the
customers, to provide them with the most intimate
and high-quality life experience. The Group has set
up a quality management center to oversee the
service quality of the entire business process and
focus on quality improvement to meet the needs of
customers in order to achieve the objectives of the
enterprise. In addition, in order to protect the safety
of the residents and ensure the order of the
community, we have a professional security team
responsible for daily security to maintain a safe and
orderly community. We also insist on maintaining the
environmental cleanliness and greening of the
community, requiring the various service departments
to conduct regular professional training in this aspect
and strive to make the community a beautiful model
home with high quality.

“85" Management System

This year, Greentown Service Group continues to
adopt 85 management system to provide the
customers with the highest quality of service.

st |
SEIRI SETTON

S A 7%
SHITSUKE SERVICE
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Intelligence Services

Greentown Service Group constantly reviews the
external and internal environment change, and
develops our own development strategy based on
our own advantages. Through the introduction of
intelligent facilities, mobile Internet and mobile
applications, we can effectively deliver information to
customers to enhance the convenience, service
participation and well-being of living of the owners.
At the same time, Greentown Service Group, through
the Intelligent Community Service system, strives to
build a social network platform, to establish good
multi- directional communication, strengthen the
interaction among the owners, so that the owners can
experience more distinguished service and enjoy
closer good- neighborly relations.

Response to the customers

We believe cordial service is the key to the Group's
success. We can develop closer relationships with
customers through continuous listening and timely
response to them. We have a rigorous complaint
handling mechanism to respond to customers’
opinions carefully to ensure that customers’
complaints are handled in a consistent and efficient
manner so as to assess and improve our services to
exceed customer expectations.

Fair publicity

As a responsible enterprise, the Group recognizes the
importance of advertisement and selling description.
Therefore, each of our business units complies with
laws and self-discipline practices relating to labels of
products and services strictly. In addition, we review
the management objectives regularly to make sure
that the publicity information is timely and accurate
and complies with Advertising Law of the PRC and
other relevant laws and regulations.

Customer privacy

We will keep the owners’ document information in
good order and ensure that the Group's daily
operation complies with all relevant laws and
regulations so as to protect the customers’ data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's operation
has met the requirements of product liability, such as
customer health and safety, advertising promotion,
labeling, privacy data protection, etc.
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3.3.3. Corporate Governance

The Group has established clear policy and
management guidelines, which never tolerate bribery,
corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering and
other unethical practices, and the Group’s Code of
Conduct reaffirms our expectations for employees,
Board members, suppliers and business partners. We
also regularly conduct training and code of conduct
assessment for employees to let them understand the
basic standards of conduct that they are required to
face and observe in their daily work.

We set up a highly confidential reporting mechanism
for employees and other stakeholders, including
business partners, contractors and suppliers, to allow
employees to report any suspected illegal or unethical
behaviors without fear of retribution or retaliation.
The suspected cases will be promptly investigated
and will be dealt with seriously.

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service
Group operated in line with the policy on prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering and
complied with “Anti-Unfair Competition Law"and
other relevant laws and regulations.

3.4. Give back to the community 3.4.

The Group recognizes that our responsibility is not only to
make a direct contribution to the social economy, but also
to include the impact and effects of our business operations
and public welfare projects on the society as a whole. The
Group has been actively involved in the activities of the
community and met the needs of the community in the past
year, fulfilling its obligations as a corporate citizen and
contributing to the community in which it serves.
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Care the elderly

Greentown Service Group integrates the resources of the
Group's internal, social and other professional institutions,
to provide the elderly in the community with over 100 kinds
of services, such as occasional visit, assistance and
interaction activities. “A bowl of longevity” activity held by
the Group at Double Ninth Festival every year has always
been expected by the elderly; Greentown Yile College, as
the college-style endowment model, has been widely used
in various communities nationwide, and the establishment
of "Double Ninth Clean-up Day” provides solitary living
and empty-nest elderly families with sweeping services on
the day of Double Ninth Day.

Free ride to the examination

During the examination period in June and July each year,
we implement the “free ride to the examination” activities
in the community, and promote the “commitment of zero
disturbance”, to encourage owners to keep the community
quiet, so as to create the best review and test environment
for the candidates. The Group also arranges “Loving Car
Team” for candidates during the examination period to
offer free ride and vehicle services for emergency.

Figure 1 Free ride to the examination
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Dolphin Program BEEHE

Greentown Service Group holds “Dolphin Program” during SRR 7 =8 A& G
July to August each year to provide young owners at the ] BIBZ18HE I EHIKAYNE
age of 3 to 18 who are unable to swim with the free FIREPENIOKE - BHEHE
swimming training. Dolphin Program has been conducted ERFERMEF - 2020F [1EK
for 11 years. In 2020, the “Dolphin Program” introduced the sTEl] BREI A BBk e &
“Golden Dolphin” rating certified by the China Swimming BREN K] R 5HK
Association for the first time. This special honor from the ERREEREDENRRIEE

national professional organization will be the best reward KR F IR K R IE R -

for children to learn swimming.

Figure 2 Dolphin Program B —gBEt &l

Greentown Forest AR AR

Since 2015, we have altogether planted a total of 73,510 W2015F R IMRAE - HMEHET
trees to build a strong embankment for the resistance of T73510% R4 - REREDE
desertification. BT EFHRE -

Figure 3 Greentown Forest B = R p
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Happiness Land

Greentown Service Group found that despite the booming
development of the property management industry, there
are still quite many problems exist, such as unclear
boundaries of responsibilities among the community,
Committee Of The Property Owners and property service
companies, and unsmooth collaboration of management,
resulting in the lack of coordination and collaboration,
contradictions and constraints among all parties involved.
In 2018, Greentown Service Group set up the “"Happiness
Land”, which is a “circle of friends” that has bridged a
tripartite cooperation among neighborhood committees,
Committee Of The Property Owners and the property
companies. Under the leadership of the Party committee,
the list of responsibilities and tasks of the Committee Of
The Property Owners and property management company
have been clearly defined. Political leadership,
organizational leadership and ability leadership have been
strengthened. At the same time, through the penetration
and aggregation of crowdfunding, co-construction,
autonomy and sharing, all parties have “combined into one
force and twisted into one rope” to form an organizational
system with the same frequency, resonance and power. By
applying international standards and establishing a
community emergency response mechanism, the
“Reassuring Community Life Support Plan” in Greentown
Happiness Land aims to discover, make a judgment , call
for help, provide first aid treatment, escort and monitor
patients, coordinate with 120 medical workers and perform
necessary first aid including CPR in the first place before
the arrival of 120 emergency ambulance, support life rescue
and guard life safety.

Figure 4 Volunteer Activities in Happiness Land
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Wooden Lotus Project

The 2020 “Wooden Lotus Project” adopted a combination
of offline activities and online communication, live
broadcast and network cloud interaction, live operation and
virtual space integration, through the establishment of the
Internet and new media on the cloud platform, constantly
expanding the participation, effectiveness and coverage of
activities. From 1 August to 30 August 2020, 12,054 people
visited the special micro-site of “Wooden Lotus on the
Cloud”, lighting up 16,886 safety lights on the Cloud, and
there were more than 110 cloud competition works.
Through online knowledge promotion, the “Wooden Lotus
Project” lights up the lamp of safety and illuminates the
road to the future, allowing the seeds of safety awareness
and safety prevention knowledge to take root in the heart
of every young owner. With the “orange” coat added, they
become “small wooden lotuses” . According to statistics, 38
companies nationwide have launched the “Wooden Lotus
Project” offline, with 12,437 small owners participating.

Figure 5 Wooden Lotus Project

Fight the pandemic and build together

The COVID-19 pandemic is coming fiercely, and the
pandemic continues to change around the world, affecting
the hearts of all people in the country. During the Spring
Festival of 2020, health protection is the primary
prerequisite for a peaceful holiday. In order to ensure a safe
and healthy holiday for the owners and families, Greentown
Service Group's projects around the PRC followed
authoritative information, scientific preparation and joint
prevention and control. In order to jointly win the battle of
pandemic prevention and control, we are highly
responsible, closely cooperating and doing our best. In the
comprehensive disinfection and prevention of the
pandemic, we vigorously publicized to the owners, so that
they and their families can understand the pandemic and
how to deal with it in time.
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Figure 6 Property service during the pandemic

In the ongoing battle for pandemic prevention and control,
most areas of the country have resumed work and
production. In the face of superimposed demands, as a
social enterprise, we actively respond to government
requirements and formulate “ten elements of pandemic
control” for property management services, use wisdom to
provide insurance for safe resumption of work, use
professionalism to add reassurance to the working
environment and use perceptible details everywhere to
build a bridge connecting each other, so as to co-exist,
grow and win-win with commercial enterprises, and
contribute to the stable operation of the economy and
society.

In the face of the sudden COVID-19 pandemic, big data has
played a key role in the prevention and control within the
community. Through 7 years of accumulation of big data on
owners, Greentown Service Group has fully grasped the
more accurate basic information of owners, which has
greatly helped in mapping and collecting the basic
conditions of the community residents, not only reducing
the chance of exposure to infection, but also greatly
imprO\l/ing the efficiency of community prevention and
control.

Figure 7 Big data helps preventing the pandemic
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A company under Greentown Service Group has developed
the "Emergency Management Platform for Building
Pandemic Management and Control”, which integrates the
needs of government, building management, enterprises
and employees to achieve “online application for
resumption of work, non-contact access management,
implementation of statistical control, and seamless linkage
between government and building enterprises”, helping
cloud sharing for commercial and office properties of
Greentown Service Group to improve the efficiency of
pandemic prevention and management and providing
insurance for safe resumption of work.
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greentown
Service Group Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 142 to 316, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R R TR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REEITER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBIREFZFEISRERMOZXHE R AY
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ~ ARNHE4 R &SRRV B ZAEENSEIE - &
financial statements of the current period. These matters were YL EBRERMETBREGATEHRERLEA
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ERHETEIEN - H P TS L ELEERMH
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do  BEMEFR, °

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

EZRURBAZAMEEBERE

Refer to accounting policy note 1(p), note 21 and note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

FA2EMTEE 1(0) BB TR R A7 & BT R 1 it 21 K fifat 32(a)

The Key Audit Matter
BREER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNFANAEEZER

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gross trade receivables
from third parties and a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) amounted to RMB1,395.2 million and RMB137.1
million, respectively.

M2020F12A31H - EXEAFE=TEHREFIBEREN
BHEEERE(EHREEEE] cBEEEE I NAARE
1395 2A8TRARBII7IBET -

The Group's trade receivables comprise mainly receivables
from property owners and property developers.
EXEENESRUFETIZRRBETIRYELRBNEEYK
5 .

Management measure the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on the loss
patterns for different customers grouped according to the
shared credit risk characteristics, ageing of trade receivables,
historical loss rates, current economic conditions and
forward-looking information at the end of each reporting
period.
ERERTRZEFNERERRABELBZEERBREE
B S REFARE - BEBEEX - BB RRRAIRTEE
HoEnBRRIEENESRKFIELHRAEEER
B REET BRI -

Our audit procedures to assess the ECLs allowance
for trade receivables included the following:
BFFHEBE S REFIEZ AREEBERENETEZ
e :

o obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, segmentation of trade
receivables, ageing analysis review and
estimation of credit loss allowance;

e TERIUEHMEEEH  BHRKFIAED - R
oA REEBBRREMLTOMRAETEE
BRREt ~ B RETT AL

o evaluating the Group's policy for estimating the
credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standard;

o  Z2RBATEFENNERFHEEEEEES
IBRERBGR

o obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by management, including the basis of
segmentation of trade receivables based on
shared credit loss characteristics, historical
default data and assumptions involved in
management’s estimation of loss rate;

e  THEEERANEHEEEREELNERER
kE® BREBEXEZEEBESHETES
U FIRBI D EE  BEENENNERER
FHEBEXRMY RONERER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RAEETSIE (&)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)

B2 BRUHERzRMEEERRE (F)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(p), note 21 and note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

FA2EIMTEE 1(0) BB TR R A7 & BT HR R W1 it 21 K fifat 32(a)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETER B ETNAEEZER

We identified the ECL allowance for trade receivables as a assessing the appropriateness of management’s
key audit matter because the balance of trade receivables is estimation of loss allowance and examining the
material to the Group's financial statements and the information used by management to derive such
recognition of expected credit loss is inherently subjective estimates, including testing accuracy of the
and requires the exercise of significant management historical default data and evaluating whether
judgement. historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
HRESHREKIENEHRY BSXENBREAMSBEELN based on current economic conditions and
HEBEEFENERAE FAG X8I FEEEEFED forward-looking information;

BAAE  HBRAKEZRRHBEZEREEBERGERER « FAEEEEYBERRAELINEZEEREEERE
REARETEE BRELZEHEFMANER - 2FGBEE

MBENERIE M BEERXEDTREER
RERRARATEEERETEE B

o assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were categorised in the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing with
the demand notes, invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation, on a sample basis;
and

o  FEBEMEENBAHEERNTBMNE BREKH
b ARSI LL - FERET (4 2 5 B MR IR AR e ¥
EANIEE BEDBEEHEERNREER : &

o re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2020 based on the
Group's credit loss allowance policies.

e REg EXEFEEBEBRBERR EXAER
20205F 12 A 31 B MY ET1RBHE -
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REETEE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

ERMIAEATVERNGE

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g), note 18 and note 32(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

A2EIMTE 1(9) BB ETIBUR RARE I ER I15L 18 R Mzt 32(f) »

The Key Audit Matter
BREER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNFANAEEZER

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments carried at fair value was RMB1,419.0
million, of which RMB119.7 million, RMB257.6 million and
RMB1,041.7 million were classified under the fair value
hierarchy as level 1, level 2 and level 3 financial instruments
respectively.

R2020F12A31H - BEENUATFEFENERIANA
FEAARE1419088T - HPARE119788T . A
R¥257.6 A8 TR ARB1IMTBEETS S EARTFE
ERZE—H F_BREZPE@MITE-

The valuation of the Group's financial instruments is based
on a combination of market data, valuation models and
valuation report, if any, issued by an independent external
valuer. The above valuation results often require a
considerable number of inputs, including risk-free rate, share
price volatility, expected dividends, discount rate and market
multiples. Some of these inputs are obtained from readily
available data for liquid markets. Where such observable
data is not readily available, as in the case of level 3 financial
instruments, estimates need to be developed which can
involve significant management judgement.
EEESRMIANMGENERTSEN - HERE KB
ML EMATEMAEMMERS (NE)NES - FlfhEARS
ERERERAE  PEERRTE  RELD  BHRES -
BIRERTISEE - A — Ly AMENRRDTSNEKE
FIhES - MBI BRENTTZRE  =F2RIA
AR EEITG - ETS RERNETRE I -

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of
financial instruments included the following:

HARAFHER T AN FENEZEFERE

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the valuation, independent price
verification and valuation model approval for
financial instruments;

o  FHMAEHERMTAME B ERRERGERLY
EMHOBERABEIENR  BERIETAR
M

o assessing the fair value of level 1 financial
instruments, on sample basis, by comparing the
fair values applied by the Group with publicly
available market data;

e FRIENESERANATFELERRTSER
AT T — AR T AN A TE

° reading investment agreements entered into
during current year, on a sample basis, to
understand the relevant investment terms and
obtaining the information related to the
valuation of financial instruments in accordance
with the terms of the agreements to evaluate
the accuracy of the information used in the
valuation;

o HKMEAFEIIMNRER - ATEERIR
B - WS IR G RGO R T AGEM
AR AR EE G ED A ERERE
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RAEETSIE (&)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

EBTADPEFG ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g), note 18 and note 32(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

FA2EINTE 1(9) BB ETIBUR RAR & I ERR I15L 18 R Mzt 32(f) »

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREER BEMHWESFNAEEZER

We have identified assessing the fair value of financial ®  evaluating the methodology adopted by

instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of management and assessing the reasonableness
of the inputs and assumptions used by

management in the valuations of level 2 and
level 3 financial instruments;
o  MHEEEBRANITE YAETHEREES

models. — T — =T B TN
EENHORIAGEONMEEN R ERERER IS e r L AR EROR AR

R AERERNHERZE  RACEERTANLQF
BFHES RRRESFE -

complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments
and because of the degree of judgement exercised by
management in determining the inputs used in the valuation

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external valuer engaged by the
Group in the valuation of level 3 financial
instruments, if any, on which the directors’
assessments of the fair value of these financial
instruments were based;

e MRUKREHRESEZEBIINEEMRE=RE
MTAME) HEMRENGERS - EFEU
FEHESRTANATEE

. assessing the external valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise and considering their
objectivity and independence;

o FHESNEMEERMEER KRR FEEME  XE
BEEBMERB M
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R R TR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RAEETSIE (&)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

ST A A FERME (8

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g), note 18 and note 32(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

BB 1(9) YR TR R AR 6 BB AR M it 18 K ez 32(1) »

o with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the valuation methodology
adopted by management and the external
valuer with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards, challenging
the key assumptions and parameters adopted in
the valuation, including risk-free rate, share
price volatility, expected dividends, discount
rate and market multiples by comparing these
key assumptions and parameters with available
market data and other publicly available
information and establishing our own valuation
models to perform revaluations; and

o  HEAMBEZERWHBHT - 2RBITSHERD
HERHEE R E RN EMRBNEEE
FRBEETHOEZRRLBEEAGTSEER
REMARERETHEMERLFEERENR
28 (BEERRAE  RELS  BHRS
MERERTISEE) YR EMESHHER
BIPGETER R

o assessing whether the disclosures in the financial
statements reasonably reflected the Group's
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

o Z2ERITEFEAMER  FHEMBHRRTEE
EEAERREEENSRTAMGERR
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HREETEE R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill and brand with an indefinite useful life

R K BAER W LA F A @ R R E RS

Refer to accounting policy note 1(f), note 1(k), note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BLBINFE 1) - HaE 100 B9 B SHECR Rim & BB R M 3E 14 RIFE15 -

The Key Audit Matter
BREER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNFANAEEZER

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the Group's
goodwill and brand with an indefinite useful life amounted to
approximately RMB284.1 million and RMB220.5 million,
respectively, which in aggregate represented 3.9% of the
Group's consolidated total assets at the reporting date.

R2020F12A31 B BEEENEENAFERAIEAFH
WmE s GEHEBEIOAARKE2IIBETRARE
2205887 RREBHAaHE EEERSEEEN3I% -

These assets have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a result of businesses
acquisitions completed in current and previous years.
HRAFERBEFEE TREBWE  ZEEEERES
ISR R P HERR o

Management assess annually whether goodwill and brand
with an indefinite useful life are impaired by means of
discounted cash flow forecasts prepared for each cash-
generating unit to which goodwill and brand with an
indefinite useful life have been allocated. The impairment
assessment of goodwill and brand with an indefinite useful
life arose from the acquisition of MAG is carried out by
management with reference to a valuation report prepared
by an external valuer appointed by management.

EREGTRART —HEESEBEKAGERAERF
HemEnReEHETRBEMRBLMERARTEHE
NAFERAEAFHNMEEE LBRRE - BYEMAGH
FENMAFERITEAFHNRENRENEEHERES
REBEBRERINEEEMRRAEEREET -
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Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of goodwill and brand with an indefinite useful life
included the following:

HAPIF AR ik 2 N B A IR AT 0 PR F B 6 am R O 7
ERENETRTEE

o evaluating the methodology applied by
management in the allocation of goodwill and
brand with an indefinite useful life to relevant
cash-generating units and its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o ZSRIBITHEANER  FEEIEREEMEMR
TELENNHELARERERBFHODE
BB R ARRAEIRIR SR E AR AN

° assessing the qualifications, experience and
expertise of the external valuer appointed by
management in assessing the impairment of
goodwill and brand with an indefinite useful life
arose from the acquisition of MAG and
considering their objectivity and independence;

e FHMEEREZEMIPMEERMNER KREE
¥HHHETHBEMAGHEENMERA
B ER ] B F A m A ERE) MEBREN
BEM B

o discussing future operating plans with
management and evaluating the reasonableness
of the assumptions including revenue growth
and future profitability;

. ERENWARNLENE  FHEBRABRR
*X&ﬂ ENFERBNEEM
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R R TR

REETEE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill and brand with an indefinite useful life (Continued)

PR K BA R R W8 A A0 R RO TR A RE ST A5 ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(f), note 1(k), note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

FAZEMEE 10 - HIZE 1) BB EH IR R AR B SRR 14 RI1aE 15 ©

The Key Audit Matter
BREER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNFANAEEZER

Management's impairment assessment involves significant
judgement, particularly in determining short and long term
revenue growth, future profitability and the discount rates
applied, all of which can be inherently uncertain.

B EHRERE S RERAME - BRI —EEEE BN
WA R - REREMGENLBERNBRETH - 2897 E
BB THEE M -

We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill
and brand with an indefinite useful life as a key audit matter
because determining the key assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts involves a significant degree
of management judgement and may be subject to
management bias.
HREEERHRRRERERNRFEANTERRSNEERR
EMEREHE  YrRRXEERRETZE  BRMALFME
FENAEBERVEAFHNRENETRERIRERE
u+$IE °

performing a retrospective review by comparing
the prior year's discounted cash flow forecast
with the current year's results to assess the
reliability and historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting process;

FREL F—FENRRRRTNERFEN
BR - ETEPERR  UEEEERAGIE
BRI SN RO ERENE

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the appropriateness of
the discount rates by benchmarking against
other comparable companies in the same

industry;
FARBHEESROBY T - BRERITEEMT
LB A R R E BB R R E M

evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management for each of the key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecasts
and considering the possibility of error or
management bias; and

A EEERMIBA e REEARANSEZE
BRAETOSREST - WEBHRERKE
BERGHATRE &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to goodwill and
brand with an indefinite useful life with reference
to the requirement of the prevailing accounting

standards.
2BATEFTERMER - TSR A PV EREFR

BRBMENMABERAEAFHNRENHHKE -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R R TR

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB E R S M| RAEN
B

BB RAEEREREBSAMBERREE
PEERNGEFRER M RN EAEAHER
Bt - WEEHARMEENZBAES - K
IR B EBCR BRG] S 405 IRIE M BB AR
WA o BRULDASH - RIS TR B E A
@& o RAMARABREENARD  HEREM
ATBBESAREEREE -

EERBERBKFHRE  BTEREBRR
(BRETEADETHET  AX —BRER
WLT%Z:’EH% BREZXIR o SRARIR AT LA R KRR =

BRRSIEE - MRAEFEMEMEBHELLR
—Iﬁﬁ%%?v? AT SRR 5 PR A KRR B T SRR P
TE VDR TE » BIG B RO S8R BRA AT B4R 1
EXe

ERBEBETERETEANBES R
PERTEXHE  Ri5TEXEREE - R
1Fg7r

o BRIMFEHENEGFRERMERSS
MEHmRFEERHERRANVER - R
FFRBMITEIREFAEE LR - B
&ZEHX?EEﬂ]iD KR IRE ERE

PMERMER - ANKFFRIES K P
E% W BRER ERRL - F0E

BRAEES 2 L At REEHRRAKR
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]iﬁﬁa%’ﬂ%kﬁ’]ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁé*
EBRBERERMEMNEAERRAH

Rk
o THREREZEWOANMEE AR
BEREZER A jﬁéFa Eff%x

BERHEIENERIEEERE

e HEEFAEAGHERNRE M RE
H—_Il = nﬂﬁd’fﬂ*ﬁgmﬁééﬁ'ﬂéfi’& ©
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R R TR

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021

BB E R S M | RAEN
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaRkEtEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #/ZE 2020512 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 %
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P EE ARET T AREEF T
Revenue WA 3(a) 10,105,646 8,581,932
Cost of sales $HE BN (8,182,812) (7,034,823)
Gross profit EF 1,922,834 1,547,109
Other revenue Eblg A 4 137,977 39,316
Other net income E s 4 98,829 42,804
Selling and marketing expenses tHE R (155,849) (151,166)
Administrative expenses TR (891,362) (770,986)
Impairment loss on trade and B 5 FE b EUGRE R (B 1B 5k
other receivables 32(a) (99,599) (41,723)
Other operating expenses &Mz (43,189) (21,525)
Profit from operations FEg = 3| pies| 969,641 643,829
Finance income A WA 49,307 31,097
Finance costs b & Ak 2N (49,437) (31,847)
Net finance costs BMERKFEE 5(a) (130) (750)
Share of profits less losses of associates 71l Bf & A B F R & 18 23,603 (4,896)
Share of profits less losses of DMhEE R AT EREE
joint ventures 4,596 2,272
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEME QA (BE) W= (6,304) 2,816
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HEALERARNEE = (52)
Gainondisposal of associates =~~~ wEMEARMMS . 1605 -
Profit before taxation BRI A 5 1,003,011 643,219
Income tax FTiSHi 6 (262,354) (170,860)
Profit for the year FERFE 740,657 472,359
Attributable to: LT AL EEAS -
Equity shareholders of the Company NN AR R 710,414 477,405
Non-controlling interests IEIERR = 30,243 (5,046)
Profit for the year FERFE 740,657 472,359
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaREtEEEKER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #/ZE 2020512 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITSIR)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Ff = AR® TR ARETT

Other comprehensive income for the FREMEEEA
year (after tax and reclassification (RBRREH D ERAER)

adjustments) 9

ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMH B2 EBmnEE -
profit or loss:
Share of other comprehensive income  DME& & AR Z Hib 2 mEURA

of a joint venture 176,021 (7,637)
Equity investments at FVOCI — net BEAFEFAEMEENERE
movement in fair value reserves RRAE — R FEGBEZ
FEE (1,984) (6,098)
174,037 (13,735)
ltems that may be reclassified Higrlge B D ERmayEE

subsequently to profit or loss:
Share of other comprehensive income  Dh& & A8z 2K A
of a joint venture (8,929) (87)

Exchange differences on translation BE R EARKFE(THE])

of financial statements of entities RINERBIMERERAEL 2

outside the mainland of the People's EH =%

Republic of China (the “PRC") (324,469) 13,205
e e 988:398)) 13118
Other comprehensive income FREMEEHRA
fortheyer a3y Gl
Total comprehensive income FREEMAWA

for the year 581,296 471,742
Attributable to: LT AL EEAE -

Equity shareholders of the Company NN B REZSRR R 553,384 476,788
Non-controlling interests IEIE IR A 27,912 (5,046)
Total comprehensive income FREZ2EAWA

for the year 581,296 471,742
Earnings per share FRER 10
Basic (RMB) ER(AR®T) 0.23 0.17
Diluted (RMB) g ARET) 0.23 0.17

The notes on pages 150 to 316 form part of these financial statements.  F 1502316 B 2 M T B A Gz 2 —#0 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R IR R

at 31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR ITEIR)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 %
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P EE ARET T AREEF T
Non-current assets FRBEE

Investment properties WEYH 11 479,467 291,863
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB & 12 694,749 581,652
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(a) 746,914 689,866
Intangible assets WA E 14 362,225 326,995
Goodwill (SRS 15 284,077 271,266
Interest in associates Bt N m) e 16 453,911 137,996
Interest in joint ventures R /NEIL 17 226,922 68,862
Other financial assets HEMemEE 18 885,723 705,090
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE = 29(b)(ii) 200,789 180,231
Trade and other receivables B 5 ME M WA 21 - 37,761
Prepayments B FIE 19 14,682 25,565
Time deposits T BpTERR 23 120,000 -
4,469,459 3,317,147

Current assets REEE
Other financial assets HihemEE 18 572,284 106,470
Inventories FE 20 345,505 337,593
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A e FaE 21 1,990,178 1,841,458
Restricted bank balances SRR HIIRIT AR 22 283,512 257,435
Time deposits TEBTE AR 23 980,664 20,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREFEY 24 4,437,192 2,641,334
8,609,335 5,204,290

Current liabilities REEE
Bank loans RITEN 25 6,000 46,822
Contract liabilities aHaE 26 1,112,286 970,679
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAENFIE 27 2,963,378 2,626,841
Lease liabilities HEBE 13(b) 163,730 148,832
Current taxation BN HRF 18 29(a) 404,411 327,912
Provisions P 30 36,008 28,189
4,685,813 4,149,275
Net current assets REBEETH 3,923,522 1,055,015
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 8,392,981 4,372,162
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR ¥Rk

at 31 December 2020 72020412 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR ITEIR)

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P EE ARET T AREEF T
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loans RITEN 25 140,456 435,992
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMENTIE 27 1,868 32,128
Lease liabilities HEAE 13(b) 1,037,449 833,395
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE 29(b)(ii) 75,821 85,120
Provisions B 30 25,344 31,478
1,280,938 1,418,113
NET ASSETS EEFHE 7,112,043 2,954,049
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital R 31(c) 28 24
Reserves e 6,820,631 2,753,219
Total equity attributable to equity =~ A2 FRERR RE(GAER
shareholders of the Company 6,820,659 2,753,243
Non-controlling interests RS 291,384 200,806
TOTAL EQUITY RS 7,112,043 2,954,049

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 ~ EFEN 20214 3 A 26 AL EW FEHTT
March 2021.

Li Hairong Wu Zhihua
E=E S REHE
Director Director
EF 4

The notes on pages 150 to 316 form part of these financial statements. 5 150£316 B 2 MiitBAMEHE 2 — 25 °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEEm 2B R

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #/ZE 2020512 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (AAR#ITAI7R)

Atrbutable to equiy shareholders of the Company

EDTRERRRG
Share of Share of
other other
Fairvdue  comprehensive  comprehensive
PRC Share resene  incomeof  incomeof Non-
Share Share statutory option Other Special Exchange (ron- theimestees  theinvestees Retained contrling Tote
capltd premium esene resene fesene resene resene reeyling  (recyeling)  (ron-ecyeling) profts Totd Interests ey

MERRERY HERENRN

LTRRE  AbREME  AtRENE
Br o BOER oErRE  BRERE 0 RBBE  ROBR  EMBE  (UER) (T88)  (FUE®)  GREAA & MR Eia
Note RIBO0O RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBU0 RMBO00 RIBO0O RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO00
g ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2019 WIOE1R182ER U 108157 63000 %40 5367 106 718 - - (18818) 1213008 238762 76,001 2404783
Changes i equityfor 2019: MYFEERD:

Proftfor theyear ERHIE - - - - - - - - - - 45 145 5.048) ny
Other comprehensive income Eh2aks - - - - - - 1325 (609%8) [} 63 - (617) - (617)
Total poft and comprehensive ERNERREAREE

income for the ear - - - - - - 13205 160%) o0 1631) 477405 1476788 (5046) mnm

Patialcsposal of equiy interests HENEARBARE

insubsidiaries - - - - 892 - - - - - - 1892 3050 2158
Eouity sted share-based EREEIRRAERLRS

transactions i) - - - 62816 - - - - - - - 62816 - 62816
Shares issued under share option BEBRETHRT2RR

scheme 31 ' w0 - (1575 - - - - - - - 63515 - 63515
Capitalinjection fomnon-contoling R HE

Interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 216 8162
Acquision of subsiciries hEKEAT - - - - - - - - - - - - 105391 10591
Acquiston of aitionl interests WENBRANEN B

insubsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (18] (1849
Disposslof subsicares HENRLA - - - - - - - - - - - - (1362 (1362
Dividend paidto non-controling [ahiE z2tic i)

intrests - - - - - - - - - - - - (334 (336)
Dividends declared inrespect HERERERRS

of the previous year 31 - (177748) - - - - - - - - - (177748) - (17,748
Balance at 31 December 2019 HA9E 128318268 U 933041 6300 131 4475 106 03B (60%) (] (6455 14690483 20538 20806 205409
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

eSS R

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #/ZE 2020512 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR ITEIR)

Atributable to equity shareholders o the Company

AOARUBREG
Share of Share of
other other
Fairvalue  comprehensive ~ comprehensive
PRC Share reserve  incomeof  incomeof Non-
Share Share statutory option Other Special Exchange (non- theinvestees  the investees Retained controling Total
capital premium resenve fesenve reserve reserve resenve recycing)  [recycling)  (non-recycling) profits Total interests equity

RERRHSN HERRHSH

I7ERE AbRENE  RERENE
BR BRER GEEEEE  BBRBR 0 REBR  RRER ENGR  (FRW)  (TRE)  (FEM)  RERR & FERRE £
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
e ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARRR

Balance at 1 January 2020 NNE1A182ES % 933,041 63,000 73491 4475 1,066 20333 (6,098) (67) (26,455 1,690,453 2,753,243 200806 2954049
Changes inequityfor 2020: MNFEEED:
Proftfor theyear ERHR - - - - - - - - - - TMoAu s 023 T8
Other comprehensive income Ehaaks - - - - - - (322138) (1,984) (8.929) 176,021 - (157,030) 2331) (19,361)
Total poft and comprehensive EEIERGEYALE

income for the ear - - - - - - (322,138) (1,984) (8929) 176,021 10414 553,384 22912 581,296
Isueofhaes &l 3 4 s - - - - - - - - - 3T - 3uTes
Patialdsposal ofequiy inerests HENBRTTARE

insubsidiaries - - - - 1029 - - - - - - 1,029 3609 4,658
Equity settld share based EREENRIBER RS

transactions i) - - - 57,200 - - - - - - - 57,200 - 57,200
Sharesisuec under share opton BREREIHRIZRE

scheme 3Milf) * 714878 - (28,303 - - - - = = = 8575 = 43575
Capital necioninsubsiiaies FERERAKEATEE

from non-controling inerests = = = o o = - - - - - - B LY
Acguistion of subsidiares WEHEAT - - - = = = = ° o o - - 626 862
Acguiston of additonal nterests WERBD AN BN

insubsidaries - = = o (15012 - - - - - - (15012) 30 (14,692)
Disposal ofsubsicaries HENRAR - - = = = = = = = - - - 3481 3481
Disposal o assocites HERERT - - - - 99) - - - - - - %) - 95
Transfer of ther comprehensive HERAFEARMAENE

income of the nvestees upon heBERLERRENS

the disposal offinancialassets HEpRENE

athioCl 1710 - - - - - - = = o (19,553 19,553 - - -
Dividend pid to non-contrling EfiARERNRE

Interests - = - o o @ o - - - - - (2933 (2933)
Dividends declared inrespect FERERERRS

ofthe preious year 31l - (a0 - - - - - - - - - () - (040
Balance at 31 December 2020 H200512831 B2kt 8B 442250 63,000 102,388 (9,60) 1,066 301,808) (8,082) (9,016) 130013 2420420 6,820,659 29134 711208
* Amount less than RMB1,000. * SEEMNARE 1,0007T °

The notes on pages 150 to 316 form part of these financial statements. 15023162 7 M st B A Bk 2 —2 5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ%

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #/ZE 2020512 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR ITEIR)

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B et AR¥T ARBTT
Operating activities ReEEH
Cash generated from operations LEFTRIR G 24(b) 1,536,891 1,070,440
Income tax paid BATFTSHE (220,897) (151,001)
Net cash generated from operating E& EEFFEH S THE
activities 1,315,994 919,439
Investing activities RETE
Payments for the purchase of BEREME UE BER
investment properties, property, B FREEER
plant and equipment, right-of-use W EEMNK
assets and intangible assets (347,572) (236,791)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELREBZIE
plant and equipment 3,494 4,576
Acquisition of subsidiaries, W@ AR - BRAESRS
net of cash acquired (6,315) (237,699)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEMBAR - MIRAAERE
cash disposed (1,082) (7,723)
Payments for purchase of: BETIIRENK
— financial assets classified as fair value — DA% A FEF ABLR
through profit or loss ("FVPL") (MEATEFTAEBR DB
TREE (1,204,838) (131,226)
— listed debt investments — ETEBRKRE (6,668) (22,190)
Proceeds from redemption of: fEL T F B 50E -
— FVPL — BATER ABR 578,207 21,001
— listed debt investments — FTHEBRERE 37,192 26,918
Payment for investment in associates &R &R & A RME & A A
and joint ventures (308,859) (2,250)
Proceeds from disposal of interest in LEBEQNTNEE QAR
associates and joint ventures FriS 5008 3,394 (52)
Investment income received from HEMESRMEEMSTRERA
other financial assets 7,390 1,102
Dividends received from associates B R R E 1,553 2,957
Interest received BHFE 44,725 32,814
Placement of time deposits, net FFHUE B R 2 JF 8 (1,080,664) (20,000)
Payments for loans and advances BERRBRNR (4,029) (69,126)
Proceeds from repayment of loans BRERRBNRGRIE
and advances 19,760 36,000
Net cash used in investing activities REEZEFTAREFE (2,264,312) (601,689)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ%

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #/ZE 2020512 A31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR ITEIR)

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B et ARET T ARBTT
Financing activities mEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans FIBIRITE R R HALE K
and other borrowings FriS70A 24(c) 6,000 371,740
Repayment of bank loans BRIRITER 24(c) (345,532) (34,175)
Loan from a third party E=HEX 24(c) - 31,046
Repayment of loan from a third party ~ EBFE=FEX 24(c) (9,661) -
Proceeds from issue of shares, BT PG FIR -
net of issuing costs HIBR BTN 3,647,785 -
Capital injection from non-controlling  JEfEf T &
interests 29,343 28,162
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1715 B A% # AT 15 5018 43,575 63,515
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ BfHEMR S 2 EAREH 24(c) (113,752) (86,548)
Interest element of lease rentals paid DA EMRE 2 A B2 H 24(c) (35,530) (20,481)
Proceeds from partial disposal of i S B 8 R =) 38 A A
equity interests in subsidiaries FriS70A 4,658 1,007
Payment for acquisition of W B IR AR M 2 15T 3K
non-controlling interests (19,068) (994)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders B AN A B AR R HIAZ B
of the Company 24(c) (220,450) (177,746)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT R ERAIR S
interests 24(c) (2,933) (12,636)
Interest paid BERFE 24(c) (7,415) (10,389)
Net cash generated from financing  BEEFEFEH ST
activities 2,977,020 152,501
Net increase in cash and HeERRSEEYEMFEE
cash equivalents 2,028,702 470,251
Cash and cash equivalents at R1A1EZRERREEEY
1 January 24(a) 2,641,334 2,180,021
Effect of foreign exchange ExgFHE
rate changes (232,844) (8,938)
Cash and cash equivalents R12A3MAZERER
at 31 December HeZEY 24(a) 4,437,192 2,641,334

The notes on pages 150 to 316 form part of these financial statements. £ 150%E 3168 7 Mt s B A SRz 2 — 25 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in associates and joint ventures.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
24 November 2014 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company's shares were listed on the
Main Board on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 12 July 2016 (the "Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand, which
is the presentation currency. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial assets that are stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

— investments in equity financial instruments measured
at fair value (see note 1(g))

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h))

RMB is the functional currency for the Company's
subsidiaries established in the mainland China. The
functional currency of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiary outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars and Australia dollars, respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendment to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements
for the current accounting period:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Other than the Amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of
the adoption of amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition,
the amendments introduce an optional “concentration
test” that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather than
business acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2020. The amendments have no material effect on
the Group's results and financial position for the current
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows
a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain
qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-
related rent concessions”) are lease modifications and,
instead, account for those rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments and
applies the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-
related rent concessions granted to the Group during the
year. Consequently, rent concessions received have been
accounted for as negative variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurred (see
Note 13(a)(iii)). There is no impact on the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2020.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with note 1(r) or (s) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ST -

1

BIAARETTIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

(d)

ME AR RIEERESR (B)

SR R R M ER B
RARBRHB AR MER - A
SENEGU RZTEENFEA
3 E (T RRIMER - BEAREE
BRZEESBEENASRAERE
BENANET - LB EXBAMM
5 ARENEBR AT ESIHE
PSRBT R B FEE
B BIEt S A SEEA iR -

IR R 2D N AR A MR K
RN - EADRERRRAEN
D RIIR - REERET I
ERERNFABRER RGBS
REMEENRERET  EARRQ
A FEYE R i ot LA 2 AR R 2 RO 4R
ERGAEIEEAKREDE - IF
2R R AP REE TR R HZ
ERBAZHEBENEE BT E
BEUHEZRHE 10RO REFEA Y
B K 2 REBAILE -

AEERKBARNERZESH TS
BRAREEGIEN - AIRERR S
TR BRRBEESAEEN
2R NSEE A S B AR R
HRRENEE  ETHERE
IR HERR IR ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(m)(ii)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (m)(ii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method, together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture (after
applying the ECL model to such other long-term interests
where applicable (see note 1(m)(i))).

156 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

1

SITEERIN  BUAARBITIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

(e)

BENRAMEE L (E)

REERRIRAZERANRERE
SORAIRAR G M IBWEKR - AR
REDERFBIEHE (HFADE
RIFERE ZHEAR) BRI -
RE#E  WENTRRAA
IR YHARBEREGRESRKE
EHABREEFEC AT ERH
BRERANB EHFAR(NE)
REXRABEBEER  WBZKR
BMEEBAEREMKR - RBKA
SEERRE - BOONZBER
AHAEARMEMERRE - It
% RRERRAKEMGREY

B E R AR EREE LS
B (RMEE1H R m)) - WEER
BHAANEAED - AEEFE
FEIEIREHRMBROTE AN
REMBEBRNGA BERE
R MAKEREREHRKIER
MR B b 2 E U ER TR B NER A 1R
m R E M2 E R NER -

EAEEEEBREATHAERT
BB H Rl - AEEN

RESHBRET  YATHERE
BRI ARE AR AE K

HERME KRR EHRNAHAY
BROM o BRUET S - AEE 2w
NiRgs Zt ERENER 2
BOEREBE LBRASEERE
NAEHAERBREFE—HIH
RS AL (EHMEERERE
FERRNEMI AR AR (NE
A (RHEE1(m))



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(m)), unless classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Br >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments

The Group's and the Company'’s policies for investments in
debt and equity financial instruments, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below:

Investments in debt and equity financial instruments are
recognized/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 32(f). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity financial () HtEBRBREAEMIARE
instruments (Continued) (#&)
(i)  Investments other than equity investments (i) BEBEUIINNERE

AEBFAHERARER
AATNEF—ETELRR

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note T(w)(iv)).

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely

REHARA - WA R
B BB RWREA KR
ERE AR LES
KR RMEMK - WE
FISMB RS TERE
BRA RORF H (R KR
Tw)(iv) °

BAFERAREMEZE
W %% (FVOCI) — ] &
2 HRENGHRS

payments of principal and interest and the REEBERE AL
investment is held within a business model g BRETIREE
whose objective is achieved by both the HAREIES LIRS
collection of contractual cash flows and sale. mERHENESER

Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

Fair value at profit or loss (FVPL), if the
investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI

TR - AFEEPR
Hiv 2 mER SR - 1
BHEEER M2
= (B BB A FORG
) RER N ERER
RIBRER - ERER
BUBMER - REMEmE
Wat RSB S

FEEHEE -

mAFEG ARG
(FVPL) » I E TR &
BB SHRCRET 8 IR A

(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the FEFAHMEE W E
investment (including interest) are recognised in (RIE)88) MIZ2E - B E
profit or loss. WA FEES(BER

BIRBEHER ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)

(h)

(ii)

Equity investments

An investment in equity financial instruments is
classified as FVPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective.
Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other net income in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(w)(iii).

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at

fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value

is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

()

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(w)(ii).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of
investment properties, less a residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their lease term.

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(m)(ii)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land (see note 1(l)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line

method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
— Buildings situated on shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their
estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20
years after date of
completion

leasehold land

— Leasehold improvements shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their

estimated useful lives

— Office equipment and 3-5years
furniture
— Motor vehicles 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group upon
acquisition of subsidiaries are measured at fair value upon
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, those
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (see note

1(m)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Br >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

— Software

— Customer relationship

— Unfulfilled property
management contracts

2-10 years

6-9.6 years
remaining contract
periods

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with
finite lives as set out above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBEEE)
(CONTINUED)
() Leased assets (Continued) (I HEEEGE
(i) Asalessee (i) EBREEA
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and MEHBSHEERKI D &
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not FFHEMEKLD  AEEE
to separate non-lease components and accounts for EET Y IEHE G HKE
each lease component and any associated non-lease o WHESEEEEKBS
components as a single lease component for all A0{E o] 48 B8 O 3 1H & 45 A 5D
leases. DER—EE-—MHES#T
G -
At the lease commencement date, the Group REERKBA  AEBEER
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, TREEENHEHEARE B
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of MEBR A2 A TH5E
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets HEEMEEEEENHEE
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and office BROMEBIEER AT MM
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in NRA) - ERKEPR—HE
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides BEEEFMNHER K&
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease BATREGAZEAEAE
basis. The lease payments associated with those RBHEERNE - BRER
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an {EMHEERBNEENRE
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term. HEHANERZRRWERESE
=18
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is EHEwERL BIFHESR
initially recognised at the present value of the lease ELAHEBAENEENRK
payments payable over the lease term, discounted MIREHEITOIAER » WiE
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that RzBEEEN AN
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant FMRANENEEELGE
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, E - RIEAEENIEERER
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and Mo glintER%Z  HES
interest expense is calculated using the effective A A E - BFIR
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not ERARKABERA XL
depend on an index or rate are not included in the H o THURPIE B E &
measurement of the lease liability and hence are AEAENRT TSR E
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in EaENEP - YRBR
which they are incurred. HESANEHRE B -
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERETEERE)
(CONTINUED)
() Leased assets (Continued) () HEEE®E)
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) EBAEBEAGE)
The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is HEERNEBECERNER
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which HEEREKAETGE
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus B AEPEEHEEAGENY
any lease payments made at or before the BE R EAERFLE B K
commencement date, and any initial direct costs ZBIEEWEENF - UK
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of- EEXANTAVKEEER -
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to THEBANBAT EREE
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to ERR AR INBE SR E -
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is VHBAEEXRERABEEE
located, discounted to their present value, less any NEEMEMENERGHE
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is WEZHBE S BEDWE
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated WHEBE - EAREER
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(j) B AR E RETITE MR
and 1(m)(ii)). BB 185 BR(R W aE1()
T(m) (i) °
The lease liability is remeasured when there is a B A KRB H) 5 AR K
change in future lease payments arising from a THENREBEAEEH : iAE
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the B EER TEFEND
Group's estimate of the amount expected to be SREBEE ARERN
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is TEAEBRE A BT
a change arising from the reassessment of whether BE - EHSRIEEEER
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a EEE(bER - ABAZHA
purchase, extension or termination option. When the =HEaBE - 2HERBN
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a AR EHAER - WEHA
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying HEENERmEBEELERE
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in PR HiNFEAEEENRK
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use HEBRLEZE - At AE

Sz
= o

asset has been reduced to zero.
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (Continued)

()

(i)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases,
the group took advantage of the practical expedient
set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised
the change in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property in 'right-
of-use assets’ or “inventories” if they are held for
sales in the ordinary course of business and presents
lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial
position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with
note 1(w)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B 54TaERASN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 1(l)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank balances, trade and other receivables and
loans to associates); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

1(0)).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units
in convertible bonds, equity financial instruments
measured at FVPL, equity financial instruments
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative
financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

1TRERSN - BIAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit

losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that

the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash

shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i)
the contractual cash flows that would be due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment draws
down on the loan and (ii) the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the

following discount rates where the effect of

discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other

receivables and contract assets: effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition or

an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective

interest rate; and

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate

adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating

ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which

the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is

available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESTHEE)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (m) GEFEREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) EMIBEREGHNEENEE
contract assets (Continued) | (E)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) FrERBIEEERE (&)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: BEHEEEBEBEERBUTE
—E e
— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are — 12@REHEEEE:
expected to result from possible default events B R ERE R
within the 12 months after the reporting date; %128 A A AT gL Es A 1Y
and BAEHEXRNERE:
K
—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected — KATEHEZEEE: &
to result from all possible default events over R EHRBEHEEE
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL BEAEAMNER 278
model applies. HiZan M HIFT A AT RER
BREMEHHERE -
Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract BESRWGBERAEHNEERN
assets are always measured at an amount equal to FEEBEEBERRUNENKATE
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are HEEBEENSRETE - &
estimated using a provision matrix based on the EeMEENTEREEERA
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for FREARAEB 2 ESEE
factors that are specific to the debtors and an BB R B EEmETH
assessment of both the current and forecast general g UHREBEBHEARAN
economic conditions at the reporting date. ZUREWE BB E R
TERI B9 — MR A B AR S AT ik
TTHEE o
For all other financial instruments, the Group HRFEEMESRIT A &K
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs SE®EREE N 12188 EH
unless there has been a significant increase in credit FEBENEEEE KIE
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, BYEEARANKREBR T AR
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an EERBEZELIN  Fu5
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. AT BEBEESENKARE
HEaEEENe®E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHEXR(E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (m) GEFEREERESE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) EMIBEREGHNEENEE
contract assets (Continued) BiE (&)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) actual or
expected significant changes in the economic status
of property owners or the operating results of
property developers or the borrowers; (ii)significant
decrease in management/service fees collection rate
of the property owners; (i) significant changes in the
expected performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the payment status of
borrowers ; or (iv) significant changes in external
credit rating and historical write-off experience. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(w)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EFEEHBRXRE)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (m) GEFEREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) EMIBEREGHNEENEE
contract assets (Continued) BB (E)
Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued) FIE Y as o s EHRE(E)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired SHEEEERENZER
includes the following observable events: FEA TR EM -
—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor; — BEBABAERMBRE
B,
— a breach of contract, such as a default or — EBEASH - miEksiE
delinquency in interest or principal payments; EXMFBEHAE
— it becoming probable that the borrower will — BERARATEESE AL
enter into bankruptcy or other financial ESEMBEAR

reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, —  Hif- mis - gEsoR
economic or legal environment that have an BRENAHEBAS
adverse effect on the debtor; or TR ENERNES :

54

— the disappearance of an active market for a —  HBEREBITANPERE
security because of financial difficulties of the &R B R 5T 5 R H
issuer. %o

Write-off policy WA

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or PREENESNEENRE

contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to WBIELEERAKEREE

the extent that there is no realistic prospect of B N F LA ES (BE sk a

recovery. This is generally the case when the Group ) o —MRIBEREE NEEE

determines that the debtor does not have assets or EEHAREEET R K

sources of income that could generate sufficient cash RAILELEZHRERE MU

flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Btz 258 -

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously EREHENEENZED

written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment Wt e el 35 4 B iR R 1R

in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery ZEBERD o

occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (m) GEFEREERESE)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (iiy HivFERBEERE

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be

AEBRZREHRENA
RSN E R - LARETE T 5
BERGHFERETR %
(P EBRIN) St AT FERR YR (E
BEESTBIFAERAED

impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

ventures in the Company'’s statement of financial
position.

exists or may have decreased: L
investment properties; — REME:
property, plant and equipment; — UE - BEMR
right-of-use assets; — ERAREE:
intangible assets; — EPEE:
goodwill; and — BE R
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint —  KRRBEBERREKAT

RETEAT -~ BE QT
REERANEE -

WEFEEAZEFTR - Rl
SREEMA KD S E I
T2 & H IR E T
R BOEEFAFEHENA

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, the recoverable
amount of goodwill is estimated annually whether or G\
not there is any indication of impairment.

W ElEHE -

Calculation of recoverable amount — A EeEEHE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEMAIWESRE AN
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and B & A A A
value in use. In assessing value in use, the BEMEZENRS

estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate

EoRFAHERER
B - fETARRBEDR

that reflects current market assessments of the FTRARMERTISYES
time value of money and the risks specific to the BREENTEREE

asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other

5 E R BR O B AT BE 3R R
MEREHRE - WHE

assets, the recoverable amount is determined EXREEERE LB
for the smallest group of assets that generates REMEEMNE SR
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash- A v BRI Bl & 58 iR
generating unit). REBELARTSRAN
BNEEMARNAIRS
EEBM)ET -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBEEE)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (m) GEFEREEREE)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued) (i) HMERBEERE(E)
—  Recognition of impairment losses — REERZ R
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or EEE(REMBRS
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the ELESA)RMEBH
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, Eraol i B85
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment IR IERREEIE - 5t
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating R & B A B AR AR
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying BEEE LS EAR D
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash- ERAReEEEM(K
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to BRAER) FTE D B R

reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Financial
Instruments on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see note 1(m)(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

(n) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITEERIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(n) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued) (n) BERHMEHRAK(E)
(i) Other contract costs (i) HaEHRE

HAKKAERERR
FE(RMEN) 0) - W
TR 55 Re i i (LM RE 1)) SR
FEE(RMFE1K)BREEP
ERSAHAMEBEKANRTK

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to
fulfil a contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 1(n)(i)), property,
plant and equipment (see note 1(j)) or intangible

assets (see note 1(k)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained, e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future
reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are

expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs
relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract; generate
or enhance resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are expected to
be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as

incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Br >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(ii) Other contract costs (Continued)
Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that
the carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset
relates is recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in note 1(w).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(w)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(m)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 1(p)).

A Contract liabilities is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(w)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(p)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(w)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(0)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

T(m)(i).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(m)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(y)).

178 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ST -

1

BIAARETTIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

85 KA YRR

YRR AN R BB BRI R
FIYERE R T ARERR © B2
BERF BRI e AR BN -
W ER AR B RO BB A A AR = fRIA AN
SEREEGITENATRIREZ
AIEHRNE  ZRFSBIERAN
BENR(RMFE10)) °

FEYRIB R A EBRF SRR B #H
AR E BB RERTIRR (R KR
H(m)(i)) ©

RERBEEEY
RehReEBMERERRTERR
FHERE  RRTREMSEME
HERER AR AR AR RE
MeBERe AAXNEEZD AR
WAEBANEH SRDERE
(EBARERD A TEB3ME
R)-EHFaReREXRME A
BEREEIBRAEERSEE
HE— D ZRITEXMIIARE
KRS FEYH—EAK D - 3R
& MRS FEMRIBIHNHEE 1(m)
() 2 BERFHAEIEMEEEBE -

B RHEMENRE

85 MhEMENFRN S RATE
# o MER AR ER AT -

BRIFRRBMEEBYTEKX - £ZIB

ST ARRRCA SRR o

FFEMEE
AREESEAFERZZHA
B - RUmRERE - SHEEER
RERM R AR B IHKATIE - 15
HRRARNF SRS REASENS
FHBURRER (HIEE 1)



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(t) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to (i)

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to the PRC local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense in profit or

loss as incurred.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Br >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities (v) BERIRERE
(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (i) BRERINRERE

WARBEBEEMHMAR
bEasEEcEE BRE
TREEEATREERHE
MaEmt - WM EEE
B A SEfARTES - RIRER
Big - HIREBBHREEY
BB BEAEET

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote. REfE -

(ii) Onerous contracts (iy EEMEEY
An onerous contract exists when the Group has a EREERBEKREGENTRERR
contract under which the unavoidable costs of E AR A] i R AN R 8 T8

meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received from
the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of the

expected cost of terminating the contract and the net R AFERE CREEZ
cost of continuing with the contract. RERTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBEEE)
(CONTINUED)
(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued) (v) BERIRERE(H)
(iiiy Contingent liabilities assumed in business (i) AEXESHMRENIARE
combinations &
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business REE FFRT A MR R
combination which are present obligations at the date A RBREETZAAEE
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value, RAFEEVSER IR
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. R EMEFEATE R
After their initial recognition at fair value, such BB NTFEENSERE
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of ZERRBEBZYIPER
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated SRR AT HE(WER) M
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that HEIREM 1) E TS5
would be determined in accordance with note 1(v)(i). ZHNREEER  BER
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business BHMAENRABBZA
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or FEKRER EFTERRUE
were not present obligations at the date of acquisition HEWIRABEME  AIRR
are disclosed in accordance with note 1(v)(i). FEE 1(v)() B 58 -
(w) Revenue and other income (w) UezsEBEHE MU A
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises AEEBBARAEBEHBEFBRE
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use HEE R RERESEMAGE
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary AAEEMEEEEMELENKRA
course of the Group's business. HEAWE
Revenue is recognised when control over a product or W 2 A E sk RS HY 1 il i s RS &=
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the EPER A ARG ZEEF A
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised R HeBAREBEIEE
consideration to which the Group is expected to be ESNEAHERE  TRERXRFE=
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of FUE A58 o WA TBIRIEER
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sSKEMEHER  WEHFENES
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. I o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(CONTINUED)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

EREEER (F)
(w) WaasERE IR A (41)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Property service fees, consulting service fee and
community living service fee
For property services, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice based on the value of performance
completed.

For property service income arising from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group
acts as principal, the Group is entitled to revenue at
the value of property management service fee
received. For property service income arising from
properties managed under commission basis, where
the Group acts as an agent of the property owners,
the Group is entitled to revenue at a pre-determined
percentage or fixed amount of the property service
fees the property owners are obligated to pay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(w) Revenue and other income (Continued) (w) WasBEEHAMUWA (8)
(i)  Property service fees, consulting service fee and () YEBRKE ZHABRBEER

community living service fee (Continued) EER%EE (&)
Consulting services mainly include management BAREEZREEEHT
consulting services and property under construction R R ERERDERE - A&
services. The Group recognises revenue as the BRI RE AR
services are provided based on the value of HEEERERWE -

performance completed.

Community living services mainly include community BERSEERETLEER
products and services, home living services, MRS KR - L&z
community space services, property asset MR - MEEEERRS
management services and cultural & education R b A R o BRI
services. For sales of goods in community products BEEMEREFTHNE @ H
and services, and brokerage services in property asset E RYEBEETERET
management services, the Group recognises revenue WLk AEEREE
at point in time when the property owners take (EERESE MR RERERE
possession of and accept the goods and services. For R as o HRRBART - 44
home living services, community space services, == AR - XL EHE R
cultural & education services and other community BRhEMEERRE - ANEEH
living services, the Group recognises revenue when TEIREIRGEERUE - 3%
the services are rendered. These community services ZEERAREEE TRERE
are normally billable immediately upon the services BB E o

are provided.

(i) Rental income from operating leases (i) KEAENASWE

Rental income receivable under operating leases is KETHETR T 2 EWHE S I
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over A INHERRE ZHEA
the periods covered by the lease term, except where NEEIHAFAANERRE
an alternative basis is more representative of the R MEMEHMEETER
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the RERAHEEENSMEN
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised R BIBRIN - RIHZTHEE
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate EREREZAEWEHE
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are NRBEREK LD - A
recognised as income in the accounting period in AP BRER A 2 5T HA R A
which they are earned. RN -
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Bx

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the equity shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note T1(m)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss as other income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(B&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y)

(2)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

FTESEEE (&)

(z2) Related parties (Continued) (z2) PBAEER (@)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) EUATEMBRT  XEE
conditions applies: B ER B A R -

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the

(i)

ZEERAEEGER

same group (which means that each parent, —EErKE A s (A

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the BRAE - WEAR KR

others). EQiy - NI = RN
Be) o

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)

EERES—EEH
BAFHA DK
S—BEAREATN
ES S TN o)

BATRABAT) -

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (il MREEBHER—%F=
party. FTHEERA -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy REERE=Z7EEN
the other entity is an associate of the third BERNRMBE—EREA
entity. RREZHEENEE

NCTIE
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v ZEERSTREEERN

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBEEE)

(CONTINUED)

(z) Related parties (Continued) (z) PBAEER (@)
Close members of the family of a person are those family FALHIHERERE BEEETE
members who may be expected to influence, or be REKHEPELEZBATRHEE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ZEBATHENRKEKE °

(aa) Segment reporting (aa) 7 EE2H
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment DGR RAEINEDE
item reported in the financial statements, are identified &5 It ARANEE S I
from the financial information provided regularly to the BB RN EEEEMESR
Group's most senior executive management for the AEEGRRITHREEERHENTS
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the BRI R K o
performance of, the Group’s various geographical
locations.
Individually material operating segments are not B BREmMS c @A EENEE
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the DETEEEANR  BRIEZEDE
segments have similar economic characteristics and are FBRFER - BERENERR
similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the RS - EETHFHEE - KPP
nature of production processes, the type or class of B E - D IHEmARHIRBEH
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or FAEREERBEUHES T EMEAE
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory oo MERITEAHKELEDE[TE
environment. Operating segments which are not KEBD ez S - BAT#ETT A Bt
individually material may be aggregated if they share a =)
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 2 & &M% 4 &t

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with

HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in

applying the Group's accounting policies, which are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

RETEBBMBREERNBRE 2
EMAERETHRG (A E2E
MERERASE ST RRBEPITE
HAE - BB S T AR ER R E
RBELRENERBATHERGE

MEMEAR - BFEREENE -

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of

TOIRASE & ST RS S im BB 75 B RS
PR R & E 2 HE S5

the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Notes 15, 28 and 32 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment and brand
with indefinite useful life, equity settled share-base transactions
and fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment for trade and other receivables

The impairment allowances for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk of expected credit
loss rates. The Group adjusts judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting inputs for computing such
impairment loss, broadly based on the available customers’
historical data, existing market conditions including forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Any
change in such assumptions and judgement would affect
the expected credit loss to be recognised and hence the
net profit in future years.

(i) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward
and deductible temporary differences are recognised and
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the relevant assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting date. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets, expected
taxable profits are estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating environment of the
Group and require a significant level of judgement
exercised by the directors. Any change in such assumptions
and judgement would affect the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets to be recognised and hence the net
profit in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interest in associates, interest in
joint ventures and investment properties may not be
recoverable, the assets may be considered impaired and
are tested for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised
when the asset’s recoverable amount has declined below
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
determining the recoverable amount which requires
significant judgements, the Group estimates the future cash
flows to be derived from continuing use and ultimate
disposal of the asset and applies an appropriate discount
rate to these future cash flows.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 1(l), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease term
at the commencement date for leases that include renewal
options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to
the Group's operation. The lease term is reassessed when
there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group's control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDHER
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are provision of AEENFEXBARBYER

property services, consulting services and community living

services.

(i)

1 iR N B [ A VR AR

Disaggregation of revenue (i) WABD
Disaggregation of revenue by major service line is as BREIBRBREBANE S
follows: mT
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEHREEAE 155
customers within the scope HERNZREHREF
of HKFRS 15 EHHRA
Disaggregated by major service BRIZEBRED
lines
Property services LIIES ¥ S 6,428,756 5,452,031
Consulting services BEARS 1,427,895 1,217,150
Community living services & A V& AR 2,177,001 1,912,751
10,033,652 8,581,932
Revenue from other sources Hb 3R A
Consulting services B AR
— Gross rentals from investment — REYEHS R
properties 71,994 -
10,105,646 8,581,932
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZE2H (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA ()

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (i) WAZS(E)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with HFEBBMBRMELERES
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by timing of REEME P& R ARIE
revenue recognition is as follows: AEREEE ST -

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Revenue recognised over time: MERRERZ WA -

Property services LE S
Property services LIESY 6,428,756 5,452,031
Community living services B & 4 S5E AR
Community products and services  [B & & F F1 RS 172,694 121,565
Home living services B AEE RS 147,241 116,239
Community space services & Z= i AR 75 194,632 203,726
Property asset management services ¥ & = & 12 R 1% 130,992 158,490
Cultural & education services AL B R 316,840 191,675
962,399 791,695
Consulting services B IR A
Property under construction services 7242 iR 7% 1,189,722 983,283
Management consulting services EIR AR 238,173 233,867
1,427,895 1,217,150
8,819,050 7,460,876
Revenue recognised at point REREER ZWA -
in time:
Community living services B &4 E R
Community products and services % E 5 A AR 75 634,518 419,978
Property asset management services )% & = & 12 R 1% 580,084 701,078
1,214,602 1,121,056
10,033,652 8,581,932
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RBUEBHEPAHEA
customers by geographical location is disclosed in KB AT 5E 3(b) () R IE EE -
notes 3(b)(i).
No revenue from transaction with single external BEE—INREPR IR
customer amounts to 10% or more of the Group's AMEAEBRE 25 EEN
revenue for each of the periods presented. WA 10% A E ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting date

For property services and consulting services, the
Group recognises revenue as the services are
provided and recognises to which the Group has a
right to invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group has
elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these types of
contracts. The majority of the property service
contracts do not have a fixed term. The term of the
contracts for consulting services is generally set to
expire when the counterparties notify the Group that
the services are no longer required.

For community living services that involved provision
of services and goods, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of respective
periods.

There were no significant incremental costs to obtain
a contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B 54TaERASN -

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
location. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following seven reportable segments.

J Region 1: Hangzhou (include Yuhang)

J Region 2: Yangtze River Delta Region (include
Ningbo)

J Region 3: Pearl River Delta Region
o Region 4: Bohai Economic Rim Region
J Region 5: Australia

J Region 6: Other overseas and Hongkong Regions

J Region 7: Other mainland China Regions

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments with
exceptions of current taxation and deferred tax
liabilities.

BIAARETTIIR)

3 WARZEHEH(E)

(b)

DEE2 K
AEERIMIBUEERRER - £
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ABIEHERD B RKRBFENE
HARO TR —BNERT » A&
BRA TR 28D 5P -

o &1 FUN(BERM)

. WE2: EZ-AHE(RES
%)

e  HMR3: K=AMER
o R4 REEKEBEEMR
o MER5: EARFIT

o HR6: HMBIMEEMEE
Hl&@

o &7 PEAEHEAMMBE

() OWEE BERAERE
EE‘JE“-*‘B%%EQ%’?&"*BF‘?
BERAE  AEENSRE
ﬁAEETﬁIJ%i@%%‘%Ef
EWNHNRE BEERA

& -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
profit before taxation. In addition to receiving
segment information concerning profit before
taxation, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter
segment sales), interest income and expense from
cash balances and borrowings managed directly by
segments, depreciation and amortisation, impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set
out below:
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZERZEH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2H(E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) iy oHEE BERAEBEE)
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12831 ALEE
Hangzhou Yangtze River Delta Region
fi REAHE
Yangtze Other
River overseas Other
Hangzhou Region Pearl River Bohai and  mainland
(exclude Yuhang (exclude Ningbo Delta  Economic Hongkong China
Yuhang) Region Ningbo) Region Region  Rim Region Australia Regions Regions Total
At
i REAKE BB BHMER RE AR

(FBERK)  AWHE (TEEER) ERME H-AYE SEELE AANE  FHEME  HAHE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARET:R

Revenue from external customers MBERPPA 2,940,990 446,525 3,112,391 670,681 582,696 1,310,678 278,058 - 763,627 10,105,646
Inter-segment revenue BEELON 54,204 11,766 15,099 2,463 430 7481 - 895 1,515 93,853
Reportable segment revenue A2HAPUA 2,995,194 458,291 3,127,490 673,144 583126 1,318,159 278,058 895 765,142 10,199,499
Reportable segment profit TE2HAIBHE 184,403 28,491 340,856 99,216 63,645 72,894 59,547 60,527 93432 1,003,011
Interest income FIBMA 28,768 2 1,088 129 43 334 102 18,599 223 49,307
Interest expense (excluding expense S FI%

capitalised) (PREERIRY) (16,595) (394) (1,403) (410) (20) (103) (23,042) (7,414 (56) (49,437)
Share of profits less losses of associates 2 {EBE R A HFEE 15,329 - - - - (251) - 8,525 = 23,603
Share of profits less losses of AMERERTHEIEE

joint ventures 4,617 - (21) - - - - - - 4,596
Gain on disposal of associates LEBENRRKE 11,605 - - - - - - - - 11,605
Depreciation and amortisation FEAERER

for the year (excluding (TMREERLRAR)

expense capitalised) (176,385) (7,597) (12,891) (7,200) (2132) (11,340) (64,095) (285) (3,307) (285,232
Reportable segment assets U2HAPEE 6,142,606 416,854 3,104,150 898,641 841,642 1,212,627 1,235,169 3,882,146 947,120 18,680,955
Including: B

Interest in joint ventures RALRRMES 6,687 - 479 - - - 1,033 218,723 - 226,922

Interest in associates RELQTMER 182,204 - 149 - - - - 211558 - 4839

Other financial assets AteRaE 557,428 - 47,585 - - - - 85299 - 1,458,007

Additions to property, plant and FRFENE  BEREE
equipment, right-of-use assets, RREAE RENE
investment properties and intangible ) R EF/AE
assets during the year 353,333 15,695 54,042 6,293 4993 25,502 269,372 518 4,323 734,071

Reportable segment liabilities TERHFEE 6,150,429 213,945 1,794,895 566,270 587,259 586,373 769,465 103,752 517,081 11,289,469
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZEZHH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEFHK(E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) iy oHEE BERAGE)
Year ended 31 December 2019
HENVFRANBLEE
Hangzhou Yangtze River Delta Region
i REAHE
Yangtze Other
River overseas Other
Hangzhou Region Pearl River Bohai and  mainland
(exclude Yuhang (exclude Ningbo Delta  Economic Hongkong China
Yuhang) Region Ningbo) Region Region  Rim Region Australia Regions Regions Total
ifh
i R=fAitE B BMER HEARE

(TEfEAl)  ANtE (TEEER ERMRE KoAME GEEME  BANE 28R AbME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTL ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Revenue from extemal customers SHBERRA 2601246 405159 246530 50864 47Adde 1087617 133811 - 8349 85192
Inter-segment revenue AHERA 22,748 42,138 7,207 4929 17 2,349 - - 2405 83487
Reportable segment revenue EES:VE:LON 2,62399% 447,97 2472567 595,793 476,157 1,089,966 133811 - 825,834 8,665,419
Reportable segment profit/(loss) TEHABRE/ (K8 83,853 35293 23931 51,081 55529 79171 10240 (2/128) 119,075 646,045
Interest income MEKA 19,248 19 639 3 2 35 1967 8634 176 31,097
Interest expense (excluding expense ~ FEHIX

capitalised) (TEEEALR) (11,447) (389) (1471) (440) 13 (53) (11,469) (6531) @ (31.847)
Share of profits less losses of associates A EBE R FIFIEEEE 8,554 - - - - - - (13,450) - (48%)
Share of profits less losses of AERERTHEAEE

Joint ventures 2012 - - - - - - - - 2212
Loss on disposal of a oint venture HE-HRERANER - - - - - (52 - - - (52)
Depreciation and amortisation FEAERER

for the year (excluding expense (TMREERLRAR)

capitalised) (156,634) (8,568) (24421) (7,006) (1,669 (10,149) (24,739) (1182 (3,246) (237,614)
Reportable segment assets TERANEE 3,185,531 U682 2300212 500,560 452,841 909,803 897,945 804,598 839417 10,237,728
Including: e -

Interest in joint ventures REERANER 11,916 - - - - - - 5694 - 68,862

Interest in associates REEATNES 81,202 - - - - - - 56,794 - 137.9%

Other financial assets AfheRAE 120759 - - - - - - 690,801 - 811,560

Additions to property, plant and ERTENE BREREAE
equipment, right-of-use assets, RREAE RENZ
investment properties and intangible AR EF/AE
assets during the year 856,298 2,800 2239 18,117 1,79 12,666 882970 - 7,049 1,804,093

Reportable segment liabilities TEHAIPEE 3,294,753 168,179 1,435,821 282,000 258,060 477961 693,043 38,671 399,562 7,048,050
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WKWARZDEZH (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

(b) ZE2] (&)
(i) A2H/RITBUA - Bz &

profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERAaENYE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Revenue LN
Reportable segment revenue A 23k o EU A 10,199,499 8,665,419
Elimination of inter-segment 1859 HBREBA
revenue (93,853) (83,487)
Consolidated revenue (note 3(a)) AW A (M7E3(@)) 10,105,646 8,581,932
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Profit FHE
Reportable segment profit A2 FAE 1,003,011 646,045
Elimination of inter-segment profits 1855 2B & 51 & - (2,82¢6)
Reportable segment profit derived 3k B = BN = 7]
from Group's external customers 2 5 &8 F ;A 1,003,011 643,219
Consolidated profit before taxation & A4z & F)E 1,003,011 643,219
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WBWARDIE2H:(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2F(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) AAIEREW/WHLIBUA - -EF B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) EREENEHEE)
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A2 EEE 18,680,955 10,237,728
Elimination of inter-segment 185 55 B [ e W sk 18
receivables (5,802,950) (1,896,522)
Deferred tax assets FIEFRTEE 200,789 180,231
Consolidated total assets IR BB E 13,078,794 8,521,437
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREEF T
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities A2HoHatE 11,289,469 7,048,050
Elimination of inter-segment ESg | /_\_LBFEﬁFE,I—J-m)\IE
payables (5,802,950) (1,893,694)
Current taxation BNHEAFE 18 404,411 327,912
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEAE 75,821 85,120
Consolidated total liabilities ZEAMBAE 5,966,751 5,567,388
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 HAWAMEAMFEY S

2020 2019

2020 4 20194

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

Other revenue Hi g A

Government grants (note (i) BT 8 B (BT 3E () 129,701 34,333
Others HAith 8,276 4,983
137,977 39,316
()  Government grants mainly represent unconditional ()  BUTHIBNE B a7 TIRAT R R

discretionary financial support from local municipal

government authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
received the subsidy income of RMB45,003,000 (2019: Nil)
from the relevant government in relation to the impact of
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") and value-
added tax refund of RMB38,208,000 (2019: RMB22,514,000).

HE BRI BB ST -

HE2020F12A3MBILFEE - K
EEREZ2009F U BTRRS
ZIB(TCOVID-19)) M £ M &S
HEBRET®EBKAARE
45,003,000 7T (2019 4F - &) R IE{E
TR B A R % 38,208,000 7T (2019
& ARME22514,0007T) °

2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Other net income HitFE s
Net loss on sale of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment REEBETE (371) (576)
Net realised and unrealised gains/ BRATEFABEHEERMA
(losses) on FVPL BRIz (E18) F5E
— Convertible notes — AR ER 18,381 16,964
— Unlisted equity investments — JEETIRAEE (6,660) 22,008
— Treasury products —E2Em 4,381 36
— Listed trading securities — ETRAES 77,321 2,775
— Funds — &S 3,076 -
Net foreign exchange gains b H R 2,701 1,597
98,829 42,804
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BiATFHE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEIALEIG S GEA) TS EEBES -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
(a) Net finance costs (a) RERANFEE
Interest income on listed debt EmERTAEMNBEKRA
instruments (4,942) (5,358)
Interest income on bank deposits RITERF B WA (44,365) (25,739)
Interest expense on bank loans RITEFFEZH 13,907 11,366
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 51,275 38,300
Less: interest expense capitalised W EREERTERN
into assets under construction* B * (15,745) (17,819)
Net finance costs &R AFEE 130 750
* The interest expense have been capitalised at a rate of 4.9% per * B 3T A 4.9% B9 4F R 5 & AN (B (2019 4F -
annum (2019: 4.9%). 4.9%) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

5 BAIAE(&E)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
(b) Staff costs (b) BIMmA
Salaries and other benefits HAREMET 3,003,136 2,318,580
Equity-settled share-based payment R EE RO &R
expense (note 28) (Bt5E28) 57,200 62,816
Contributions to defined RIEHRET BN
contribution scheme (note (i) (F3EG)) 300,459 347,713
3,360,795 2,729,109
Included in: A
— Cost of sales — HEKA 2,695,355 2,150,084
— Administrative expenses — 1T X 580,091 493,404
— Selling and marketing expenses — HE LAY 85,349 85,621
3,360,795 2,729,109

()  Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme administered and operated by the local
municipal government. The Group's PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the
local municipal government to the scheme to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with these
schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

Due to the impact of COVID-19, a number of policies
including the relief of social insurance have been
promulgated by the government since February 2020 to
expedite resumption of economic activities, which resulted
in the relief of contributions to defined contribution scheme
of RMB67,287,000 and other social insurance of
RMB52,622,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil and Nil).

() AEENTEHBELRESR
A2Mm T mRAFERER
BEMREHRREE - A
B & R BB B R B Ty iR b T
TBRARENEEHEET
B tmAEr SR B
EERIKEF]

B Lt E RSN REHE
BEE M EZ S EEEN
BRI ROEAREE ©

B ACOVID-198 & & - BT B
2020F 2 A#EHEMG T BiE R et E
RBENMZIBHEEE - IR
TEENMIRIE - 1 T B R E &= 2020
F12A31BLEFEREHIRE
B e 5 A AR 67,287,000 7T
REEEREDHBETBAR
#52,622,0007T (20194F : 4 J7 4 ) o
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

5 BATFE (&)

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
(c) Other items HihEH
Impairment losses BEREE
— interest in an associate — R E R RS
(note 16) (FEE16) 16,000 -
Depreciation charge FrEMX
— property, plant and equipment — WE - R MR E 109,306 98,016
— right-of-use assets —EAREE 127,801 109,127
Amortisation charge BHAX
— intangible assets —BEE 35,567 30471
— investment properties —REME 12,558 -
Expense relating to short-term leases 20194 12 A 31 A3k 2 Al
and other leases with remaining BIHAM R EATE & R A
lease term ended on or before HENHEBEER
31 December 2019 (note 13(a)) (F&E13(a)) 89,039 74,864
Expense relating to leases of HIEEBEEEMSHEBN
low-value assets, excluding FX @ TRIEEHE
short-term leases of low-value BEEEHE
assets (note 13(a)) (FFEE13(a)) 210 170
Cost of inventories FERA 492,130 283,223
Outsourcing labor costs SN B TR 3,181,199 2,792,214
Auditors’ remuneration IZ RN B &
— annual audit services — FEENRE 3,350 3,366
— review services — EERB 1,150 900
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 FEERRHMEERRERZ
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 8%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) HmEBEZERZBEREK:

loss represents:

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARMET T
Current tax — PRC corporate BEABiTE — PR EMEBH
income tax
Provision for the year B 279,492 209,490
Over-provision in respect of BT EBERE
prior years (2,515) (623)
276,977 208,867
Current tax — Overseas corporate  EIHiFi1E — B DEFRER
income tax
Provision for the year FEBE 12,757 4,601
Under-provision in respect of BEFERABIR
prior years - 974
12,757 5,575
Deferred tax ELEBE
Origination and reversal of temporary  ERFZ 58 7 B4 M
differences (27,3800 (43,582)
262,354 170,860
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(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HZEeBEEREMEZEWERZ
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND FriE®i (&)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

(b) BIAMXEZERABRGAEZ

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

B FBZHR

2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEFIT
Profit before taxation AT FE 1,003,011 643,219
National tax on profit before taxation, g EZF&HEFHIE -
calculated at the rates applicable RAARIB R EE R
to profits in the tax jurisdictions EANFEREAE
concerned (notes (i) and (ii) CEF5E () R (i) 241,488 160,986
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses, NAIIFiFISE 2 FEFS £ -
net of non-taxable income Bk FEFE SRR UL 4,432 4,937
Additional deduction for qualified aBEBIERR 2 EINIR
research and development cost (B Gin))
(note (iii) (3,445) (1,604)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERZ AERAHIEEEZ
not recognised MGTE 25,749 11,978
Recognition of temporary deductible  #ERBEFERER S
differences and tax losses not REHIBEE 2 Bk
recognised as deferred tax assets AT =R M IEEE
in previous years (3,776) (10,204)
Reversal of deferred tax assets MR BEFERIARE
recognised in respect of tax losses MR ZELEFITE
in prior years BEEED 8,066 4,903
Tax effect of share of results of ey NI N e /N
associates and joint ventures BB (7,645) (487)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of WEERE (REEE),/ BETR
prior years (2,515) 351
Actual tax expense BERHRIERY 262,354 170,860
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and BVI.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities
incorporated in Hong Kong for the income subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax is 16.5%. A two-tiered profits
tax rates regime was introduced in 2018 whereby the
first HKD2 million in assessable profits earned by a
company will be taxed at half of the current tax rate
(8.25%) while the remaining profits will continue to be
taxed at 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made as the Group did not earn any
income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities
incorporated in Australia for the income subject to
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 during the reporting
period is 30%.

PRC Corporate Income Tax
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC
income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

For the Group's subsidiary, Hangzhou Greentown
Vocational Training School (“#71 /N 77 4% 35 B 25 5 51 &2
") ("Greentown Training School”) is recognised as
a small profit enterprise in 2019 and 2020. The portion
of annual taxable income amount, which does not
exceed RMB1 million, shall be computed at a reduced
rate of 25% as taxable income amount, and be subject
to enterprise income tax at 20%. And the portion of
annual taxable income, which exceeds RMB1 million
but does not exceed RMB3 million, shall be computed
at a reduced rate of 50% as taxable income amount,
and be subject to enterprise income tax at 20%.

BIAARETTIIR)

melEERkEMEEKRERZ
Fr% ()

BAMXEZERABRGAEZ
SR FAEZ YR (8)

@i

(i)
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HE(RBEBARES DN
MAIREH - AEBHER
REMHASHERRBHR
RESHPTEN o

REBRINANEEERA
FLF AR E B M S A UL
AHVERPTEHE516.5%
R2018FFEHELEEFEF
BMEE > AR EE
200 BB TLRERT B A B A 1R
T8 % (8.25%) B —H 5T i -
H R H B R #%16.5% = 7
BB E 2020 F [ 2019 6 12
ANBLEFERREAREERS
BERBUERABHBENG
BEOMA - E A S B &
SREE S IE DA -

REFEMABE - @R
1997 A BB FHEZ) R E
MAERAFEEMIEEE
BHMBHBTER30% °

Gil=Tki ST
BRRBIEHAN - NEEHF
BB A R ARTBEMEH
T8 2R 25% B ©

7 5 B B 188 22 R AT M 7 4R 08K
BRI 2R ([ AR R I 2
1) 72 2019 4F K2 2020 F 12 7R
ERNRERNIE 24
ERTREEEARB 1A
BT - % 25% &R %
BRFBEERRAB WS - I
B20% M B R BMIBRAT
Bioe 2FRABMBMSEEA
RE1BSTUALEEEAR
BIABTATHHD EIR
50% By R % B R 5T B R R
W s BE - I 1R 20% H T K 88
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

PRC Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Pursuant to Chapter 28 of the Law of the People's
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax,
enterprises are entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% after the recognition of high and new
technology enterprise. The Group’s subsidiary,
Hangzhou Greentown Information and Technology
Company Limited ("#t M &k 12 E T BER QA"
("Greentown IT"”) has obtained a high and new
technology enterprise certification in 2018 and is
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from
2018 to 2020.

The Group's subsidiary, Lvman Technology Company
Limited (&2 BHE B R A A ") (“Lvman Technology”)
has obtained a high and new technology enterprise
certification in 2016 and renewed the qualification in
2019. It is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% from 2019 to 2021.

The Group's subsidiary, Zhejiang Huixiang
Information and Technology Company Limited (“ J#/L
EZZBRHEBR AR ") ("Huixiang IT") has obtained
a high and new technology enterprise certification in
2020 and is entitled to a preferential income tax rate
of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
relevant regulations, additional tax deduction is
allowed for qualified research and development costs.
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(ii)

(iii)

PEEEMER (E)
RIBCREARLMBE L EAAR
BREFE8ENRE X
RAER/DHEMEER
BISRMEBREAHEE
PRSH - AR BB A RM
MARWAE BB R A A
(TR B £l ) 1 2018 4F
REsmbtEEs -
2018 4F 2 2020 4F 12 15% #) (&
BEREREBEEMEH -

AEBMWEABZEREE
RAR([#ZEREDER
016FESFIEMEEE
EZ WHR2019FEFHER
#2019 & 2021 4% 15% #)
PR RO EREH -

AEEHBARNIZ=Z{E
BRIEERAGD(EZEE
B ) R 2020 FEB =T
fir 1 ¥ & & - #£20204 %
2022 F 1% 15% M) BB K&
BOERTSH
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 7 EEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEA D aHEMI 5 383(N) 1§ M A a] (I
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEENmAERBAOE2H  EF5He
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation WEmT :

are as follows:

Salaries, Equity settled
allowances Retirement  share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme transactions 2020
fees in kind bonuses contributions expense Total
e DEREE I
BER Bk RORER

Este  EUEA BERA HEfR 2REEX 2020F4:
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR ARWT:R

Chairlady E
Ms. Li Hairong L - 1,089 1,11 - 237 3,037
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEEREE = 910 1,420 72 888 3,290
Mr. Wu Zhihua REERE - 850 1,083 69 1,332 3,334
Mr. Chen Hao Bk - 790 1,210 - 740 2,740
Non-executive directors ~ ¥#TEE
Mr. Shou Bainian SHFERE 240 - - - - 240
Ms. Xia Yibo Bzt 240 - - - = 240
Mr. Wang Guangjian FREEAE

(appointed on (202051 86R

6 January 2020) EZfE) 238 = = = = 238
Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERELE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Wong Ka i ERHLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Li Feng ZEEE 240 - - - - 240
Ms. Wu Aiping RESLT

(appointed on (FR2020%1R6H

6 January 2020) EEf) 238 . - - . 238

1,676 3,639 5,424 141 3,197 14,077
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7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7 EEME(E)
Salaries, Equity settled
allowances Retirement  share-based
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme  transactions 2019
fees in kind bonuses  contributions expense Total
Hé IR EE I
EE R BN RIDBER
ek ENEN Szl FSEEY ZRBEX 2019F &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Chairlady IE
Ms. Li Hairong TRELT - 1,089 1,711 - 498 3,298
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEELE - 910 1,406 86 1,866 4,268
Mr. Wu Zhihua REERAE - 850 1,066 86 2,799 4,801
Mr. Chen Hao T - 790 1,210 - 1,555 3,555
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Shou Bainian SHERE 240 - - - - 240
Ms. Xia Yibo E-Kzt 240 - - - - 240
Independent non-executive BIYFHITES
directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERELE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Li Feng FREE 240 - - - - 240
1,200 3,639 5,393 172 6,718 17,122

() There were no emoluments during the above periods paid
by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. In addition, no director has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the above periods.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 HBa#HA*

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2019: TE&ESHEALTH - YA(20194F : I
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. N BES HENMESHRMFE7EE -
The emoluments in respect of one (2019: one) individual are as —Z(20194F « —&) ATHBIH a0
follows: T:
2020 2019
2020 2019 F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Salaries, allowance, and benefits-in-kind ¥ & ~ 2B R EWEF] 822 785
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 884 925
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEIE R 94 86
Share based payment VARR 19 I B 2 1P 3R 666 1,399
2,466 3,195
The emoluments of the above individual with the highest FitsmFATHMEHBENAT

emoluments are within the following bands:

2020 2019

2020 £ 2019 F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A ANEX

HKD2,500,001-HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7t & 3,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HKD3,500,001-HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 % 7T & 4,000,000 7% 7T = 1
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9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9 HttzmkzE
2020 2019
2020% 019F
Before-tax Before-tax
amount Tax benefit Net-of tax amount Tax benefit Net-of tax

iklka HEER HEFE itk HEEs s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETR

Exchange differences on translation of. AT EE 2 BN %% :
— financial statements of entities outside— BRI AN E BT K

the mainland of the PRC (recycling) (r2E) (324,469) = (324,469) 13,205 - 13,205
Equity investments at FVOCI BRATES AR B2 RN
— net movement in fair value reserves  :t€ 7 R E — ATE
(non-recycling) iR FEY(Ra2E) (2,204) 220 (1,984) (6,776) 678 (6,098)
Share of other comprehensive income 2 —fAAE R AMEA
of a joint venture (non-recycling) 2EME (T EE) 176,021 = 176,021 (7,637) - (7,637)
Share of other comprehensive income A —fAA &R FIMEA
of a joint venture (recycling) PEME(TEE) (8,929) - (8,929) 87) - 87)
Other comprehensive income Ht2ENE (159,581) 220 (159,361) (1,295) 678 ®17)
10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREAREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the FRRERBFTIAARD B L @ER
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the % =R & 4G A B A R #5710,414,000
Company of RMB710,414,000 (2019: RMB477,405,000) and TL(2019F + A K ¥5477,405,000
the weighted average of 3,044,192,000 ordinary shares J0) c REARNBEITEBRINEF
(2019: 2,779,932,000 shares) in issue during the year, 19 873,044,192,000 A% (2019 £F :
calculated as follows: 2,779,932,000%) 51 & - 5TELAT :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMETLISH
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
‘000 ‘000
T A% Fhz
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January P1TA1TEZBETEEK 2,789,485 2,771,776
Effect of share options exercised BRI R
(note 31(c)(ii) (B 5E 31()(i)) 4,499 2,156
Effect of share issued (note 31(c)(iii) ~ E1TR& 1 2 $248 (FiI5E 31(C)iii)) 250,208 -
Weighted average number of RI12A31TBZEBR
ordinary shares at 31 December IniEEIHE 3,044,192 2,779,932
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The Company has issued potentially dilutive instrument
such as equity settled share-based transaction (see note 28)
in September 2018, January 2020 and September 2020
respectively. The share options granted in September 2018
have a dilutive effect on the earnings per share during the
year ended 31 December 2020 while the share options
granted in January 2020 and September 2020 have no
dilutive effect on the earnings per share during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Diluted earnings per share is
calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding by the assumption of the
conversion of all potential dilutive ordinary shares arising
from these equity settled share-based transactions.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB710,414,000 (2019: RMB477,405,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjusting of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares amounting to 3,060,738,000 ordinary shares (2019:
2,779,932,000 shares), calculated as follows:

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

10 BREF ()

by SR#HRR
RATE DRI 201849 A ~ 2020
F1AK2020FE9 AITERERE
BEYECT R S EE
BHEZARZ(REE28) - B
018FOABRL CBRELHHZE
2020F 12 A31BIEFENERE
FEABEEER  MHN2020% 1A
N2020F 9 AR 2 B HE
2020412 A3 B I FENERE
FINmEEER - FREERNIZ
PR RIEITE L RARANAE T EUA
BEZSEUNERIEERD AR
SEENMABEE ST ®EIRHE
HEEHETE o

BRESARNTIREAQ AL RE
=R R FE AR 710,414,000
JL(20194 + A R ® 477,405,000
L) RIEABEHBEHRELR
[i%3,060,738,000% & 3 4% (20194 :
2,779,932,0000% ) 14 R EITE 2 &
BRNEFHETESS - ;HE W

T~
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) LB MO E (KEE)
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
‘000 ‘000
FR T
Weighted average number of R12A31 Bz BBk
ordinary shares at 31 December NS £ 3,044,192 2,779,932
Effect of equity settled share-based NEREERODZTH
transactions R W2 16,546 -
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B 2 ER@%
shares (diluted) at 31 December INFE 8 (48858 ) 3,060,738 2,779,932
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 11 REWE
Leased Leasehold
properties  improvements Total
HEWE MHEWMEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREEF T AREFT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2019 R201941 318 - - -
Additions NE 279,918 18,125 298,043
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F 12 A31H 279,918 18,125 298,043
Additions NE 149,384 59,599 208,983
At 31 December 2020 M2020 12 A31H 429,302 77,724 507,026
Accumulated depreciation: HiHiE
At 1 January 2019 M201961 A1H - - -
Additions NE (6,180) - (6,180)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 31 H (6,180) - (6,180)
Additions NE (19,545) (1,834) (21,379)
At31December2020 ~  W2020%12ANH (25729 sy (27,559)
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 403,577 75,890 479,467
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31H 273,738 18,125 291,863

Depreciation charge of RMB8,821,000 (2019: RMB6,180,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has been capitalised in

HE2020FE12A3MBIEFEFEZFES
H A R #8,821,0007T (201946 : AR
6,180,000 7T ) B R iZ S Ak AN 2 E B)
HEREANEE [REWE] -

“investment properties” when these costs are relating to
development activities.

EIREN2020F12A3NBHEKREM X
BI{EH (8 A AR 479,993,000 7T (2019 4 -
AR #291,863,0007T) + Ty RN
EMEEENCITORBHRESRAR
MEEBRIRIR G R B 7 HAETT

The investment properties are valued by management to be
RMB479,993,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB291,863,000)
using discounted cash flow techniques based on contracted and
expected cash inflows and outflows arising from the investment
properties.
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% BERRZRE
Office
Leasehold equipment Construction-in-
Buildings ~ improvements andfumiture  Motor vehicles progress Total
B BENEEE BOZRERRE Pk FRIE @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETTL ARETT ARETTL ARETT AREFTL ARETTL
Cost: HA:
At 1 January 2019 R19E1A18 203,304 148570 123822 24,256 2965 502917
Additions AE 11,062 84,674 40476 7,804 82 144138
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHERR 9457 151,086 5213 673 - 166,429
Exchange adjustments AR 135 2155 5 3 - 2347
Disposals e - - (6,349 (2,003 - (8352
Transfer from construction-in- ~ EEEERIR
progress - - 2248 - 2,208 -
At 31 December 2019 RN19F12A31H 223,958 386,485 165,464 30773 79 807,479
At 1 January 2020 RONETA1E 223,958 386,485 165,464 30773 79 807,479
Additions RE - 159902 53672 4591 176 218,341
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAA - 1298 2311 840 - 4449
Exchange adjustments AR - 5672 1180 7 - 6,859
Disposal of subsidiaries HERHBAT - - (3018) - - (3,018
Disposals hE - (3,268) (6,246) (2,39) - (11,908)
Transfer from construction-in- ~ EEBEEIR
progress - - 316 - (37¢) -
At 31 December 2020 RNNE12A31H 223,958 550,089 13739 3817 59 1,022,202
Accumulated depreciation: ~ R3H7E
At 1 January 2019 RN9E1R18 (21725) (53482 (39.359) (10445) - (131,01)
Charge for the year EERH (8,022) (51,666) (34,550) (3,778 - 98,014)
Written back on disposals HEED - - 2,146 1,054 - 3200
At 31 December 2019 RO19E12A31H (35,747) (105,148) (71763) (13,169) - (225,827)
At 1 January 2020 RANE1R1E (35,747) (105,148) (71,763) (13,169) - (225.82])
Charge for the year EESH 8,329) (55,699) 11,385 (3,893 - (109,30
Exchange adjustments 35 - (650) (698) 2 - (1,350)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBLAF - - %7 - - 97
Written back on disposals HERR - 1902 413 1,868 - 8,043
At 31 December 2020 RANE12A31H (44,076) 159,595) (108,586) (15,19¢) - (327 453)
Net book value: FEFE:
At 31 December 2020 RNNF12A31H 179.882 390,494 105,153 18,621 59 694,749
At 31 December 2019 RN19E12A31H 188211 21,337 93,701 17,604 79 581,652
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% - BMERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's property, plant R2020F12A331H Bk @ B B

and equipment with carrying amounts of Australian dollar 58,166,00032 7T ([CRIT ) (FHERARE

("AUD") 58,166,000 (equivalent to RMB291,778,000) (2019: 291,778,000 7T ) (20194 : 42,590,000 8

AUDA42,590,000 (equivalent to RMB208,020,000)) were mortgaged 7T (R & M A R % 208,020,0007T)) 2 /K

as security of certain bank loans of the Group (see note 25). EEETYE BEERXBERIFES
REBEETRITERZERR (R HE
25) °

As at 31 December 2020, certain buildings with carrying amounts MR2020F12A31H BREEAARE

of RMB15,300,841.85 (2019: RMB16,774,000) had no property 15,300,841.857L(2019F : A R #

certificates due to the collectively-owner rights. 16,774,00070) 2 & TEFHEEEHEA R

i I 8 2 SRR
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SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

13 ERAREEREERE

Right-of-use assets

(a)

Leasehold
properties for
own use carried
at depreciated

EREEE

cost Other leases Total
e
ARG AR 2
BREEME HEmiHE 5T
note (i) note (ii)
M EE (1) B3 Gi)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT ARBTIT AREFIT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1 H 261,880 647 262,527
Additions NE 468,028 2,145 470,173
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YREEHIE A A 439,916 - 439,916
Disposals HE (42,915) (62) (42,977)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEH B AT (332,452) - (332,452)
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12H31H 794,457 2,730 797,187
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1 H 794,457 2,730 797,187
Additions NE 53,294 38,264 91,558
Acquisition of subsidiaries NG 133,075 - 133,075
Exchange adjustments [E H 11,644 - 11,644
Disposals HE (61,167) (12,499) (73,666)
At 31 December 2020 A 2020512A31H 931,303 28,495 959,798
Accumulated depreciation: ZEFHiTE
At 1 January 2019 201951 A1 H - - -
Charge for the year FEYH (139,264) (877) (140,147)
Written back on disposals H & B (o] 32,801 19 32,820
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12H31H (106,463) (858) (107,321)
At 1 January 2020 720201 A1H (106,463) (858) (107,321)
Charge for the year FELH (129,042) (9,992 (139,034)
Exchange adjustments VE % (2,750) - (2,750)
Written back on disposals HE#E 35,544 677 36,221
At 31 December 2020 A 20205612A31H (202,711) (10,173) (212,884)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2020 202012 A 31 H 728,592 18,322 746,914
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 A 31 H 687,994 1,872 689,866
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13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

For the right-of-use assets which meet the definition of
investment properties and inventories (car parking places),
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets as investment
properties and inventories (see note 11 and 20).

Depreciation charge of RMB11,233,000 (2019:
RMB31,014,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020 has
been capitalised in “Property, plant and equipment” when
these cost are relating to development activities.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

ST -

BIAARETTIIR)

13 ERAREEREERE ()

(a)

EREEE (&)
HERBEENAREMENRTE
CREf) 2 E% @ AIRKEBZE
ERREEERRAENMELTE
(RHIEE11 % 20) °

HZE2020F12831HIEFEZ
E A R % 11,233,000 7T (2019
F£: AR%31,014,0007T) 2 R #Z
EXNABBHAZFTHHERNE
(% - BB RE&E] -

BERNEaRRzEEZMIAR
DT

2020 2019
2020 % 2019 4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARMET T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 35,530 20,481
Expenses related to short-term leases 20194 12 A 31 Bak 2 ATE|Hi 2
and other leases with remaining EAHEREMESE
lease term ended on or before BRI E A (HFE5(0)
31 December 2019 (note 5(c)) 89,039 74,864
Expense relating to leases of low-value EEEEEEMREMRBEMNER
assets, excluding short-term leases TEEEHRKEEEEHE
of low-value assets (note 5(c)) (P 5(c)) 210 170
COVID-19-related rent concessions B COVID-19 18FEME & ZR
received (26,295) -

As disclosed in note 1(c), the Group has early adopted the
Amendment to HKFRS 16, Lease, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions, and applies the practical expedient
introduced by the Amendment to all eligible rent
concessions received by the Group during the period.
Further details are disclosed in (iii) below.
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13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a)

(a)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Leasehold properties for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as
its office spaces, teaching buildings, service
apartments and retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 20 years. Lease payments are usually
increased every 2 years to reflect market rentals.

Other leases
The Group leases office equipment and furniture
under leases expiring from 2 to 3 years.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
received rent concessions in the form of a discount on
fixed payments during the period of severe social
distancing and travel restriction measures introduced
to contain the pandemic of COVID-19. The amount of
fixed lease payments for the year is summarised as

13 ERAREEREERE ()

EREEE (E)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BRAEWE

NEECEBHEEREES
FRELNEDERELRQ
EHEE BRERXAQA2ER
TEME HEZVAES
BEA2E20F - HENRK
—BEMFLFA R AR
BiSHE

Htp &
AEBURME=F2HHHE
ERRERBRIE -

COVID-19 {2 S &R

H 220206124318 Ik F
& EABH COVID-19 %15
M BR X BR /B B9 +- 3 R Bl X
HER FIFE e EAR 0 AREE A
BENHZ=BENEE
SHLER - FRETCHE

follows: MRl T
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZ2020F12HA31 HIEEE
Fixed COVID-19 rent Total
payments concessions payments
COVID-19
BERR (EEEASER R #EEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AR¥T AR® TR
Teaching buildings HEKIE 79,169 (20,956) 58,213
Service apartments REXAE 25,914 (1,661) 24,253
Retail stores TEEE 16,706 (3,678) 13,028
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13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 13 ERAREEREEEE ()
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Lease liabilities (b)y HEEE
At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable R2020F12A31H - EEEMHE
as follows: aEmT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 20194

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T ARBFT

Within 1 year —F R 163,730 148,832
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREREREA 178,426 159,374
After 2 years but within 5 years FZRERFA 389,017 344,415
After 5 years FFE% 470,006 329,606
1,201,179 982,227
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14

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BREE
Unfulfilled
property
Customer ~ management
Software relationship contracts Brand Total
RETZ
i XPBE  WEEERY g @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 100,587 9,600 4833 - 115,020
Acquired from acquisition of WEMB ARG
subsidiaries 9412 22,505 730 211,679 244,326
Exchange adjustments FE H R - 459 - 4,735 5194
Additions ANE 33,527 - - - 33,527
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124311 143,526 32,564 5,563 216,414 398,067
At 1 January 2020 2020461 A1H 143,526 32,564 5,563 216,414 398,067
Acquired from acquisition of WEMBARRG
subsidiaries 7,579 - 11,520 - 19,099
Exchange adjustments [ Hi iR - 39 - 4,087 4,483
Additions NE 47,223 - - - 47223
At 31 December 2020 R2020% 12 A31H 198,328 32,960 17,083 220,501 468,872
Accumulated amortisation: BitEs
At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1R 18 (36,594) (1,657) (2,350) - (40,601)
Charge for the year FEXMH (28,348) (1,824) (299 - (30,471)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 4318 (64,942 (3,481) (2,649 - (71,072)
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H (64,942) (3,481) (2,649 - (71.072)
Charge for the year FELTH (28,486) (2,180) (4.901) - (35,567)
Exchange adjustments & 5 R - ®) - - ®)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 8318 (93,428) (5,669) (7,550) - (106,647)
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 4318 104,900 27,291 9,533 220,501 362,225
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31 8 78,584 29,083 2914 216,414 326,995
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 14 BEEE (&)

224

The Group acquired Montessori Academy Group Holdings Pty
Ltd. ("MAG") on 5 July 2019 and recognised the related brand of
MAG (“the Brand”) of RMB211,679,000 at the acquisition date.
MAG is principally engaged in the provision of nursery services
and day-to-day education services. The Brand is stated at cost
and not amortised while its useful lives is assessed to be
indefinite, and the Group performs impairment assessment
annually or when indicators of potential impairment are
identified. The Brand is allocated to the cash-generating unit
("CGU") of MAG, and the recoverable amount of this CGU is
determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. The following table
sets each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of the
Brand as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

REE P 20194 7 A 5 AYLEE Montessori
Academy Group Holdings Pty Ltd.
(TMAG) » I B i B B3 i R MAG
Z HE B8 g ([ dhE 1) ARH 211,679,000
T MAGEEZRFRERZRBELREE
HE R o a2 A6 A F HRT A &
BRE - AZmEERAZS BT
B BRASEESFRERTELR
ERERHEETRERN G - ZmED
REMAGZREELBM([REEESE
fi2]) BREGEEBMZAIKEISETD
RBRACELBEU 2 EREEEE - %
EHECANASREEENKERE
HEZ AFHMMBEE - TRIITER
& 72020 12 A 31 B K% 20194 12 A 31
HERERESBHEEMETZ RERE
ARRBZZEEERR :

2020 2019

2020 2019

Revenue (% annual growth rate) WA (FIEEZRY) 3.0% - 41.0% 2.5%-51.1%
Staff cost (% of revenue) BTHRA (WA Z %) 52.8% — 54.0% 56% — 59.6%
Long-term growth rate RHEERX 3.0% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate TRAIITIR X 14.8% 14.82%
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(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

15 GOODWILL 15 EH&
RMB’000

ARBTT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2019 MR2019F1 A1 R 82,071
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries RUREEIT B A R E L 185,997
Exchange adjustments ME 5 e B 3,492
Disposal of a subsidiary HE T E AT (294)
At 31 December 2019 R 20199F 12 A31H 271,266
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries R B A R E A 20,281
Exchange adjustments PE 5% 5% (6,479)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENE T (991)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A 31 H 284,077
Carrying values: BRMEE -
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A 31 H 284,077
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 271,266

Impairment of CGU containing goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is
allocated to a group of CGU (being subsidiaries acquired in each
acquisition, mainly in property service and cultural & education

REeE4EN (BB RE

RETEHERENS  BEesEE—
AReELEN (ESREETEAN
MEBAR  ETEENMERSEEUEH
BRE) - BUBRSELBUARKREAE
EAAMEEEMNERHEIKERRX

service area). Such group of CGU represents the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 %

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREEFTT

MAG MAG 155,816 162,295
Subsidiaries in property service INZES ) S VNC] 75,078 75,078
Subsidiaries in other services REAMRSE 2K B AE] 53,183 33,893
Total st 284,077 271,266

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections primarily based on the respective financial budgets of
the CGU covering a five-year period estimated and approved by

management.

ReELBEMz OB ERERE
REEAEETE ZFAEEANRS
MEREBRERNCEREMELET2
EReEABLDFHRUBES -
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15 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 15 BHE(&E)

Impairment of CGU containing goodwill (Continued)

The following table sets each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill arising on acquisition of MAG as
at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

ReEXEN(BEEE)REE)
TRV EEER2020F128318 &
2019F 12 A31 BERER & RIEE it
772 B EE MAG 7= A 19 78 22 50 (BB F 3%
AZz8BEEFEER:

2020 2019

2020 % 2019 4F

Revenue (% annual growth rate) WA (FEBEERY) 3% - 41% 2.5% -51.1%
Staff cost (% of revenue) BTHRARMWAZ%) 52.8% - 54.0% 56.0% - 59.6%
Long-term growth rate RHER =R 3.0% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate TRATITIR X 14.8% 14.8%

The estimated recoverable amount of MAG exceeded its carrying
amount by approximately RMB91.3 million (2019: RMB79 million).
Management has identified that a reasonably possible change in
four key assumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed
the recoverable amount. The following table shows the amount
by which these four assumptions would need to change
individually for the estimated recoverable amount to be equal to
the carrying amount.

Revenue (% annual growth rate)

WA (FIREX%)

Staff cost (% of revenue)

BTARAKRAZ%)

Long-term growth rate

REERR

Pre-tax discount rate

PRI

In respect of goodwill arising on acquisition of other subsidiaries,
the value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections primarily
based on the respective financial budgets of the CGU covering a
five-year period estimated and approved by management. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated to be similar
to that of the respective final forecast years on existing service
capacity. The pre-tax discount rates ranging from 13.30% to
22.60% (2019: from 15.94% to 21.52%) reflect current market
assessment of the time value of money and specific risks relating
to the CGU.

Based on the results of the above assessment, the Group
determines that there is no impairment on goodwill as at 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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MAG F&H AT B S BR B AR E 2 B A
REN3IBET(2019F : ARKT9H
Br) BEECKER  WEXERR
RAIER ML R E BRI E AR
BAKEERE - TRETR T E0ERRK
DHFEREHN SR - UEMEFTE AT

-3.02%
-3.02%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 16 RNEERNT 2R

2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFT
Investment in associates REE N R 2 &
— Costs of investment, unlisted — IEFTEER A 152,099 108,950
— Costs of investment, listed — ETEREK A 199,578 -
— Exchange adjustments — [EH % (22,709) -
— Share of post-acquisition results, — LR EE
net of dividends received (EMBREWRERE) 3,841 (18,209)
— Share of reserve of associates — [ ARG = 95
— Gooduwill —EE 137,102 47,160
— Impairment of investment in associates — REEE QR 2R ERIE (16,000) -
453,911 137,996

TREJNHAERZER - RPRIKBNE
RARIRES LMRAERIN - Kb SEMS

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group.
Except for Zhong Ao Home Group Limited which was listed

equity securities in Hong Kong, others are unlisted corporate
entities whose quoted market price is not available:

WEIFENERER

Place of Effective interest
Form of incorporation Registered held by the Group Principal activity
Name of associate business structure and business capital At 31 December and legal status
ML R KEER12A318
NG EHRBEA EXxud EfEx BANERER IERB AR
2020 2019
2020 2196
Yiwu State-owned Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 40% 40%  Property management,
Services Company Limited limited liability
company
ERTHERINEREERLA Bl P AR 3,000,007 NXREE  BRALAT
Shanghai Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40%  Property management,
Services Company Limited limited liability
company
LERRRINEREER AR AL G AR 50000007 WEER  BRELLT
Shenyang Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40%  Property management,
Services Company Limited limited liability
company
BB AN EREER AR a4V Gl AR 50000007 WEER  BRELLT
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITEERIN  BUAARBITIIR)

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 16 REE QT 2= (&)

Place of Effective interest
Form of incorporation Registered held by the Group Principal activity
Name of associate business structure and business capital At 31 December and legal status
ML R KEER12A318
BEDTER EHRRREA BRI EMER BRNERER TEEB AR
2020 2019
2020 2195
Jiaxing Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 - 40%  Property management,
Services Company Limited limited liability
company
BRI EREER AR ML T ARRE500,0007C NXREE  BRAEAT
Quzhou Xinhu Greentown Services Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 40% 40%  Property management,
Company Limited limited liability
company
BRI EREER AR MR T AR#5000007C WEER  BRELLT
Jurong Xinhu Baohua Conference Incorporated the PRC RMB100,000 40% 40%  Meeting and banquet
Center Company Limited services, limited
liability company
ORHHEESET OBR AR AL e AR#1000007C EEVEHUE
EREALT
Zhejiang Xinlv Commercial Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 40% 40%  Commercial management,
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company
MIHSHRReERERAF 1AV hE AR#10,000,0007T BEER BRELLT
Zhejiang Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 40% 40%  Property management,
Services Company Limited limited liability company
LRI EREER AR MR P AEH10,000,0007C WEER  BRALLT
Zhejiang Greentown Lvfa Property Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 15% 15%  Property management,
Management Company Limited limited liability company
MIRBRENEREERAR MR G ARH10,000,0007T WEER  BREMLT
Tuotuo Network Technology Co., Ltd. Incorporated Cayman Islands, USD100,000 50.56% 47.73%  Music education, limited
("Tuotuo") (i) business share of liability company
operation USD0.0001
inPRC each
Tuotuo Network Technology Co., Ltd. By REHS - 100,000 7T & BEYE BREALA
([Tuotuol) (i) WREET 00001 EL2 R
*HEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 16 REEE QT 2R (F)
Place of Effective interest
Form of incorporation Registered held by the Group Principal activity
Name of associate business structure and business capital At 31 December and legal status
EMRILR KEER12A31H
BENTER EBERER EEBE ERER BENERER TERBRERBA
2020 2019

2020 20194

Ningbo Yule Investment Co., Ltd. Incorporated the PRC RMB50,000,000 40% 40%  Investment management,
limited liability company
ERAEREBRAR Rz i A% 50,0000007C REER AREMATF
Beijing Oriental Star Education Incorporated the PRC RMB33,163,637 11.84% - Technical advisory, limited
Technology Co., Ltd ("O-Star") liability company
ERES EHERBROBRAR Rl Gl ARE 33,163,637 T RitiAR  ERECAR
Zhong Ao Home Group Limited Incorporated Cayman lslands ~ HKD80,000,000 19.32% - Property management,
("Zhong Ao Home") limited liability company
FERIFEEER AT )
PRIREEERAA(RRIR) ) #lKT eSS 80,000,000 7T NEEE  BREMAT
* The English translation of the Company name is for reference only. The * AREBHRXEEREHRBE - ZFLN
official names of these companies are in Chinese. EEBERPX
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 16 REE QT 2R (&)

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group () EZE2020F12A31HIEFE K
acquired additional 2.83% equity interests in Tuotuo and % B U B Tuotuo MY &8 41 2.83% %
owned 50.56% equity interests in Tuotuo as at 31 December oW MR2020F12831H % &
2020. Tuotuo £ 50.56% AR # ©
The control over Tuotuo shall be governed by the board of ¥ Tuotuo BV 1% I # Ty B3 Tuotuo =
directors of Tuotuo, and any resolution passed will be EEEE  MBBNEAIRERS
based on a simple majority. As the Group has only one fifth ERNBEEZH R AEEE
voting power in the board of directors of Tuotuo, the Group Tt EBEFEEHEEL D Z — K
accounted for the investment in Tuotuo as investment in an LEE - KEE R Tuotuo 1%
associate. BIRABNRBERRIZIRE o

(i) During June and July 2020, the Group accumulatively (i) 20206 A K7 A - AEBEIE
acquired 165,059,300 shares of Zhong Ao Home at cash &R (B#9265,372,0007% T (FHER
consideration of approximately HKD265,372,000 (equivalent AR H242,386,0007T) R5HUEE+
to RMB242,386,000), representing 19.32% equity interests in B8 5| 5% 165,059,300 A% A% 17+ 1k &
Zhong Ao Home as at 31 December 2020. Zhong Ao Home B E| X R2020F12A318 1
is listed on the Main Board on the Stock Exchange of Hong 19.32% 5t - FRHREFBEE
Kong Limited. The principal activities of Zhong Ao Home RGMBR AR ER LT - HEE
are to provide property management services, sales RTENEREMEETER - 84
assistance services, cleaning and greening services and real EHBIRTS © B EGCIRIS LB H
estate agency services. As the Group assigned two directors ERERS - AR AEERFERE
to the board of directors of Zhong Ao Home and could RESEFEIMEES  WAA
have a significant influence over Zhong Ao Home, the RRUEPRIARELAETATZE At
Group accounted for such investment as investment in an REEHZIRET R AN —EEE
associate. NAIKIRE o

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity FrE Ll AR RB RS ERERE N

method in the consolidated financial statements. TERERALR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summary financial information on principal associates:

Summarised financial information of Tuotuo, adjusted for fair
value and any differences in accounting policies, and a

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

16 RBHE DTz & ()
TEMEATZHBEERHE -

Tuotuo Z I ER B E (EB A FEE
SR BREAEZERELFE) MG A 3%

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial MARBRMEZEREENT ¢
statements, are disclosed below:
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Gross amounts of the Tuotuo’s Tuotuo BERAE B 2 %
Current assets RENEE 10,343 6,006
Non-current assets ERBNVE 24,870 27,548
Current liabilities mEAE 16,550 7,236
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 3,646 4,314
Equity Rt 15,017 22,004
Revenue for the year FEIRA 25,884 14,044
Loss for the year FEER (14,172) (28,179)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 2 E W 4258 (14,172) (28,179)
Included in the above current assets: ETALMRBIAE ¢
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEED 7,365 3,942
Reconciled to the Group's investment  EZZAEE A Tuotuo IR E 2 ¥ iR
in Tuotuo
Gross amount of Tuotuo's net assets Tuotuo & EFELAZE 15,017 22,004
Group's effective interest REBERER 50.56% 47.73%
Group's share of net assets of the associate N6 [E o (R % B & A 7] B EFE 7,593 10,502
Goodwill A 46,292 46,292
Impairment of investment in the associate 4 A ¥ 5% B & A B IRERUE
provided during the year (16,000) -
Exchange adjustments B 34, 58 (3,654) -
Carrying amount in the consolidated FEPBHREREEE
financial statements 34,231 56,794
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of Zhong Ao Home, adjusted
for fair value and any differences in accounting policies, and a

BIAARETTIIR)

16 RBHE DTz & ()
RREIR 2 AR E (ERATEER
G BB EAERIFHER) REAH S

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial MERBEEEZHERENT
statements, are disclosed below:
2020
2020 F
Zhong Ao
Home*
BB R *
RMB’'000
AR® T
Gross amounts of the associates BENTEHER 2#%
Current assets MEVEE 1,200,373
Non-current assets EREEE 1,144,241
Current liabilities MEBAE 1,101,163
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 145,887
Equity (g 1,097,564
Revenue from the acquisition date to U BE HHZ= 20204F 12 A 31 HEUR A
31 December 2020 913,239
Profit from the acquisition date to I HE B B3 % 20204 12 A 31 A FE
31 December 2020 62,806
Total comprehensive income from the acquisition  Ut8& HEFZE 20204 12 A 31 HHY
date to 31 December 2020 2EW BT 62,806
Included in the above current assets: sFALMURENEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeSEYD 495,773
Reconciled to the Group’s investment HAEERBEE QARREZEHE
in the associates
Gross amount of net assets of the associates B AR EEFABRE 1,097,564
Group's effective interest REBEEREDS 19.32%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEDEZEE N BB EFE 212,049
Goodwill [GES 42,829
Exchange adjustments e 54, S B (19,055)
Other adjustments HAh FH % 3,056
Carrying amount in the consolidated FEVBHRREEE
financial statements 238,879
* Figures were quoted from Zhong Ao Home's published financial information * HFRMATRIRZEBMUBEER  WE

and were adjusted based on the fair value adjustment.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

BIAARETTIIR)

16 RBHE QR 2 ()

BRI NEARREE R RS B

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMBFIT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually %R & Bi§sR R N{ERIFEE KR
immaterial associates in the consolidated  Bft& /A & fAE BRI B
financial statements 180,801 81,202
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of N4 B E(L 32 SHEE A 7]
those associates’ gains from operations & &EAR KRB LEE 15,078 8,554

Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of investment in Zhong Ao
Home was RMB102.80 million, based on its quoted market price,
which was below its carrying amount by approximately 56.97%.
Management of the Group performed an impairment test and
determined the respective recoverable amount of the investment
based on its value in use. The calculation has considered pre-tax
cash flow projections of Zhong Ao Home for the five years ending
31 December 2025 with an extrapolation made to perpetuity. The
discount rate used to discount the cash flows to their respective
net present values was based on cost of capital used to evaluate
investments of similar nature in Mainland China. Management
judgement is required in estimating the future cash flows of
Zhong Ao Home. The key assumptions are determined with
reference to external sources of information. Based on the
management'’s assessment results and sensitivity analysis
performed, there was no impairment of such investment as at 31
December 2020.

One of the associates of the Group incurred continuous losses. In
view of this, management of the Group performed impairment
test on investment in such associate and made a provision for
impairment loss of RMB16,000,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil) based on the results of the
assessment.

REEE

202012 A31H - REMWIHSRE -
FEIRNEEATFERSARE102.80
BEL REEREKLS56.97% ~EH
EREETRENR  WRHEFEAER
ETRENHENTKRDSE - ZAE8E
EEFRRIREE2025F12A318 1
FEAFE R EEHE S KEHEANT
AIRESRETRE - BHR S RERIE AH
FEFHERATEAMNRIE R ABENAI
STAE R B R B AN E AR IR E R E R
PRAMAEE o far P BERKKRE R
EFREEREHE - BREZ2EIHNIB
BERRRET - RIBBEEETHERM
BURE DA - FA20209 12 A 31 B #% 4%
B ERE

AREBH—HBL AR EZHBERSE-
BERIL NEESEBREZ2020F
12831 BIEFERERZHE A FNE
BT TRENS  WREFGEE R
2T AR 16,000,000 7T (20194 : &)
R B IEEE -
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 17 REERTIZER
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Costs of investment AR 79,861 93,429
Share of post-acquisition results, R E A
net of dividends received (AN E IR E) 6,431 1,835
Share of other comprehensive income FEMEE & ATz B2 EKE ()
of a joint venture (i) 120,851 (26,628)
Share of retained profits of [EIEEE AR ZREFIE ()
a joint venture (i) 19,553 -
Goodwill e 226 226
226,922 68,862
The following list contains only the particulars of joint ventures, TRIEFHERBARERENGS M BRE
which are accounted for using the equity method in the ABEHNEERE 2 ER

consolidated financial statements:

Place of Effective interest
Form of incorporation Registered held by the Group Principal activity
Name of joint venture business structure and business capital At 31 December and legal status
HEME IR REMMN12531H8
RENTER EHRREA BRI EMER BHNERER IREBR LR
2020 2019
2020% 2019F
Shanghai Huamu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB1,000,000 50% 50% Property management,
Management Company Limited limited liability
company
EREASHNFREBRAF MR G ARH1,000,0007T nxEE:
AREMEAT
Anhui Yanye Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 60% 60% Property management,
Management Company Limited limited liability
company
RHEEGANERBARLRR* iy Gl AR%3,0000007C nxEE-
BREMEAT
Xiangtan Chengfa Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 51% 51% Property management,
Service Company Limited limited liability
company
RETHESHNEREBRAF AL PE ARH5,0000007C nxEE
AREEAR
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 17 REg& D rRzEz= (&)

Place of Effective interest
Form of incorporation Registered held by the Group Principal activity
Name of joint venture business structure and business capital At 31 December and legal status
BN AEER12A31A
RENFER EBRRRA Exud EMER BENERELS IREBRARBN
2020 2019
20205 2019%
Sensegain King (Hong Kong) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HKDS50 million 40.30% 40.30%  Investment holding,
("Sensegain King") (note (i) ordinary share of limited liability
HKD1 each company
USD29,780,000
preference shares
of USD1 each
Bt (BB BRAA (RS (HEER) EMKL &R NAEEBLERIET REER
2 E41R 29,780,000 AREMERA
ENERIXT
ZBER
* The English translation of the Company name is for reference only. The * RALEOEXBEFERSE - ZERFH
official names of these companies are in Chinese. IRERTER -
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

All of the above joint ventures in which the Group participates
are unlisted corporate entities with no quoted market prices
available.

()  Sensegain King is a joint venture in which the Group has
joint control through its acquisition of 40.30% equity
interests in its preference shares as at 31 December 2020
and 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the ordinary share
capital of HKD50 million has not been fully paid-up and the
preference share capital of USD29,780,000 has been fully
paid-up.

Sensegain King is an investment vehicle structured for the
purpose of investing in common shares of Palantir
Technologies, Inc., a big-data company in the United
States, which was listed in New York Stock Exchange in
September 2020.

Furthermore, major operating decisions of Sensegain King
and the eventual disposal of Palantir Technologies, Inc.
requires the unanimous approval of the ordinary and
preference shareholders. According to the shareholders’
agreement, the Group is only responsible for the
proportionate share of the profit and loss, assets and
liabilities arising from its indirect investment in Palantir.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Sensegain King
recognised the fair value change through other
comprehensive income (non-recycling) of RMB equivalent
436,778,000 in investment in Palantir. In addition, Sensegain
King disposed a part of common shares of Palantir in 2020.
The realised gain of RMB equivalent 48,519,000 from such
disposal was transferred from other comprehensive income
to retained profits. As a result, the Group recognised the
fair value change through other comprehensive income
(non-recycling) of RMB equivalent 176,021,000 and
transferred other comprehensive income of RMB equivalent
19,553,000 to retained profits through the share of other
comprehensive income of the investee during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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BIAARETTIIR)

17 REERQT & (K)
e LA EES RN A E AR R
ETREER - BAETISRE -

RUEERELERF  AEEEBR
20204F ]2 2019412 A 31 A YIE &
18 5t B 40.30% # =5 1M 7 A L[R2
Hil 7 o PA20205F12A31H - E@
PREXAS0 B & BT AR RRAT
ifn 8 5% A% A% 7% 29,780,000 3 7T E &
2RBE -

BRESRREFABER  URER
ES X E & A FlPalantir
Technologies, Inc. ( 74202049 A
RN G ) eEmk -

BEoN - BR i E 2 F B EEREK M
# i) & Palantir Technologies, Inc.
R4S i IR I B S IR IR R — Bt
o BERRIBE  ~AEBEEER
7 b I 5> 8 R 3 3 & 7 Palantir
ELfCiEE  BERAE-

HZE2020F12A318IEFE » B
tt & 7 Palantir 2 I E FERIE A F
BEEEET AR M2 AR E T A S
) E(E AR 436,778,000 7T © It
GBSt & 20204 H & X o
Palantir E@ K - ZNEZEZH
Wz EE A R # 48,519,000 7T B #E
Eferml=ER=REFNE - B
I AEBERE 22020F12 A 31
AIEFERRIEZAFEEHT AL
thEERE (T EE) FEARE
176,021,000 7T + 3 % EAth 2 E W E
£{E AR 19,553,000 TERHE
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

1TRERSN - BIAARETTIIR)

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 17 REegAmzi#ER (&)
Summarised financial information of Sensegain King, adjusted for Be s MBERE (BEREstEE
any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the MZEEHAR) MREMTEHRRERE
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are ZHBRIEEMNT
disclosed below:

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Gross amounts of the Sensegain King's Bitt&EEIER ZH %
Current assets mENE E 78,285 8
Non-current assets SEMEBNEE 472,906 136,777
Current liabilities nBBEE 14 81
Equity RS 551,177 136,704
Revenue WA = -
Loss for the year FEREE (149) (10)
Other comprehensive income from N EZE cHi2ERE
fair value change (non-recycling) (INm2)E) 436,778 (18,950)
Other comprehensive income (recycling) B2 E Uz (AT 2)4) (22,157) (216)
Total comprehensive income ZHEW R 414,472 (19.176)
Transfer of other comprehensive income  HAh 2 E RSN FEE
from fair value change (non-recycling) (A 8leE) B = (R 7
to retained profits 48,519 -
Included in the above current assets: ETALMRBAE ¢
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEED 78,227 7
Reconciled to the Group's interest HEALEEREHTE R ZHER
in Sensegain King
Gross amount of Sensegain King's Bt B EFEEE
net assets 551,177 136,704
Group's effective interest REEEEER 40.30% 40.30%
Group's share of net assets of the associate N E B S (F 42 QR EEFE 222,124 55,092
Exchange adjustments I 5 R (3,401) 1,853
Carrying amount in the consolidated RAEMBHRERETEAE
financial statements 218,723 56,945
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 17 REg& D rRzEz= (&)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually ERETEANELARNEGEEER
material:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Aggregate carrying amount of individually %R & Bi§sR R N{ERIFEE KR

immaterial joint ventures in the S NEINRREE

consolidated financial statements 8,199 11,917
Aggregate amounts of the Group's AEBEREZFAERT

share of those joint ventures’ REEFERBHEEST

results from operations 4,596 2,272
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 HiteMEE
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
Non-current FEFRE
Financial assets measured at BRI E 2 eREE
amortised cost
- Listed debtinvestments (note () — EWEBEA MW 32498 34963
Financial assets measured at FVPL WA EFABZZEHEE
— Convertible notes (note (ii) — AR R ZE R (B R Gi)) 412,262 420,481
— Unlisted equity investments — FEETRAIRE 277,208 243,687
— Funds (note (v)) — &2 (FisE W) 160,000 -
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 849,470 664168
Equity instruments measured at fair value AT EzF AH M2 E Uk
through other comprehensive income (AT EFAEMEEYE])
("FVOCI") (non-recycling) FrEZ#ER T A(CTAEE)
- Unlisted equity investment (note (i) — P EMBASRA (MaEG) 3.755 ... 5959
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 885723 705090
Current #E
Financial assets measured at REEN AT EC S REE
amortised cost
- Listed debt investments (note () — EW@EBE&EMEWD 6,506° 39639
Financial assets measured at FVPL BAFEFAEBRTEZEREE
— Treasury products — BREM 47,585 -
— Listed equity securities (note(iv)) — ETRAES (5T (v) 119,667 66,831
— Unlisted equity investment — FEETRRAIEE 30,902 -
—Fundstnotetv) . —EEMEG 367.624 ... -
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 572,284 106470
1,458,007 811,560
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The listed debt investments are measured at amortised cost
using an effective interest rate of 3.79% to 9.99% per annum
(2019: 4.09% to 14.9% per annum).

China CVS Holdings Limited (“China CVS”) is principally
engaged in operating retail stores in the PRC. On 28
September 2017, China CVS issued convertible notes to the
Company for a principal amount of USD54,000,000. The
convertible notes bear interest at 6% per annum and
conversion period of the convertible note will expire on 27
October 2022. The Company measured the investment at
FVPL as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The unlisted equity financial instrument measured at FVOCI
represents investment in equity interest of a private entity
established in the Cayman Island. The FVOCI designation
was made because the investment is expected to be held
for a long-term period for strategic purposes.

The listed equity securities represent the investment in
Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd., which was listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The fair values of the equity
securities held for trading were determined based on the
quoted market prices in an active market.

The Group entered into several contracts of funds (the
“Funds”) with financial institutions. The principals are not
guaranteed and the return of the Funds are determined by
reference to the performance of the underlying instruments
including equity and debt securities.
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1TRERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

18 HitE@EE (&)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

tTTEBEREEREBRF X
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

19

20

SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

PREPAYMENTS 19 FAFFIE
2020 2019
2020 4 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBFT
Prepayments for purchase of software EEEHIBEN IR 14,682 25,565
INVENTORIES 20 #E
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMBTIT
Properties held for re-sale* FEEE %+ 248,419 274,013
Merchandise for re-sale EEE 94,121 62,988
Others Hib 2,965 592
345,505 337,593
* Properties held for re-sale represent right-of-use assets relating to car * FEEEMEEAREBEE W EBSMA

parking places purchased by the Group for re-sale.

BfERREE -
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EZRHEMEWKTIE

2020 2019
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E AR®T R ARBFT
Trade receivables from third parties FE=HEHEWFIA 1,395,209 1,127,119
Less: Allowance for impairment of B SR GUBR AR 32(a)
trade receivables (137,085) (92,526)
1,258,124 1,034,593
Less: trade receivables due after B —FREIENE S EW
one year, net of loss allowance FOE - MR EEEE - (37,761)
1,258,124 996,832
Other receivables, net of loss allowance  ELth E UL RIE - 1[G 18 B 377,727 324,686
Receivables from disposal of an HERE QR B GRIE -
associate, net of loss allowance 1B 5 18 B 45 - 30,696
Amounts due from related parties FE UK BAESE 5 FR0A 34(d)
— trade nature —B5HE 6,478 7,255
— non-trade nature — B SHHE 24,036 45,581
Amounts due from other staff fEURE AL & T 5008 12,806 11,903
Financial assets measured at REHENTTENESREE
amortised cost 1,679,171 1,416,953
Deposits and prepayments e RIARFRIE 311,007 424,505
1,990,178 1,841,458

Trade receivables are primarily related to revenue recognised BIRWHRIAF ZHEBHDERS - &
from the provision of property services, consulting services and RS & B @ A E R 7 AR B H AR

community living services. 7 -

RETHEREEEEREME - A5H
BTETEFPEENERNR  BEE
2446 A WOBSFE 50 - B E o B AR 75 Ko
HERRME - B S RKRFIRERKR
TRRER RS RHY -

For certain property asset management services, the Group
allows certain customers with appropriate credit standing to
make payments over a maximum period of 24 months. For other
provision of services and sales of goods, trade receivables are
due when the receivables are recognised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BEKEMEYRREE)
(CONTINUED)
Aging analysis SRR DA
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade REREHR - ARIBFUWATER B 5 &0k
receivables due from third parties based on the date of revenue BORENZBREREBNREE=Z7H
recognition and net of allowance for impairment of trade B S REWETERE AT ¢

receivables, is as follows:

2020 2019

2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT

Within 1 year —&FR 1,137,070 910,630

1to 2 years —EWE 107,550 121,205

Over 2 years LA E 13,504 2,758

1,258,124 1,034,593

For further details on the Group's credit risk management policy FARSEEERBRERBEERESE

and credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note WHIEFRE A EERRAE —TFIEH

32(a). BT EE 32(a) ©

22 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 22 ZRFIBITAER

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMETIT

Escrow funds held on behalf of REBEFHENTEED
customers (note 27) (note (i) (K5 27) (B EEG)) 71,582 77,683

Cash collected on behalf of the owners’ REXEZGWEHE S

associations (note 27) (note (ii)) (M5E27) (HFEGi) 199,368 170,212
Restricted deposits (note (iii)) PR HI7F 3% (HTRE Gii)) 12,562 9,540
283,512 257,435

()  Escrow funds represents the advance cash deposits () FEEERA/RREHEMENIERS
received from buyers as requested by sellers to secure the HEREREZEREERWRNE S
transactions during the provision of real estate agency BN o
services.

(i) The Group collects cash on behalf of the property owners’ (i) AEBERREZSUDRE  ER
associations as part of its property management service HMEBERBEBH —BD - B
business. Since the property owners’ associations often face MREZ SR ENFRRITRSEE
difficulties opening bank accounts, the Group opens and REE A AEERKRELZSH
manages these bank accounts on behalf of the property BREBRZERITRS ©

owners' associations.
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22 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 22 Z[R#/R1T4E6R ()

(i) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, restricted deposits (i)  FA20204F K 2019412 A31H » %
represent certain deposits in the designated banks as RHITFRAETHERIEERITIES
guarantees for the execution of cleaning services and HITRZIREOBERTRREREE
deposits for utilities. g o

23 TIME DEPOSITS 23 EHEXR
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Time deposits held at the bank ERITRIE 2 FE BATF 3K 1,100,664 20,000
Less: Amount included under W FIATREBEE] Me5E
“current assets” (980,664) (20,000)
120,000 -
As at 31 December 2020, the time deposits held at the bank have M20205F12A31H - RIBITHBZE
annual interest rate ranging from 1.60% to 3.70% (2019: 3.85%). BIF R EFE N T 1.60% = 3.70% (2019
F 1 3.85%) °
24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 RERBRESEEY

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RERBREZEYERE:

2020 2019

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Cash in hand FHERES 473 526
Short term fixed deposits 2 HATE BT 3K 252,480 550,000
Cash at bank RITIFH 4,467,751 2,348,243
4,720,704 2,898,769

Less: Restricted bank balances (note 22) & : 528 #14R 174564 (M5 22) (283,512) (257,435)
4,437,192 2,641,334
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 BERBSEEY (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIAIF HEKSEEKMEN
generated from operations: REHR:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥ET T AREFT
Profit before taxation AT A 1,003,011 643,219
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation charge FrEXH
— property, plant and o E RS
equipment 5(c) 109,306 98,016
— right-of-use assets — AR EE 5(c) 127,801 109,127
— investment properties — WEME 5(c) 12,558 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 & £ $5 5(c) 35,567 30,471
Impairment losses of trade B 5 K E At R MR IR
and other receivables WIEEE 99.599 41,723
Impairment of interest REE R B 2 RRE
in an associate 5(c) 16,000 -
Interest expense FEFS 49,437 31,847
Interest income FEMA (49,307) (31,097)
Equity-settled share-based DS EE R E R
payment expenses 5(b) 57,200 62,816
Net realised and unrealised gains &2 F{EZT AIBZEH)
on FVPL BEERRARERF NG (96,499) (41,783)
Net loss on sale of property, HEME - WER&EZ
plant and equipment BB 4 371 576
Share of profits less losses GBS R R AEREE
of associates (23,603) 4,896
Share of profits less losses of DihEE QRN ERER
joint ventures (4,596) (2.272)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HERBRRAN
subsidiaries &8, (W) 6,304 (2,816)
Gain on disposal of associates & & R A UL (11,605) -
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HE&EA L ATIHERE - 52
Changes in working capital: BEESED)
Increase in inventories FEEm (4,869) (32,592)
Increase in trade and B 5 & EH Ab FEUGRIEIE N
other receivables (213,420) (570,676)
Increase in restricted bank deposits 5 [ i $R 1717 51 1% AN (26,077) (108,538)
Increase in contract liabilities BH BB 141,607 221,984
Increase in trade and B 5 & EH Ab FE FRIBIE N
other payables 308,106 615,487
Cash generated from operations &4 15384 1,536,891 1,070,440
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(BR

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

SITEERIN  BUAARBITIIR)

24 RERBEEEY ()

(CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () METHFELZABYER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFMAANEBRMETENELEZ
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BaEZE(pERe NIER S
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are B MEIHELAEEARS
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will mEAKRESRETAET A
be, classified in the cash flow statement as cash flows from e RERZREEHMERS TR
financing activities. EzAE-
Lease Loan from Dividend
Bank loans liabilities  a third party payable Total
REE=F
RITER HEAE BX ERRE Hst
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AR®T AR%T AR®T AR®T
(Note 25)  (Note 13(b)) (Note 27) (Note 27)
(MizE25)  (FIEE13(b)) (KiE27) (BFEE27)
At 1 January 2020 #2020F1 818 482,814 982,227 31,046 340 1,496,427
Changes from financing MERERELD
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans  #1IZRITEFT K
and other borrowings HEREE A 6,000 - - - 6,000
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER (345,532) - - - (345,532)
Capital element of ERHEESZ
lease rentals paid BERED - (113,752) - - (113,752)
Interest element of ENEERE Y
lease rentals paid MBS - (35,530) - - (35,530)
Repayment of loan from BREE=FER
a third party - - (9,661) - (9,661)
Interest paid BERFIE (7,415) - - - (7,415)
Dividends paid to equity BRAARIERRR
shareholders of the Company ~ H)f% & - - - (220,450) (220,450)
Dividends paid to non- BFFERERSRE
controlling interests - - - (2,933) (2,933)
Total changes from RERGRELDEH
financing cash flows (346,947) (149,282) (9,661) (223,383) (729,273)
Other changes: Hiti2 5
Increase in lease liabilities from HiN & #7312 &m0
entering into new leases HEEERE
during the period - 219,980 - - 219,980
Decrease in lease liabilities REHEAEREA
from disposals - (53,136) - - (53,136)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)  FIEF X (FE5(a)) 13,907 51,275 - = 65,182
Acquisition from subsidiaries I EH B AR - 140,561 - 10,211 150,772
Exchange adjustments fE N RE (3,318) 9,554 - - 6,236
Profit distribution B IR - - - 223,383 223,383
Total other changes Hin g 10,589 368,234 = 233,594 612,417
At 31 December 2020 2020128310 146,456 1,201,179 21,385 10,551 1,379,571
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(B&

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

24 RERBEEEY ()

(CONTINUED)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () METBRELEZBEHERE)
activities (Continued)
Lease Loan from Dividend
Bank loans liabilities  a third party payable Total
RAE=H
RITER HEARE =5 RS @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
(Note 25) (Note 13(b)) (Note 27) (Note 27)
(MizE25)  (PFEE13(b)) (M7 27) (MzE27)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H 950 - - - 950
Impact on initial application & X EAEBHHRE
of HKFRS 16 RRE16RMTE - 249,449 - - 249,449
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1818 950 249,449 - - 250,399
Changes from financing MERSRERE
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans #1817 E A58 371,740 - - - 371,740
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER (34,175) - - - (34,175)
Capital element of [REREES TG PA N 1P)
lease rentals paid - (86,548) - - (86,548)
Interest element of ENHERE ZFIEHS
lease rentals paid - (20,481) - - (20,481)
Loan from a third party F=HER - - 31,046 - 31,046
Interest of bank loans paid BRBRITEDRRE (10,389) - - - (10,389)
Dividends paid to equity DRADFERRE
shareholders of the Company ~ RIf% & - - - (177,746) (177,746)
Dividends paid to non- B FEERERNRE
controlling interests - - - (12,636) (12,636)
Total changes from financing  BI&R&HEEHLE
cash flows 327,176 (107,029) 31,046 (190,382) 60,811
Other changes: Hit g5
Increase in lease liabilities from  HiFY 8 #1EFH & ML mn&y
entering into new leases HESHE
during the period - 715,415 - - 715,415
Decrease in lease liabilities REHEAERE
from disposals = (374,655) - - (374,655)
Interest expenses (note 5(a))  F BB sT (M zE5(a)) 11,366 38,300 - - 49,666
Acquisition from subsidiaries Y8 B A7) 141,837 454,483 - 9,631 405,951
Exchange adjustments 0& 5 A% 1,485 6,264 - - 7,749
Profit distribution FEDR - - - 181,091 181,091
Total other changes Hin @iz 154,688 839,807 - 190,722 1,185,217
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F128318 482,814 982,227 31,046 340 1,496,427
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 BERBREEEY (E)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (dy #HAEBRSRE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases HINHEERERERTPHESED
comprise the following: T
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Within operating cash flows REEHREMEAN 89,249 77,335
Within investing cash flows REERESREN 16,296 32,842
Within financing cash flows REERSREN 149,282 107,029
254,827 217,206
These amounts relate to the following: ZECHEEATENER
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AR¥ETTT
Lease rentals paid ENHEERS 238,531 184,364
Prepayment for leased properties ENEEYE 16,296 32,842
254,827 217,206
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25 BANK LOANS 25 RITEX
(a) Short-term bank loans (a) HEHIRITER
2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 3E ARET AREFT
Unsecured EIR R (i) 6,000 5,000
6,000 5,000
Add: current portion of o RESSRITERZ
long-term bank loans BIHAER > 25(b) - 41,822
6,000 46,822
() As at 31 December 2020, unsecured bank loan with a () 2020128318 EEEAA
carrying amount of RMB5,000,000 (31 December 2019: E % 5,000,000 7T (20194 12 A 31
RMB5,000,000) was guaranteed by Hangzhou High- A : AE®5000,0007T) 7 KR
tech Guarantee Co., Ltd., a third party independent of RITER T RAEE B E=H
the Group. MNRBHEERBR A TR ©
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25 BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

SITEERIN  BUAARBITIIR)

25 RITERAE)

(b) Long-term bank loans (b)y EHISRITER
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B aE AR®T T ARBFT
Secured Pogiiwi

— USD denominated — AZETTFHE (i) - 340,532
— AUD denominated — DUBITEHE (i) 140,456 137,282
140,456 477,814

Less: current portion of A REIRITERZ
long-term bank loans BIHAEB 25(a) = 41,822
140,456 435,992

(ii)

Secured bank loans denominated in USD as at 31
December 2019 were early repaid on 3 July 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, secured bank loans of
AUD28,000,000 (equivalent approximately to
RMB140,456,400) were secured by certain property,
plant and equipment of Montessori Academy Group
Holdings Pty Ltd. ("MAG") with the carrying amount
of AUD58,166,000 (equivalent approximately to
RMB291,778,000) (see note 12). The loans will be
repayable before July 2022.

Such loan is subject to the fulfilment of certain
financial covenants of MAG. If MAG was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facility would become
payable on demand. MAG regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. As at 31 December
2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facility had been breached.
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26 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26 ENEE
2020 2019
2020 4 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Property services R 951,437 844,589
Consulting services R R 48,640 43,930
Community living services B [& A E IR 112,209 82,160
1,112,286 970,679
Movements in contract liabilities: anaBEEHNT :
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Balance at 1 January BT A1TBZ &% 970,679 748,695
Revenue recognised that was included in  F#it AA VB BEHZ
the balance of contract liabilities at B HERUA
the beginning of the year (963,196) (739,585)
Increase in contract liabilities as aresult ~ FEWBRIEEE 2 A LB FEEMN
of receipts in advances of provision
of services 1,104,803 961,569
1,112,286 970,679
Contract liabilities represents prepaid property services fees, BREERENYERKE  HHRRS
consulting services fees and community living services fees EREWERETERSE -
received.
The amount of receipts in advance of performance expected to A RTHCER 89 R IE A FE B A AN R A —
be recognised as income after more than one year is FrmERArBREN B RAR
RMB17,673,553 (2019: RMB7,483,110). 17,673,553 70 (20194 + AR# 7,483,110

JT) e
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27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27 EZRHMEMNKE
2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
P 5T ARET T ARETFT
Trade payables B 5 EN A 922,290 690,842
— Billed trade payables — BH#EEE S ENFIE (a) 812,322 609,162
— Accrued trade payables — EEE S ENNIA 109,968 81,680
Bills payable JERTRIEFRIA 25,491 129,786
947,781 820,628
Less: trade payables due after B —FRIIBHNE S
one year FERTRIE (1,868) (32,128
Trade payables (current) B Z e RIE (BNER) 945,913 788,500
Refundable deposits RS (b) 370,529 353,229
Accrued payroll and other benefits  fEz+ T & & Hth 487 405,046 356,487
Escrow funds held on behalf of REEFEAENIEEES
customers (note 22) (FF5E22) 71,582 77,683
Cash collected on behalf of the RREZSWENES
owners' associations (note 22) (FftzE22) 199,368 170,212
Other payables and accruals Eib N RIE N EAER 150,016 179,642
Temporary receipts AT (© 554,940 468,789
Amounts due to related parties FEAST BAESE 5 F00A 34(d) 3,295 11,890
Loan from a third party E=ZHER 21,385 31,046
Dividends payables to JE T SR AR M 2 AR B
non-controlling interests 10,551 340
Financial liabilities measured HEEK AT ENERHAE
at amortised cost 2,732,625 2,437,818
Other tax and charges payable HihENHIERER 230,753 189,023
2,963,378 2,626,841
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27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 27 EZ R H A ETRIE (H&)

(a) Trade payables mainly represent payables arising from sub- (@) EBEHSENRBEBXERESBRE(E
contracting services including cleaning, landscaping, EEEETREEAORE S8 4%
maintenance and security services provided by suppliers, ERRERS) EERENFKIE
and payable for the purchase of goods and car parking LA K B8 B 7 @b R B BB AL Y FE A5 3K
places. I o
As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis BESHREHR  EREEEREHN
of billed trade payables, based on invoice date is as follows: EHEESRNREBERESTN

T~
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Within 1 month —fEAR 625,026 473,557
After 1 month but within 3 months —EABE=EARN 74,959 52,465
After 3 months but within one year = R&ET R —F 112,337 83,140
812,322 609,162

(b) Refundable deposits represent miscellaneous decoration (b) TFIERERSANEEIEEEEK
deposits received from property owners during the M MIREERS -

decoration period.

(c) Temporary receipts represent utility charges received from (0 MREERAREARRZEAAME
residents on behalf of utility companies. PUREE ARREER -
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 LIESAREURODAER 2

254

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution of shareholders of the Company passed
on 25 May 2018, a share option scheme was adopted (“Share
Option Scheme”) for purpose of providing incentives to certain
directors and employees of the Group (“Eligible Participants”).
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their direction, to invite Eligible
Participants.

On 11 September 2018 (the “First Date of Offer”), the Company
granted share options to 4 directors of the Group and certain
employees of the Group (“the First Grantees”) at nil
consideration and the First Grantees finally acknowledged to
subscribe for 122,410,000 shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HKD6.116 (the “First
Grant”). The closing prices of the Company'’s shares immediately
before the Date of Offer and on the Date of Offer were HKD6.06
and HKD5.71, respectively.

On 23 January 2020 (the “Second Date of Offer”), the Company
granted share options to certain employees of the Group (“the
Second Grantees”) at nil consideration and the Second Grantees
finally acknowledged to subscribe for 33,150,000 shares of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of
HKD9.214 (the "Second Grant”). The closing prices of the
Company'’s shares immediately before the Second Date of Offer
and on the Second Date of Offer were HKD8.92 and HKD9.214,
respectively.

On 14 September 2020 (the “Third Date of Offer”), the Company
granted share options to certain employees of the Group (“the
Third Grantees”) at nil consideration and the Third Grantees
finally acknowledged to subscribe for 25,770,000 shares of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of
HKD?9.3 (the “Third Grant”). The closing prices of the Company'’s
shares immediately on the Date of Offer and the average closing
price for the five business days immediately before the Third
Date of Offer and on the Third Date of Offer were HKD9.28 and
HKD?9.3, respectively.

The options have vesting periods of 3 years commencing after 12
months from the date on which the Eligible Participants have
achieved the length of service in the Group and have a
contractual life of 10 years. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 DERGEEURODHBER 2R
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 2 (&)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BREZBERREHENT :
follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
BREZ
TAYE BEHFHT BHED
Options granted to directors:
RTEEZHBRE
—on 11 September 2018 10,800,000 The first exercise period shall commence from 10 years
— 20185 9A11H trading day after expiry of the 12-month period 104
— on 23 January 2020 210,000 from the date on which the Eligible Participants
— 202091 A 238 have achieved the length of service in the Group.
— on 14 September 2020 320,000 B—(ETEHEEER2EERREENTIES
— R 2020F9 A 148 RmRBR12EARNEERZELE -

The share options shall be exercisable separately
in the subsequent 3 exercise periods, whose
percentages of options exercisable are 33%, 33%
and 34% respectively, subject to the Eligible
Participants’ performance as the conditions of
exercise.

TG TIAN S BIR2EENEE - BiE
AR EEEE=ETERR D ATE - FHH
1T LB B A 33% ~ 33% J2 34% ©
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 UESEEURO/ERZX
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 2 (&)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) REZKERREHEDT : (8)
follows: (Continued)
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
BRE
TEHE BEGH BHEH
Options granted to employees:
RYREEZBBRE
—on 11 September 2018 111,610,000  The first exercise period shall commence from 10 years
— 201859 A 11H trading day after expiry of the 12-month period 104
— on 23 January 2020 32,940,000 from the date on which the Eligible Participants
— 202051 A23H has achieved the length of service in the Group.
— on 14 September 2020 25450000 FE—ETHEHEAER2EENKAKRENTIES
— 20209 A14H R ZBARREARNEERSALE -
The share options shall be exercisable separately
in the subsequent 3 exercise periods, whose
percentages of options exercisable are 33%, 33%
and 34% respectively, subject to the Eligible
Participants’ performance as the conditions of
exercise.
TREHTIANEBIRDEENEE - BIRE
AR R EEE = ETE ST D RITE - SHH
1T LB B A& 33% ~ 33% K 34% °
Total share options granted 181,330,000
RtEREeR
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share options
are as follows:

ZBgﬁgﬁiuﬁﬁ%EﬁZQ
(b) EERREZBERTEEMT :

2020 2019
20205 2019
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price  options ("000) exercise price options ('000)
INREF 3 BRERE g1 BRERE
THefE (FR) T1E(E (FRO
Outstanding at the FEXIARITIE HKD6.116 103,855 HKD6.116 122,410
beginning of the year 6.116 BT 61167
Forfeited during the year FRRIK HKD7.471 (7,371) HKD6.116 (6,847)
7.471 %t 6. 11687T
Exercised during the year FRITE HKD6.116 (8,793) HKD6.116 (11,708)
6.116 BT 6116
Granted during the year FARE HKD9.252 58,920 - -
9.252 & T
Outstanding at the end EREARITEL HKD7.308 146,611 HKD6.116 103,855
of the year 7.308 & T 611678 TT
Exercisable at the end FRATE HKD6.116 40,260 HKD6.116 18,647
of the year 61168 6. 11647T

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for shares options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020 was HKD6.116 (2019: HKD6.116).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had exercise
prices of HKD9.3, HKD9.214 and HKD6.116 (2019:
HKD®6.116) respectively and a weighted average remaining
contractual life is 8.3 years (2019: 8.7 years).

HE20200F12A3MBILFETEZRE
RERERA T BBl 2 IEFHRIE 5 6.116
BT (20194F : 61168 7T) ©

R2020F 12 A31 8 » MARTTHE 2 ER
EZITEED R A93EBIT 9214 T
T 61167 76 (2019 4F = 611678 78 ) KA
EFEHRGE N FHA8IF (20194 ¢
87%F) e
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B =178

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a Black-Scholes
model. The input variables under the applied model are as
follows:

AN

BIAARETTIIR)

28 LUESEHIURDAER ZX
& (1)

(c)

BREZAFERBR

FLIR BB R R T R ER BR S 2 A A
D2ERLEREZ ATVEE -
B LB 2 5T A FE T A
NREFREENXGE - TAEXH
WAFENMT :

Grant date
REBH

18 September 23 January 14 September
Fair value of share options 2018 2020 2020
and assumptions BREZATERRR 2018 9H18H 20201 H23H 20209 R 14H
Fair value at measurement date R ERBZATE HKD1.54-HKD2.01 HKD2.068-HKD2.487 HKD2.141-HKD2.420
154870 ~2.01787T 2.068/87T~2.487 BT 2141787 ~2.4207%8 T
Share price k(& HKD5.710 HKD8.92 HKD9.28
571077 8.92 7T 9.28 7T
Exercise price TEE HKD6.116 HKD9.214 HKD9.3
6116787 9.214 7T 93BT

FRERE® AR N AT R
B 2R AR g
EES TN

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used
in the modelling under
Black-Scholes-Merton model)

Option life (expressed as weighted ~ BBREAMFHARERNT

average life used in the modelling FREEAEERHMA
under Black-Scholes-Merton model) TG FHER)
Expected dividends TEERE
Risk-free interest rate (based on ERBRFE(LINERSEE
Exchange Fund Notes) REE)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were
no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.
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5.5 years-9 years
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1.90%
2.254%-2.316%

31.17%-31.92% 30.80%-32.23%

5.5 years-9 years
55F ~9%F
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55%F ~9%F

2.20%
1.5149%-1.5573%
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

29 mREMBRRREFED

(a)

mEMBRRRHENABIALE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T AREEF T

At 1 January ®1A1H 327,912 259,907
Provision for current taxation FAENERT TR

for the year 289,734 214,442

Acquisition of subsidiaries Ug BB B A A 7,662 4,564

Payments during the year FRNFK (220,897) (151,001)

At 31 December R12A318 404,411 327,912
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax
assets and liabilities
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

29 HEMBRRROFTEH (&)

(b) B
(i)

RIEEBREERERE !
EERBREERBESENK
BoNEE
REREE M BHEAOR R A
REELEHREE (AE)
MR ER D MARRAEENT ¢

Investment
Provision for income from  Intangible
trade and Other deemed assets
Accrued other financial  disposal of ~arising from  Right-of-use
expenses  receivables  Provisions  Tax losses assets  anassociate  acquisitions asset Total
E5R RiEHE
RfbERERE BENR WEEs
[ERRX 2B BfF  HEEE HfSREE <REUN 2EVEE  RRREEE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR ARRTR AR¥TR ARWTR ARMTR  ARETR
Deferred tax arising from: B4 BN T&EM
BEBE:
At 1 January 2019 R2019E1A18 54,955 17,745 7211 31,232 (1,75) (4,498) (2,607) - 108,282
Credited/(charged) to RERA/(IB)
profit or loss 22,89 5946 (4,402) 14,499 (5,547 - 505 9,691 43582
Credited to reserves SAEE - - - - 678 - - - 678
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ut H B2 E] 444 - 13,751 - - - (70,338) - (56,141)
Exchange adjustments EHA% 3 - 137 - - - (1557) 121 (1,290)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12831R8 78,294 23691 16,697 51,731 (6,625 (4,498) (73997) 9818 95,111
At 1 January 2020 MNE1A1A 78,294 23,691 16,697 51,731 (6,625) (4,498) (73,997) 9,818 95111
Credited/(charged) to REBEEA/ (1)
profit or loss 6,198 18,567 (762) 6,461 (8,403) - 888 4,431 27,380
Credited to reserves SRR - - - - 220 - - - 220
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEMB A - - - - - - (2,914) - (2,914)
Exchange adjustments B A% = = 800 = = = 4,294 77 5171
At 31 December 2020 R00%128318 84,492 42,258 16,735 58,192 (14,808) (4,498) (71,729) 14,326 124,968
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29 MEMBMRRROMAES (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by CEIAEERELEEREE:
(Continued) (48)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) HZEFBRRROYEER

financial position

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised 438 BI#HR R R IER Y

in the consolidated statement RERIBFEE
of financial position 200,789 180,231
Net deferred tax liability recognised 4R& BA TS AR R R FERHY
in the consolidated statement BB FAR
of financial position (75,821) (85,120)
124,968 95,111
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () REREEBEEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of AFLLATIE B ERIBETR IR EE ¢
the following items:
2020 2019
2020 % 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARMBTIT
Unused tax losses RENAFIEETE 236,672 122,194
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note BEMFIWEIOEAEE - B
1(u), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of 2020F12 A31H  AEBARBEA
RMB55,667,000 (2019: RMB28,482,000) in respect of unused T B AR AREAMBEEBERA
tax losses of certain subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020. R 55,667,000 (20194 : AR
The directors consider it is not probable that future taxable ¥ 28,482,000 7T ) IR IE TR IE & /E ©
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be BEERRTKRAIRLIER BB A
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. R N E RG] B A A AR KR ER

WA LA SH & 18 -
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

29

(BR

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SITEERIN  BUAARBITIIR)

29 HEMBRRROFTEH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued) () AERELEHEEE(E)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, BIEFBEAREEIEE RS
the unrecognised tax losses at the end of the reporting HIRM AR EBESRUTF
period will expire in the following years: ElEw -

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT
2020 20204 - 2,893
2021 20214 169 781
2022 2022 10,386 9,693
2023 20234 36,832 36,600
2024 2024 F 59,045 47,912
2025 20254 102,996 -
209,428 97,879
The tax losses of RMB27,244,000 (2019: RMB24,315,000) for REBRITEEVIED] - BAEHE
the Hong Kong subsidiaries do not expire under current N A8 A R 27,244,000 7T (2019
Hong Kong tax legislation. F : AR ¥24,315,0007T ) 7 IH &
BAgEW o
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d)y KEREEZEHEERE

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB257,308,000 (2019:
RMB163,815,000) were not recognised in respect of the 10%
PRC dividend withholding tax that would be payable on the
distribution of retained profits of RMB2,573,080,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB1,638,150,000) in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it was
determined that it was probable that these profits would
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

30 PROVISIONS 30 #&E
Onerous Leave Reinstatement Legal
contracts  obligations  Incentives cost  obligation Total
BRERY BRARSE B BERAR EEER @t
note (i) note (ii) note (i) note (iv)
FHEE (i) B & (i) B &2 (i) Bt & Giv)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR¥TR AR®TT AR%Tr AR¥Tr AR%TR

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 818 28,843 - - - - 28,843

Acquisition of subsidiary =N - 8,676 9,729 11,715 - 30,120

Exchange adjustments [ % % - 167 167 187 - 521

Provisions made BETiREE 24,077 3,902 1,516 1,073 - 30,568

Provisions utilised BHRAEE (28,842 (1,543) - - - (30,385)

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 8318 24,078 11,202 11,412 12,975 - 59,667
Less: Amount included under B SATRBAE] HeE

“current liabilities” 18,359 9,830 - - - 28,189

5,719 1,372 11,412 12,975 - 31,478

At 1 January 2020 R2020F181H 24,078 11,202 11,412 12,975 - 59,667

Exchange adjustments A - 303 308 351 - 962

Provisions made BitiRERE 26,778 1,080 - 1,988 3,531 33,377

Provisions utilised BERERE (20,924) (10) (11,720) = = (32,654)

At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 8318 29,932 12,575 - 15,314 3,531 61,352
Less: Amount included under B SATRBAE] HeE

"current liabilities” 22,390 10,087 - - 3,531 36,008

7,542 2,488 - 15,314 - 25,344
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

30 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The Group was in contracts with certain communities that
were operating at a loss. The obligation for the future
payments of these communities, net of expected property
service income, has been provided for.

Leave obligations cover the Group’s liabilities for long
service leaves and annual leaves, including all of accrued
annual leaves, the unconditional entitlements to long
service leaves where certain employees have completed
the required period of services and also those where
employees are entitled to pro-rata payments.

Incentives related to the decoration and other expense
which are capitalised under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
lease.

The Group is required to restore certain leased premises to
their original condition at the end of the respective lease
terms under certain contracts. A provision has been
recognised for the present value of the estimated
expenditure required to remove any leasehold
improvements. These costs have been capitalised as part of
the cost of leasehold improvements and are amortised over
the shorter of the term of the lease or the useful life of the
assets.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31 EX - RERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERHHBH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AREBGAERSBYOFEY NE
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated REBE RSN G EERZEHEK -
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes RARSHERTI DR EY RF R
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BMREFFIEEINNT

individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company XA F

Share of other  Share of other
comprehensive  comprehensive

Share Fair value  income ofthe  income of the
Share Share option Exchange reserve investees investees Retained
capital premium reserve reserve  (non-recycling) (recycling) ~ (non-recycling) earnings Total

BiRENS 2 BEREHSZ

LYERG RfcEbs HtcEds
B Rl BRERRE Eifaf  (F7H8) (Til|)  (FuiE) RERA 3t
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARMTR  AR%TR  AR%Tx  AR%T:

Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019%1 A1 B 28 21 1,031,517 26430 (428) - - - 78473 1,136,016
Changes in equity for 2019: 2019 FEEESE :
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - - - - 18058 18,058
Other comprehensive income &2 & - - - 16,720 (6,09) 87) 7,637) - 2898
Total profit and comprehensive F AR 2 AHHAR

income for the year - - - 16,720 (6,09%) 87) (7.631) 18,058 20,95
Equiy settled share-based TGRS T IR T AETE

transactions 285 b - - 62816 - - - - - 62816
Shares issued under share BEBREHERT

option scheme b} 31 * 79,270 (15,755) - - - - - 63,515
Dividends declared inrespect A FEERRE

of the previous year 31(b) - (177,746) - - - - - - (177,746)
Balance at 31 December 2019 2019512 31BR

and 1 January 2020 202051818 2E8 24 933,041 73491 16,292 (6,098) (87) (7,637) 96,531 1,105,557
Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 FERHZE :
Profit for the year ERFIH - - - - = - - 71,953 71,953
Other comprehensive income &2 ERE = = = (370,629) (1,984) (8,929) 176,021 - (205,521)
Total profit and comprehensive FARIER 2 EUHEH

income for the year - - - (370,629) (1,984) (8,929) 176,021 71,953 (133,568)
Issue of Shares Bk 4 3,647,781 - - - - - - 3,647,785
Capital injection from FolhER A

non-controlling interests - - - = = = = - -
Equity settled share-based fgéﬁé Bk AERE
transactions PAY,
Shares issued under share REBRETERET
option scheme 2Bt
Transfer of other comprehensive (H& 2 TEFAL(
income of the investees upon QEU&;?@,@@E@E%
the disposal of financial assets ?ﬁhﬁﬁ%z
APOCI i - - - - - SeEy 1958 -
Dividends declared inrespect  HLBEFESIERS
of the previous year 31(b) - (220,450) - - - - - - (220,450)

Balance at 31 December 2020 20205128318
288 28 4,432,250 102,388 (354,337) (8,082) (9,016) 148,831 188,037 4,500,099

2 - - 57,200 - - - - - 57,200

31(cii) - 71,878 (28,303) - - - - - 43,575

* Amount less than RMB1,000. * SEERARE1,0007T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31 EX - RERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends by BE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the iy FARSERAGEZBREZ
Company attributable to the year: BB

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

A final dividend of HKDO.120 RS ARE R FRIR N R
per share and a special dividend I8 #0120 T &
of HKD0.080 per share proposed T RIA% &% 0.080 7T
after the end of reporting period (20194 : REAARE

(2019: a final dividend of HF/%0.075%87T)

HKDO0.075 per share) 542,030 191,156
The final dividend and special dividend proposed for R EREBFERRIEZ
shareholders’ approval after the end of the reporting BRERGREL RN RS
period has not been recognised as a liability at the HIRBRREIE -

end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FREHEMKNZ E—8F
Company attributable to the previous financial year, BEERNARNR#ERERER
approved and paid during the year: RS

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the REABENRN 2 E—
previous financial year, approved B E R ERAR B

and paid during the year, of iz 0.0758 7T

HKDO.075 per share (20194 : 0.075% L)

(2019: HKDO.075) 220,450 177,746
The dividends approved during the year ended 31 B 220204 &2019412
December 2020 and 2019 were paid on 14 July 2020 A3BIEFEEHANRE
and 16 July 2019 respectively. E 5 RlM202067 4148 &k

2019F7 A16 BIR3E o
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31 EX - RERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Share capital () B
(i) Issued share capital (i) DTRITIRAEK
2020 2019
2020 20195
No. of shares No. of shares
('000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
REAHE RHER
(FHR) ARBT R (F&) ARETFT
Ordinary shares, ERTRBEEER:
issued and fully paid:
At 1 January ®1A18 2,789,484 24 2,777,776 24
Shares issued under share REEREBIERT
option scheme (note (i) R (PR (i) 8,793 * 11,708 *
Issue of shares (note (iii)) TR (B &2 (i) 421,809 4 - -
At 31 December ®12A31H 3,220,086 28 2,789,484 24
* Amount less than 1,000. * HUEBKR 1,000 ©
(i) Shares issued under share option scheme (il BEBRESSSHTRE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, 8,793,000 B E2020F12H318 1IEF
(2019:11,708,000) share options under a share option EOBREIEIETH
scheme were exercised at exercise prices of HKD6.116 8,793,000 (2019 £ -
(2019: HKD6.116) per share. The proceeds of HKD88 11,708,000 17 ) & i # 1= & A%
(equivalent to RMB76) (2019: HKD117, equivalent to 611637 (20195F 61167 7T)
RMB103) representing the par value, were credited to BITEERITE - IS FIE
the Company's share capital. The excess of proceeds BWEESSBT(HERAR
totaling HKD48,620,000 (equivalent to RMB43,575,000) #7670) (20194  117787L °
(2019: HKD71,609,000, equivalent to RMB643,515,000) HERARE103L) Bt A
were credited to share premium. RATRA - BB RIE

4858 48,620,000 7T (FHE 7
A B #43,575,000 7T ) (2019
£ 171,609,000/ 7T - HHE R
AR 63,515,000 7T ) #5685
AR E o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iii)

Issue of shares

On 7 May 2020 and 10 June 2020, the Company
completed the issuance of 155,209,000 shares and
266,600,000 shares with par value of HKD0.00001 at a
price of HKD8.3833 per share and HKD10.18 per share
respectively to certain investors, who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners are third parties
independent of and not connected with the
Company. Excess of total proceeds over the par value
of share capital of HKD4,218 (equivalent to RMB3,852)
and issue costs directly related to the issuance,
amounting to approximately HKD3,994,581,000
(equivalent to RMB3,647,781,000), was recognised in
share premium.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the
total amount of the par value of shares issued and the
amount of the net proceeds received. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company would be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group (excluding foreign
investment enterprises) are required to transfer 10%
of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.
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31 EX - REERRE

(%)

() BA&H)

(iii)

BTG

7 20204E5 A7 B & 20204 6
A108  ARREAEET
& # %17 155,209,000 & &
266,600,0000% T {&0.00001
BILOBRD DR AFR
8.383378 ;L X F A% 10.18/ 8 T
WER ZEETHREER
BERRERBEE AL BB
NEZH BEAQABE
HE- BBRAZEEE
A428B L (HERARE
385270) KRB ITHEE S H
BB TR B 4R 4
3,994,581,000 7% 7T (FHE 7 A

(d) REHEERAZR

()

(ii)

R #53,647,781,0007T) © B
R DR E

B aEREZEITRONE
BRBEEmMESREFEE

MER - REFAEHS AT
& AR A R i 1B R AT
DIRTARBBIR - HEREE
E%ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ 2B’ AR
AR —REBBREFEE
HET

REDEERE
REFBEQBDE - AEEH
BB A B (TR ISR
B BRKBHE G
A1 7 TE 19 10% FR T 12 7 B
I%E@ﬁ?ﬁrﬁﬁ HERB
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

PRC statutory reserve (Continued)

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into share
capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held
by them, provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the surplus/deficit between
the consideration paid/received and the net assets of
a subsidiary acquired/disposed regarding the
transactions between the Group and the non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside the mainland China.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(x).

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note

1(9))-

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

31 BX - HERKRE (8)
(d) FEMEEMEER AR ()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31 EX - #ERRKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management (e) BEXREHE
REEEAEENTZBRRRE
REEFBLENRN  NEBR
o K AR TS A R B K AR Y E
BRUNGEXFERGHE B8R
PR BR R4 1T 3 Ko A HL A 15 1) 1R A

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. Mzs o

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk

B R R R R
AR - MRS BRE A
RS 15 5Ok T SIS R A AR T
BREHRREERGTE W
EEREEDHE AR -

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

AEERBHEFEEABRERE
BANRE - R R TVIRERF R
WEEFREME - @EFFRIR
BEBK(BREEYVBMRARTE
THMBRTERLEERE) R

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of its
net gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by net assets. Net debt is calculated as total debt (including
all bank loans and lease liabilities as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and

cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group maintained

at net cash position.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B 54TaERASN -

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in
other entities and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, other financial assets measured at
amortised cost and trade and other receivables.

Cash at bank
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash at
bank is limited because the counterparties are well-known
financial institutions, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost are
mainly listed bonds with good credit ratings, for which the
Group considered to have low credit risk.

BIAARETTIIR)

32 REREEREMIAND

¥
AEEEARZBERBBRETELZE
B -n@Es AEXREBRR A%
BN EENEGE A RAERE RER
S EEE T 5| LR BERE -

TN S BRI Y S LR B R
SEBEEZFRRPRANTERR
EEBRRIED

(a) FERR
FERREARZHFITERES
FEGMERAEERZHHEKL
MR - AEENEERREER
BHIRTTER - REHER AT ENE
2 B & A AR E 5 N E A R
g o

RITER
AEBRRITEREENEERR
BR ARRZHUFHHRNER
BERE  AEERARETSREIE
BAEEREERR

BRERATENEGEREE
REHEKAENEMEREET
ERABREEENENLETE
7 AEERRREEFREERE
SR -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. The Group has no concentrations of credit risk

in view of its large number of customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix and individually determined to be &

impaired.

(i) At 31 December 2020, the Group's trade receivables (i)
of RMB4,971,350 (2019: RMB3,945,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered and certain amount of
RMB4,061,000 (2019: RMB2,758,000) as at 31
December 2020 is past due over 1 year against which
the Group held collaterals. On that basis, specific
allowance for impairment of trade receivables of
RMB910,350 (2019: RMB1,187,000) were recognised.

(i)  For the provision matrix method, as the Group’s (ii)
historical credit loss experience indicates significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on ageing
information is further distinguished between the

Group's different customer bases.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREB(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) BHRWREE)
The following tables provides information about the TEREH AL B R B B S Bk
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FEEERELE S ENRIETEH
receivables by using a provision matrix: FEEEER
2020
2020
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AHERR BRTE 48R BERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% AR¥TR ARETT

Trade receivables due BEE=ZANEZERE

from third parties

Amounts due from EWIEEERIE
non-property owners
Within 1 year —F R 0.8% 482,313 3,713
1 to 2 years —EMF 10% 24,660 2,466
506,973 6,179
Amounts due from EEWREERIE
property owners
Within 1 year —F R 4.9% 692,110 33,640
1to 2 years —EmMF 22% 105,492 22,690
2 to 3 years R4 80% 59,986 47,989
Over 3 years —FMUE 100% 25,677 25,677
883,265 129,996
1,390,238 136,175
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERE(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWFE(E)
2019
20194
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHRES 1B X IREARsE g
% RMB’'000 RMB'000

% ARBETTT ARETT

Trade receivables due BE=FNEZERRE

from third parties

Amounts due from PEWFE S EFRIA
non-property owners
Within 1 year —FRN 0.8% 371,894 3,108
371,894 3,108
Amounts due from FEREERE
property owners
Within 1 year —FE X 5% 610,112 30,506
1to 2 years —ZEWF 24% 109,794 26,351
Over 2 years LA 100% 31,374 31,374
751,280 88,_2_3_1_ )
1,123,174 91,339
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience EHEEXDENBE=F2EREE
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect Ko AALXDRABRERMIKERES
differences between economic conditions during the SR B 2 OB - R B &
period over which the historic data has been collected, B AR A e W FR 08 T8 B 47 B 2 8B AR R
current conditions and the Group's view of economic ZEER o

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREB(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWFE(E)
Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade FRNESHEUFEREBREED
receivables during the year, including both specific and (BIEER M HERBEIBD)WT ¢

collective loss components, is as follows:

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARMETIT

Balance at 1 January W1 A1 B2z &#% 92,526 69,697

Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries & Y& B & 2 &) #9184 1 - 1,127

Impairment loss recognised EHR 2 REEE 57,301 42,241
Uncollectible amounts written off WigH AT Yl £ 7R (12,742) (20,539)

Balance at 31 December W12 A 31 B Z&8R 137,085 92,526

Other receivables H it W R IE

() Inrespect of other receivables, payments on behalf of () BEMEKRFKE REEXHN
property owners, deposits, amounts due from related FoEe - ERWEBARE
parties and staff, the Group has assessed that the THIEMS AEEREB
expected credit loss rate for these receivables is ERECELAETEER (R
immaterial under 12 months expected losses method FERR) B E % E R
based on historical settlement records and looking- HIEMFEBEEBEELE12
forward information (including economic ERTEHEBRETETERK °

environment).
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

(i) In respect of other receivables from certain third
parties, at 31 December 2020, the Group's other
receivables of RMB41,300,000 (31 December 2019:
Nil) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired other receivables related to the
customer'’s past history of making payments when
due and management assessed these receivables
might not be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowance for impairment of other receivables of
RMB41,300,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) were
recognised.

(iiiy  The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for other

BIAARETTIIR)

32 REREEREMIAND

FE (&)
(a) fEELEM ()
Eo MO8 (45)

(ii)

(iii)

BMREAETE=ZFHEMRE
WHIBmME + B2020912 A
31H » NEBEHE A EWFIE
A B # 41,300,000 7T (2019 £
12831 B)HEEAMZ
BB o 52 {8 B E H A e
U K18 B P il 1 B B 3K
FELHR BLHEREETG
25 W SR TE A Be R R
B - At BEREMEK
RIEREZFEEREAAR
# 41,300,000 75 (2019 4 12
A31:F)o

TERERAKEFEERRK
Hi YR BBEREEER

receivables: B
2020
2020
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE IREAE EBRRE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% AR®T ARET R
Other receivables H {h FE W FRIE
(excluding payments (TEEREEHS
on behalf of property HREEMAR -
owners, deposits, ®& - BEIR
prepayments and Hib W RIE)
other receivables from
related parties)
Within 1 year —F R 1% 125,514 1,255
1 to 2 years —EMF 3% 18,701 561
Over 2 years LA 5% 28,423 1,421
172,638 3,237
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

32 REREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREB(E)
Other receivables (Continued) Hih W E (&)
(i) (Continued) (i) (#&)
2019
2019 F
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEAE R R ARE48%E EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBTFIT AREFT
Other receivables Hith e R
(excluding payments (TERREEHS
on behalf of property FREELR -
owners, deposits, ®e - AR
prepayments and Hib W RIE)
other receivables from
related parties)
Within 1 year —&R 1% 110,152 1,254
1to 2 years —EMF 3% 24,880 746
Over 2 years A _E 5% 4,788 239
139,820 2,239
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)
(i) (Continued)
Movement in the allowance for impairment of other
receivables during the year, including both specific
and collective loss components, is as follows:

FE (&)

(a) (EELELBE(E)
Lt W 3008 ()
(i) (&)

5 R A P R TR R B
23 (REER kIR EE
DI

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Balance at 1 January W1A1BZ &% 2,239 1,282
Impairment losses/(reversal of BEHRZBEEE

impairment losses) recognised CREEEERE) 42,298 (518)

Impairment loss written off DERI= SRk 6 (12,590) -

Impairment loss written back JEE R D - 1,475

Balance at 31 December R12 B 31 B2 &6 31,947 2,239

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBEELRMR

The Group's management reviews the liquidity position of
the Group on an ongoing basis, including review of the
expected cash inflows and outflows and maturity of loans
and borrowings, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions and/or from other Group
companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBEESRM(E)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRIIRANEBRHEEARESHE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's ENETALYER - REBEALER
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual TREBESRE(BEERELOFEX
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments STEMRNBENR mEEE - Bl
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on WEHRROFRGE) RAEET
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the BEEES MR FHEE -

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2020
2020
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHARRRERM

More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but

1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
—FRg BB-F BBRE

RER BREA BEER BBAF L fREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR AR%T:R

Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFE
(excluding other tax and (TEELmENTE

charges payable) LRER) 2,735,053 1,868 - - 2,736,921 2,732,625
Bank loans RITER 6,083 149,980 - - 156,063 146,456
Lease liabilities HEaE 189,595 206,350 495,091 658,444 1,549,480 1,201,179

2,930,731 358,198 495,091 658,444 4,442,464 4,080,260
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEERER (&)

2019
20194
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BORTRE SR
More than More than
Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut

1 year or less than less than More than Carrying

on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total amount
—FRH BE—F BBmE

REX BERFA BEER BBEF @it FEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBFTT ARBTT ARKTT ARETR ARBT:

Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFHE
(excluding other tax and (TEEEMENTE

charges payable) LER) 2,443,234 34,558 - - 2,477,792 2,437,818
Bank loans BITER 48,454 156,918 323,430 - 528,802 482,814
Lease liabilities HEBE 152,839 171,890 409,924 492,551 1,227,204 982,227

2,644,527 363,366 733,354 492,551 4,233,798 3,902,859
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk () FI=Epx
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZRER
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEENFREREBNRE
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and HeMESEEY  ZRF
interest-bearing loans. The Group manages its RERTEEFR AERE
interest rate exposure by maintaining a prudent mix BHREBENTEERZAE
of fixed and variable rate borrowings. FHEEBENERRE
The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate AREBUVEFRRESNIRESE
risk for cash and cash equivalents or restricted cash BYAXEHRSMEASTE
because the interest rates of cash at bank are not AHMERE P - kT B R T8 E
expected to change significantly. RITFERFETGHEERE
B o
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAMAEEERETED
the Group's total borrowings: F B
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ik BHM =
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% AR%T R % ARYBTT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEER:
Lease liabilities (note13(b)) HESRE (FHE13b) 4.75%4.90% 1,201,179  4.75%-4.90% 982,227
Bank loans RITER 4.50%-4.86% 146,456 4.50%-5.66% 142,282
Trade and other payables BHREMBNTE
(non-current) (ERE) 4.75%-4.90% 33,997  475%-4.90% 122,806
1,381,632 1,247,315

Variable rate borrowings: BEER:

Bank loans BITER = 4.61%-4.75% 340,532
- 340,532
Toelborowings  Bme® vaee2 1,587,847
Fixed rate borrowings as a TREREEAE
percentage of Btk

total borrowings 100% 79%
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's profit after taxation
and retained profits by approximately RMB Nil (2019:
RMB2,452,000) in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after
taxation (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period. The Group does not account
for any fixed rate borrowings at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rate at
the end of the reporting period would not affect profit
or loss. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s
profit after taxation (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk

(e)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of Group
entities.

The Company, the BVI subsidiary and the Hong Kong
subsidiaries’ functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD).
Their businesses are principally conducted in HKD. In
addition, as the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD to be insignificant. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB and MAG's
functional currency is AUD, and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB and AUD. So the Group
considers the currency risk to be insignificant.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for trading and non-trading
purposes (see note 18). Other than unquoted securities
held for strategic purposes, all of these investments are
listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and are mostly included in the
Hang Seng Index. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities
are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the index and
other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity
needs.

All of the Group's unquoted investments are held for long-
term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at
least bi-annually against performance of similar listed
entities, based on the limited information available to the
Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to
the Group's long-term strategic plans.

ST -

BIAARETTIIR)

32 REREEREMIAND
FE (%)

(d) BE¥ER

(e)
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BB E B8 o 75 7 B P B A B #Y
W EB R ARE L MAGH T 88
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REFRTETT - RAKERRE
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R 2B 4% L B
AEEEERAR S M RIERZ IR
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BIFE18) o BRiTA MERES B M0 JE
ETESI ERSFREARL
mRE -

AEEN EMEREERBBRME
Mmoo YETEEFEEELERAN B
ARBER HEHDHENREHERE
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BIAARETTIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 1% (2019: 1%) in the relevant stock price (for
listed investments), with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

32 REREEREMIAND

FE (%)

() BAERREMR(E)
72020512 A31 8 - {HEHHE R
B(EMRE) LA (TE)I1%
(2019%F : 1%) - MAABEEMEE
BT B AKBERBENE
(RREFE) MRS S EK
B g, WA

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
tax and Effect on tax and Effect on
retained fair value retained fair value
profits reserve profits reserve
HERBEFE BRI FE
RABAE HLAVERE RIRBFE HATERE
HEE Mg foj-7 ojZ
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®T R ARETT AREFTT
Change in quoted  R{EHRERE
share price
Increase #n 1% 999 - 1% 558 -
Decrease NN (1%) (999) - (1%) (558) -

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and fair
value reserve that would arise assuming that the changes in
the respective quoted share prices had occurred at the
statement of financial position date and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2019.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

(f)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

— Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations: Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date
— Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available
— Level 3 Fair value measured using
valuations: significant unobservable inputs

The Group involved independent valuation specialist
to perform valuations for certain financial instruments,
including unlisted equity investments and convertible
notes which are categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

(BR = 1TERASH -

BIAARETTIIR)

32 REREEREMIAND
FE (%)

(f)

DVEFE
() RAFEFAENESREER
afE
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (H 2DFEEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRAFEFENSBREER
value (Continued) E8E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RFEER(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020 using

Fair value at AFEERR
¥ | D 2020512831 REER
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
12020
12A31H
ZAYE -4 St E=8
Recurring fair value BEMAFEIE
measurement
Asset: BE:
Fvocl BATEH AL 2 EYE
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — 3F_ETRRAS
(note (1)) KA (HFEG) 3,755 - - 3,755
FVPL BRATEARS
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — 3 E AR
(note (i) RE (M) 308,110 - - 308,110
— Listed trading securities — LhRHES 119,667 119,667 = =
— Treasury Products —E&Em 47,585 - - 47,585
— Funds (note (ii)) — & (5 Gi) 527,624 - 257,624 270,000
— Convertible notes (note (i)~ — AIHRZE (M (i) 412,262 - - 412,262
1,419,003 119,667 257,624 1,041,712
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) ( 2FEEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRAFEFENSBREER
value (Continued) E8E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RFEER(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2019 using

Fair value at AFEFERR
31 December R2019F 12831 BEEA
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2019%
12A3182
ATE F—H ot E=1
Recurring fair value BEMAFEIE
measurement
Asset: BE:
FvoCl BATEH AR BR2ERE
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — 3F_ETRR AR
(note (i) A (ME0) 5959 - - 5959
FVPL RAVEARE
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — 3 E R
(note (i) B AGEA0) 243,687 - - 243,687
— Listed trading securities — IR GHEH 66,831 66,831 - -
— Treasury Products —E&Em - - - -
— Convertible notes (note (i)~ — TR (Ff5E (i) 420,481 - - 420,481
736,958 66,831 - 670,127
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, B E2019F 2020412
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, A3MBIEFE  F—HESE
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy “HREUEBBAE=R
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value WEBAREL - AEBEZ
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in RN EEERE 2 REH
which they occur. RERATERBEERZ
i B -
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair E_RRFETEHFAEE
value measurements B R A E
Fair value determined based on fair value of NFETREABERRE
underlying debt investments using discounted cash AT R EAEREE
flow method based on the return from the underlying BRE DR N TFEETE -
investments.

2020 EHE SWIRSEEHRR AR 287



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B EE

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

32 REREEREMIAND
FE (%)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)  DAFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRLAFENENESBREER
value (Continued) E8E(E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements FE=RAFEGEHER
(i)  The valuation of the Group's unlisted equity iy ANEEIFELTRERE
investments is based on a combination of HEELDERTSEE
market data, valuation models and valuation B EER RSN
report, if any, issued by an independent external BB {H BB P38 (LB TR
valuer. The models incorporate various inputs, S (HB) HBESE - %E
including discount rate reflecting specific risks EABSZEEAE -
relating to the financial instruments and market BERBEEHESRTA

multiples of comparable companies or
comparable transactions with a discount for lack
of marketability as appropriate.

W BRI R
AL 2 A T 1 B
TS - WHEE

BUERZ B M ALIR o
(i) The fair value of funds is determined based on iy E2HQAFETIHENE
fair value of underlying debt and equity BERMREIRE R
investments using a discounted cash flow BEFEAMBRRERES
analysis which incorporates unobservable data TEE  EFRa A
and quoted market price of underlying debt and HRSBELEREE R
equity investments. AR E N TISRE -
(i) The fair value of convertible notes classified as (i) DEAZAFEFAE

FVPL is determined using Binomial Option
Pricing Model and the significant unobservable
inputs are as follows:

SR ERERNRF
ERA A EEE
BREE EXTAE

R ABBNT -
2020 2019
2020 4 20194
Share price f& (& UsD2.11 USD2.06
211%ER 2.06%7T
Expected volatility T8 BRI B 37.96% 34.25%
Expected dividends TEEAAR B 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free rate A R, F 1) 3 0.17% 1.67%

B Z20206612H318 1k &F
EREMAETEES -

There were no changes in valuation technologies
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

(i)

value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

ST -

BIAARETTIIR)

32 REREEREMIAND

FE (&)
(h DFEFE@E)

() BRAFEAENESREER

&8EE)

E=MAF @ EHEH

(Continued) (&)
The movements during the year in the balance of ZEE-RRTEFTERTF
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: Naseh 7 SEINT -
2020 2019
2020 2019 4
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5T ARET T AREEFIT
FVPL: BAFEFAEBRE
At 1 January »1A1H 664,168 542,742
Payment for purchases MBI 823,905 83,147
Proceeds from sales HEERIE (439,938) (10,760)
Changes in fair value FARERER
recognised in profit or loss N EES
during the year 9,512 37,924
Exchange differences PE N ZE%R (19,690) 11,115
At 31 December M12A31H 18 1,037,957 664,168
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥T AREEFIT
FVOCI: RATEFAEM
ZHEKE :
At 1 January »1A1H 5,959 12,455
Change in fair value recognised 4 X EAth 2 U 26
in other comprehensive R AT EES
income during the year (2,536) (6,776)
Exchange differences PE N =58 332 280
At 31 December M12A31H 18 3,755 5,959
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 KEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (H 2DFEEFEE)
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) BAFEUMNIRNSEE
at other than fair value EREENATE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial 7R & F 7 5k AN sl SH K AR 7
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not RS ITANEmMESRE
materially different from their fair values as at 31 MR20205F K 2019412 A 31
December 2020 and 2019. BRNATEREEAEE -
33 COMMITMENTS 33 &iE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not 72020512 A 31 B i AR R B 1 5l &k
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: BENRBITEAEEDNT -
2020 2019
2020 % 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Contracted for BEET4 4,556 13,873

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EXEHLERZ

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere Brir e MR ERaR H i 75 R BE 80 R 75
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into BRI - REEFT AT EARBEE R
the following significant related party transactions. 5
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EABEAIXRS (&)

(CONTINUED)

(@) Name of and relationship with related parties (a) BEEEA SBREREE S WEER
During the reporting period, transactions with the following RIBEHIR] B TR AR S
parties are considered as related party transactions: MAEBHAERS

Name of party Relationship with the Group
B 2B BEAKERER

Mr. Song Weiping, Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Shou Bainian Substantial shareholders of the Company through
Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited

RETFHE BRI RERFEE # 38 Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited
ZARBEERER

Ms. Li Hairong Shareholder of the Company through Lilac
International Investment Company Limited

FRELT i Lilac International Investment Company
Limited Z AR RIARER

Greentown Holdings and its subsidiaries Controlled by Mr. Song Weiping,
Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Shou Bainian

BTN EBER AT REMB AR MARBFRE B RZ L MEHFEEES

Zhejiang Greentown Education Investment Controlled by Mr. Song Weiping,

Management Limited Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Shou Bainian
TR BBEREERARAR MAREFRE BE—RLZ L REHF LT
Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company Limited Entities jointly controlled by Greentown Holdings

("Hangzhou Dangui Investment”)
and its subsidiaries or joint venture

MM R EEEERAB ([MMHERE D FAR I AL R Il ) B8
MEWBARISAE AR

Zhejiang Greentown Hospital Investment Controlled by Mr. Song Weiping,
Company Limited (“Greentown Hospital ") Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Shou Bainian

and its subsidiary
AT B IREBR AT (T4 E ) REMB AR BREFEE BBt REMAFEEE

Bluetown Agriculture Technology Company Limited Mr. Song Weiping is a controlling shareholder
("Bluetown Agriculture Technology”)

EREEMEERAR (TERMEERE)* REF 54 RIERAR

Lvshui Agriculture Development Company Limited Mr. Song Weiping is a controlling shareholder

("Lishui Bluetown Agriculture Development”)

BRENEXEERBERAR (BKERERER]) REFRERIEBRBR
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EABEAIXRS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(@) Name of and relationship with related parties (a) BEAFTBRWKEBESNER
(Continued) (#&)
Name of party Relationship with the Group
BB S E8 BEAEERR
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering An associate of Greentown Holdings

Company Limited
("Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)
MIRBEBERIRARLA(DINIBEREHR IR SHEROBEAE

Yiwu Guozi Lvcheng Property Service Company Limited ~ An associate of the Group
("Yiwu Guozi Lvcheng Property Service”)

ESTEEGAYEREAR A REEEHE QR
(IEETREEZBMERS )
Lvman Technology Company Limited An associate of the Group before 1 January 2020
("Lvman Technology”)
HOBRRBR AR ([F08RH ) * R 202051 A1 BRTRZASEHEE QA
Zhejiang Communications Investment Greentown An associate of the Group before 10 April 2020

Property Service Company Limited
("Communications Investment Greentown”)

AR R RIS AR A B ([ AR ) * 720204 4 A 10 B AT R A KB E 2 Q7]
Shanghai Xinhu Greentown Property Services An associate of the Group

Company Limited
(“Shanghai Xinhu and its subsidiaries”)

EBFRERMEREER AR RENBAF REERBEAT
([ s R EM B AT ) *

el

Zhejiang Xinhu Greentown Property Services An associate of the Group
Company Limited
("Zhejiang Xinhu and its subsidiaries”)

HOTFRER D E R AR AR REME AR AEENBERT
(DI R M B A w ) *

el

Zhejiang Greentown |deal Life Business Operation An associate of the Group
Service Co., Ltd. ("Greentown Ideal life")

WA IR B BB R ELREERDF REBABE AT
(MARIEIR AR A E ) *

Greentown Ideal Home Housing Technology An associate of the Group

Service Company Limited (“Greentown Ideal home")

B R EEMEREER AR ([ARIEEK]) REE RS R F
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Bx

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

34 EXBABERS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Name of and relationship with related parties (a) BEAF BRI EBE S HWER
(Continued) (#&)
Name of party Relationship with the Group
bt AL ERF

Ningbo Yule Investment Company Limited
("Ningbo Yule”)
ERREREERAB([ERRE]D~

Xiangtan Chengfa Greentown Property Service

Company Limited (“Xiangtan Chengfa”)

HEMREGBMERB AR AR (DREMRE ) *

Shanghai Huamu Greentown Property Service

Company Limited (“Shanghai Huamu")

ERIERGBMERGAR AR ([ LBIEKR])*

Lvcheng Ivfa Community Service Company Limited

("Lvcheng Ivfa”)

PR EERGEBEER AT ([RMmArE )

Nanchang Honggutan Greentown Yuhua Kindergarten

("Honggutan Kindergarten”)

METARENRGHEEYRE (SN RE]) >

Zhejiang Yuanchuan Information Technology Co., Ltd and

An associate of the Group
REEHHE AR

A joint venture of the Group
AEENEZERE

A joint venture of the Group
REENAZERNT

An associate of the Group
REEEHE AR

A number of employees and directors of

the Group are members of the internal
governing body of Honggutan Kindergarten

AEBZUEBNEERANED RERRER
HERKE

Non-controlling interests

its subsidiary (“Zhejiang Yuanchuan and its subsidiary”)

W TREEBEMR N ARA R RENEAR

(MNTEEREME AR )

Shanghai Ivrong Business Management Co., Ltd

(“Shanghai Ivrong”)
PagRuReEBRBRAR ([ LR ])*

The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are

in Chinese.

SRR R
An associate of the Group
REEREE AT

RARXLBERSE - ZFEQT]
CONWEE YL
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EAEEKAXS (B)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) TEEEEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBFTEEEEAEMNE (B
including amounts paid to the Company's directors as BT AR B E E R IE (RN M 5
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid THEE) RETHEaHME T (K
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: AT EE 8 PR ER) ) AT ¢

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind # 4 - JE28i R B 9,373 8,458
Discretionary bonuses BB AL 6,308 6,317
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEME R 586 620
Equity-settled share-based VARS A 45 B A0 AR D B E R
payment expense MR 5,700 11,972
21,967 27,367
* Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). * Heeme st A TBIRA] (R
5(b)) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(BR = 1TRERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

34 EXBABERS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Significant related party transactions BEXBEHAIRS
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group e B B _E il B R 5 A s HAR Y
and the above related parties during the reporting period BARXGHBWT ¢
are as follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Property service and consulting service )% iR & E ARG IRME T -
provided to:
— Subsidiaries of Greentown Holdings — #3122 A% ~ Bt BB A &) 2,229 1,699
Sales of goods to: HEEmT
— Bluetown Agriculture Technology ~— — B B 2RI 6,913 21,211
— Lishui Bluetown Agriculture — EKEREEER
Development 1,237 2,781
Loans to (note (i)): BT (MG -
— Ningbo Yule — ERAREE - 30,000
— Greentown Ideal Home — BRIRIBAER - 5,100
— Greentown Ideal Life — IRE AR 3,000 3,000
Receiving from repayment of a loan:  ESEREMNFIES :
— Ningbo Yule — B gt - 30,000
— Greentown Ideal Home — IR ER 5,100 -
— Greentown Ideal Life — BIR B ASE 6,000 -
— Shanghai Ivrong — biBss 1,200 -
Payment on behalf of: HERAT BB 73 S A
— Honggutan Kindergarten — AN FE - 426
Interest income from: FMEW=RKE :
— Ningbo Yule — ERRE - 640
— Greentown Ideal Home — IR ER 525 421
— Greentown Ideal Life — BRIRIR AR AR 295 19
— Shanghai Lvrong — bigsgeR 1,274 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EAEEKAXS (B)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Significant related party transactions (Continued) () EXBEBIRZ (E)
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFTT
Receiving property management ESYEXERIIERKS -
support services from
— Subsidiary of Greentown Holdings — — 431 AL VB B A 7 16,953 21,563
Receiving advertising service from: ESEEREA -
— Subsidiary of Greentown Holdings — — 43 IERX OB B A 7 19,953 16,811
Health inspection service from: RERBERERE
— Subsidiary of Greentown Hospital ~— — 4% 35 E& e B9 1 B /A & 827 84

Purchasing software and receiving B RESHEERBE A -

related services from

— Lvman Technology — RRBRIR = 25,872
Guaranteed by: ERA -
— Zhejiang Yuanchuan and — I EREREKE AR

its subsidiary = 2,000
Guarantee to: BRT :
— Greentown Ideal Life — B IBRE AR 9,810 -
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SITERIN  BUAAREBITIIR)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EABEAIXRS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Balances with related parties (d) PBEEES EsER
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Amount due from entities controlled  JEU R BT ATiE | &2 A 7018
by Song Wei Ping
— Trade nature —E5ME 1,585 3,811
Amounts due from subsidiaries and FEUS AR IRAR A BT B 2 B I
associates of Greentown Holdings i /NI E/ O]
— Trade nature —E51ME 2,002 291
Amounts due from associates FEULES: N B S A A R B FIE
or joint ventures
— Trade nature —B5HE 2,836 3,153
— Non-trade nature (i) — JEE FHE ) 24,036 33,336
26,872 36,489
Amount due from entities controlled ~ JEWREF - SEHER
by Song Wei Ping, Shou Bai Nian B KPR B B IA
and Xia Yi Bo
— Trade nature —E51nE 30 -
Amount due from entities controlled  FEURZS /G L BTl E B2 HFUE
by Li Hai Rong
— Trade nature — ] 20 -
Amounts due from Honggutan FEMAT 2 4) 52 B FUR
Kindergarten
— Non-trade nature —FESHE - 12,245
Amounts due to entities controlled FERT R Fr S E B FUR
by Song Wei Ping
— Trade nature —EB5HE 302 224
Amounts due to subsidiaries and FEH R A BB B A B &
associates of Greentown Holdings i lNCTE @]
— Trade nature — B 548 2,984 3,015
Amounts due to associates AR NI A= /NETE |
or joint ventures
— Trade nature —E 518 8 8,651
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B RS HR AR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(e)

() These loans are lent to associates of the Group with a
maturity of one year, bearing interest rates ranging
from 6% to 6.34% per annum during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: 6% to 12%).

The other amounts due from/to related parties (trade
nature) are unsecured and interest free.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of receiving
services from subsidiaries of Greentown Holdings and
subsidiaries and joint venture of Hangzhou Dangui
Investment, purchasing goods from Lansong Supply Chain,
sales of goods to Bluetown Agriculture Technology above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in section “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS" of the Directors’ Report.

The related party transactions in respect of receiving
services from the subsidiary of Greentown Hospital,
providing services to subsidiaries of Greentown Holdings
above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. However those transactions are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under
Rule 14A.76(1).
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34 EXBEBARS (&)
(d) BAMET HIREER (8)

(e)

iy ZEEFRABETAEEES
NEIZ—FHER  REE
2020412 A 31 BIEFEEN
T 6% % 6.34% W) F FI| L5 B
(20194F : 6% = 12%) °

HAb g, Be T RE(ES
HE) REERLRRS -

FERRERZHE L mRA

FiBEEBEWER B AR &
MINFEREZWB AR REER
BIERRTS - @R EEEERES
W HEERTERBRERE 2
B R PR ETRAIE 14AETE
THHEERZNIFERERS - &
MRANEVVAZEFREZBEHR
EEOeRE[HERERS ] & -

i BB SR ER 2 M BRI
EX AR 75 DA K SR AR AR 7S T 47 I AR 2.
M AR 2 Bl A X BIEK ETIR
A 14AZIE THRER FRFHE
BERS - Rl ZERXDERR
REMRAE4ATIH FHIEER
E - AEERE 14A 76K TH
BIEzAe K TEHE -
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

35 RAEEMBRRR

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
12HA31H 12A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARET AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries R B A BIM RS (a) 570,779 306,821
Interest in a joint venture REZRNRIRREZD 17 218,723 75,764
Interest in an associate R E R RIS 238,879 -
Other financial assets HiherptEE 559,195 584,331
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 898 678
1,588,474 967,594
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMEK RIS (b) 2,056,808 23,607
Cash and cash equivalents e RESEED 793,359 77,620
Other financial assets HithemEE 126,173 106,470
2,976,340 207,697
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIITEA & 8,402 4,816
8,402 4,816
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEA RN RIE 56,313 64,918
56,313 64,918
Net current assets MBEEFE 2,920,027 142,779
Total assets less current liabilities &EEELERTEEE 4,508,501 1,110,373
NET ASSETS EEFHE 4,500,099 1,105,557
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#iE 31(a)
Share capital [N 28 24
Reserves HiE 4,500,071 1,105,533
TOTAL EQUITY BMEER 4,500,099 1,105,557
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35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 35 AREBEMBEMRREK(KH)
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
(a) Interest in subsidiaries (@) MKBATINEDR
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Cost of investments, unlisted (note (i)  FF M E A (FIFE (7)) 146,447 89,247
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (ii)) & Yt & X 7 708 (M 5% (i) 424,332 217,574
570,779 306,821
()  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the () #H =2020612A318 1 F
Company granted share options to certain employees - RRREEKE QRS
of its subsidiaries (see note 28). The Company does ETREREBERE (AT
not require its subsidiaries to pay for the Company’s 28) o AN BN R KA
shares in issue to settle the grant of share options. NAIRARNAGE R LER
Accordingly, the equity-settled share-based payment BB ETRMER
expenses of RMB57,200,000 (2019: RMB62,816,000) It R ELE 202046 12 A 31
allocated to its subsidiaries with no requirement of HIEFEHMSE T HKE
payments during the year ended 31 December 2020 NA B EMNRERE A
are recognised as contributions from the Company HARMD RERE R RF X
and the amount was recorded as cost of investments A B ¥57,200,000 7T (2019
in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020. F: AR 62,816,0007T) i

REALNGBHNLE  MEZd
B850 8E A 2020 12 A 31
BRWE QR ARERAK -

({i) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, (i) FEUHTEB A R FOEEE R
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment. A2 BEEEERER
(b) Trade and other receivables (b) BEZRHMEWFE
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREEFIT
Amounts due from related parties RN BA B 5 7 0E
— Non-trade nature (note (i) — IEE SHE (B ) 2,056,808 23,607
() Amounts due from related parties (non-trade nature) () FEWEBITFAGFES M
are unsecured and interest-free. L) REEREEE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

36 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following table lists out the information relating to MAG, the
subsidiary of the Group which has a material non-controlling
interest (NCI). The summarised financial information presented

36 ABARINKRE
TEREJEBEREENERRMAG (%
BEAFZRERNC) ZER - AT
FT 25 8 7% & B B T8 A A 5

below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

HIHATR 5 -

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

Current assets RENEE 53,517 43,110
Non-current assets IEREEE 1,029,122 872,821

Current liabilities mEAaE (98,365) (77,861)

Non-current liabilities IEREEaE (806,516) (687,609)
Net assets BEFR 177,758 150,461
Carrying amount of NCI NCI ERTE & 75,879 62,525
Revenue e A 278,058 133,812
Profit for the year/period F BT 35,156 7,560
Total comprehensive income 2HEHWELTE 35,156 7,560
Profit allocated to NCI P EEENCI 2 FE 15,925 3,501
Dividend paid to NCI EfNCIZIRE = -
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHEIRSRE 122,269 46,730
Cash flows from investing activities KREESFFRERE (87,263) (43,098)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFEBAERERE (22,799) 15,415
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36 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 36 RIBARINIRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREFHVEHAEBEE  EENAE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the EREEFENNBRARFEE BEE
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise RSN - TR E R AT BEAR -
stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand  effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
EMRLREEME
URRL/ZER g/ BEAR K£H FRE WELR
ARER ERER REEE  RMEX 0 BE B IEEBRIAREER
Greentown Service Group Investment BVI Not applicable/ 100% 100% - Investment holding, limited
Co. Ltd. 25 November 2014 Usb100 liability company
ERARAE @R/ REAR  EREALT
014511 258 1007
Greentown Service Group Hong Kong Not applicable/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding, limited
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited 06 December 2014 HKD100 liability company
RHREEE (BB BRAR FE014F12R6H @R/ REZR - BREMLAR
10087T
Zigui Technology the PRC USD50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding, limited
29 July2015 USD50,000,000 liability company
MMEEREARAR G 50,000,000% 7/ RAZR AREALH
2015%7 A 298 50,000,00057¢
Greentown PM the PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
16 October 1998 RMB126,000,000 limited liability company
BEMEREEEARAR" G AR #200,000,0007T,/ NEER  BRAMLHF
1998410 A 168 A 126,000,000
Zhejiang Lvsheng Property Management  the PRC RMB60,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 16 September 1999 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
HIEAMERBERAR G AR 60,000,007,/ NEER  BRAMLHF
1999469 A16H AE#5,000,0007C
Hangzhou Xianggui Hotel Management ~ the PRC RMB30,000/ 63% - 100%  Hotel management, limited
Company Limited 26 November 2013 RMB30,000 liability company
MNERBEEERERAR e AR¥30,0007,/ EEER  BRELAR
2013F11A26H AR 30,0007
Shanghai Lvfeng Property Management ~ the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 31 August 2011 RMB500,000 limited liability company
LEREnEERERA E AR#5000007T,/ MEER  BREELA
01158A31H AR 5000007

302 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

36 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

TTRERASM -

BIAARETTIIR)

36 RITBARWIRE ()

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
FRERRLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand  effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EEE
URAY/ TR &/ ERTR s ] ARE WERR
ATER RYAH EEEA  RERE  BE B EEBRIAENMSR
Hangzhou Yijia Property Management the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 01 September 2006 RMB500,000 limited liability company
MR EERBRAR e AR 5000007,/ NEEE  AREER
200659A1H AR 500,000
Ningbo Lvheng Property Management the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 80% - 80%  Property management,
Company Limited 05 June 2012 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
EREENERBERAT i AR3,000,0007, NEER  BREARA
201256850 AR #3,0000007C
Zhejiang Baoye Greentown Property the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 28 August 2006 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
e G ES AN G AEH5,000,0007/ WEEER  BREELA
20068 7288 AR5,000,0007
Ningbo Greentown Property the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 15 May 2006 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
ERBINEERERDA T AB%5,0000007C/ WEER  AREMLA
2006F5A 158 AR 5,000,00070
Jiaxing Greentown Property Service the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 11 April 2008 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
ERBRNERBARD HE AR 50000007/ WEER  BREMAT
20084 A118 AE#3,000,0007C
Shanghai Lvyu Property Management the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 06 January 2003 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
LBRFYEERBRAR i AR 3,000,007, NEEE  AREALT
200351860 AE#3,000,0007C
Anhui Greentown Property Management  the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 30 October 2002 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
RHSHNEERERAT e AR %5,0000007T, NEER BREMAR
20026104307 AR H5,000,0007C
Beijing Greentown Property Management  the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 13 October 2003 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
FREEEERBRAA e AR 5,000,000,/ NEEE  FREALT
20035104138 AR#3,0000007C
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36

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

36 RITBARWIRE ()

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Greentown Real Estate Consulting the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing, sales and
Company Limited 13 January 2005 RMB50,000,000 other services, limited
liability company
BREHERAEEERAR G ABR%50,000,0007C/ ERME - HEREMRTS
2005518138 A 50,000,000 7 BRELRR
Zhejiang Greentown Culture Arts the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 80% - 80%  Recreational activities,
Consulting Company Limited 17 July 2007 RMB2,000,000 exhibitions and market
promotion services, limited
liability company
HIER KB BRDRA* i AR 10,000,0007T,/ AR RERTSHE
200757 R178 AE#2,000,0007C % BREERA
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 55% - 55%  Community leasing, sales and
Agency Company Limited 20 November 2003 RMB1,000,000 other services, limited
liability company
HIENEEERARAR" G AB%10,000,0007C/ ERME - HERHMRT
200311 A208 AE#1,000,0007T BREERR
Greentown Community Service the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Business consultant and
22 April 2009 RMB2,000,000 housekeeping services,
limited liability company
AT R EEAR AR i AR 50,000,0007T,/ N ENEG
200964228 AE#2,000,0007C BREERR
Zhejiang Greentown Hotel Management  the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 63% - 63%  Hotel management, limited
Company Limited 26 January 2010 RMB50,000,000 liability company
BB EERERAR" G ABR%50,000,0007C/ BEER  BREAMAF
2010518268 A 50,000,000 7
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Tulip Hotel the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Hotel management, limited
Management Company Limited 16 November 2010 RMB500,000 liability company
MNBLELEREEERARAR" e AR 500,007, EEER  BRELAR
2010511 A168 AR 50000070
Hangzhou Liuzhuang Hotel Management  the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Hotel management, limited
Company Limited 30 September 2009 RMB4,600,000 liability company
RMEREEEEARAR E AB#10,000,0007/ BEER BREAMALA
200969A308 AR 4,600,0007T
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36

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

36 RITBARWIRE ()

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREERLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Greentown Training School the PRC RMB600,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
10 August 2011 RMB600,000 related training services,
limited liability company
it Infodntes Sl i AR 6000007,/ NEERRRRIIRE -
01158A108 AR 600,000 BRELRR
Xinjiang Greentown Property Management  the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 16 July 2008 RMB3,000,000 leasing and housekeeping
services, limited liability
company
MESENERBERLE i AR 3,000,007,/ NEER BERFHRR -
200857 A 168 AR 3,000,007 BREERR
Shenyang Greentown Property Services the PRC RMB6,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Company Limited 22 October 1996 RMBS,000,000 limited liability company
BESRNERBERLAF i AR%6,0000007T, NEER BREARA
1995104228 AEH6,000,0007T
Qian'an Greentown Services the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 26 December 2014 RMB500,000 limited liability company
BRENMERBARAR i AR 500,007, NEER BREARA
014512268 AR 50000070
Shandong Greentown Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 18 June 2012 RMB10,000,000 limited liability company
WREEM R BB ARAR Gl AE10,00,0007,/ NEER  BREAMLF
201256F188 AR 10,000,000 70
Zhoushan Greentown Dongsha Hotel the PRC RMB30,000/ 100% - 100%  Undertake convention and
Management Company Limited 21 April 2014 RMB30,000 exhibition, hotel
management, limited
liability company
R BEERBRAR e ARH30,0007T,/ EBReERRE EEER -
N14F4A21 A AR 30,0007 BRAIAF
Greentown Property Service Group Hong Kong Not applicable/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding, limited
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited 16 December 2014 HKD40,000,000 liability company, limited
liability company
FHRMERBEE (FR)ERAT B TER/ REZR  BREEAR
0145128168 40,000,000
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36 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 36 REARNIRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Lingshui Greentown Tiantangniao Holiday ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Hotel and resorts
House Management Company Limited 15 March 2016 - management, limited
liability company
BKERREREREERAR AR i AR 1,000,007, BEEREREER
016F3A158 - BRELRR
Sanya Greentown Tiantangniao Holiday the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Resorts management, limited
House Management Company Limited 19 March 2016 - liability company
SRR REREREERAR AR e AR 1,000,007,/ EREER  EREMAHF
2016538198 -
Chongging Liangjiang Greentown the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Property Service Company Limited 24 November 2016 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
ERMIRINERHEARDA G ABRH5,000,0007/ WEER  BREELA
016511 248 AR H5,000,0007C
Xinyang Greentown Property Management  the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 13 August 2014 RMB500,000 limited liability company
[EBEmERE AR G AR¥5000007T,/ WEER AREMLA
01458 A13H AR 500,007
Hefei Greentown Real Estate the PRC RMB?1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing, sales and
Agency Company Limited 02 June 2015 RMB300,000 other services, limited
liability company
ARBHEEERARAR" G ABH1,000,0007/ RERE - HERAMRE -
01556 A2R AR 300,0007T ARELAHF
Greentown Property Service Group the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Jiangsu Company Limited 03 July 2015 RMB10,000,000 limited liability company
EHNERBEETIHARLR i AR10,0000007T,/ NEERE  AREALF
201557 A 30 AR #10,000,0007C
Zhejiang Twin Cities Network the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Computer networking
Company Limited 02 April 2015 RMB50,000,000 technology, consultant
service, limited liability
company
MTENBRH R EERRAA G ABH50,000,0007/ BB - R
01554728 AR 50,000,007 ARELAHF
Zhejiang Greentown Yuhua Education the PRC RMB 100,000,000/ 90% - 90%  Education consultant service,
and Technology Company Limited 08 June 2015 RMB90,000,000 limited liability company
HIEHEEREMRARDA" i AR#100,000,0007T,/ BRFEARS - BREMLA
201556 A8H AR #90,000,0007T

306 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3ERASN - HUAREITIIR)

36 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 36 REARNIRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREERLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Haining Greentown Hongxiang the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 50% - 50%  Property management,
Property Service Company Limited 11 November 2016 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
BESRRANEREERRF (i) i AR%3,0000007T, NEER BREARA
016511 ANA AR 1,000,0007C
Hangzhou Shide Financial Service the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Financial service outsourcing,
QOutsourcing Company Limited 07 March 2016 RMB10,000,000 limited liability company
Mt ELRREI BB AR i ARH 10,000,007,/ SRBHIHNEG - BRECAR
2016F3R7H AR 10,000,000 70
Zhejiang Anji Greentown Yinrun the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Property Service Company Limited 29 December 2016 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
MIRERNRENERB AR AR
MIRERNRENERB AR AR i AR%3,0000007T, NEER BREARA
016512 829R AE#1,000,0007T
Jiangxi Gantie Greentown Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Service Company Limited 29 December 2016 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
IRBERANEREERAR i AR%3,0000007T, NEER BREARA
016512 829A AKH3,0000007C
Zhejiang Zhilian Sharing Information the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Information Technology
Technology Company Limited 10 July 2017 - Service, limited liability
company
IR HAZERRBEERAR i AR10,000,0007T, EERMRY - BRAERT
2017%7A108 -
Greentown Joyful Elder Life Service Hong Kong Not applicable/ 100% - 100%  Pension Service, limited
Company Limited 02 November 2017 HKD24,000,000 liability company
SHERERBERLT BB TEm/ RZR% - BREARA
017511 A28 24,000,000 7
Greentown Education Holding Group Cayman Not applicable/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding, limited
Co. Ltd. 29 June 2017 - liability company
SRHEERERERAR - TEm/ RERY - BRECAA
2017%56H298 -
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(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREERLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Zhejiang Bokang Pension Service Limited  the PRC USD3,000,000/ 90% - 90%  Pension Service, limited
04 December 2017 USD3,000,000/ liability company
MR EREARAR G 3,000,000%7/ BB BREMLA
017512848 3,000,000% 7T
Hebei Greentown New World Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 10 March 2017 RMB300,000 limited liability company
AR R R RHEERAF G AEH 3,000,007/ NEER  BREAMLF
2017538108 AR 3000007
Suzhou Lvni Property Management the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 21 March 2017 - limited liability company
FMBHNEREERARAA T AE10,000,0007/ WEER AREMLA
2017434218 -
Wenzhou Yayuan Property Management ~ the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 22 August 2013 RMB500,000 limited liability company
BNEENEEERBERAR t AR 50,0007,/ WEER  BREMLT
01358228 AR 50000070
Jilin Greentown Tianhsun Property the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 70% - 70%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 07 May 2013 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
EERRIENEREERA R i AR 5,000,007, NEER BREARA
01355870 AR 5,000,0007C
Changchun Liancheng Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 42% - 60%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 12 October 2013 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
REMEANEREERAF ) T AR%3000,0007C/ WEER  AREMLF
0135104128 AE#3,0000007C
Tianjin Inter Property Management the PRC RMB10,010,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited 14 May 2008 RMB8,000,000 limited liability company
REMRBNEREFRAR* T AR%100100007T/ NEER  BREMLF
2008558148 AR#8,000,0007C
Changge Greentown Property the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 28 September 2016 - limited liability company
RETHANERBERLF hE AR¥5000007T, NEER BREARA
201659 A 288 -
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Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Jiaxing Yada Greentown Property the PRC RMB500,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 26 July 2016 RMB500,000 limited liability company
RETEERINERBERAR" e AR 500,007, NEER BREARA
201657 R 268 AR 50000070
Ji'nan Lixia Greentown Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 11 September 2017 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
BRETRINZERARAA T AB#10,000,0007/ WEER  BREELA
017F9A118 AR H5,000,0007C
Wuhan Greentown Binjiang Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 17 November 2017 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
RERWBINZREERDA G AEH3,000,0007/ WEER AREMLA
2017E11A178 AR #3,000,0007C
Zhejiang Happy Green City the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 69% - 69%  Market Promotion Services,
Marketing Planning Co., Ltd. 22 September 2017 RMB2,450,000 limited liability company
MRS E R BRAR i AR10,0000007T,/ MHERRY - BRATAF
017469828 AR 2,450,00070
Greentown Technology Industry the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 75% - 75%  Information Technology
Services Company Limited 19 September 2017 RMB20,000,000 Consultant, limited liability
company
RAMRERRBERERAR- i AR50,0000007T, ERRNER  AREAAF
20174694198 AR #20,000,0007C
Zhoushan Blessed Housekeeper the PRC RMB30,000/ 100% - 100%  Business consultant and
Community Service Company Limited 21 April 2017 RMB30,000 housekeeping services,
limited liability company
RUEREREAREERBERAT i AR¥30,0007,/ e EAEG
N17FE4ANE AR%300007C BRALLE
Lansong Supply Chain the PRC RMB10,010,000/ 51% - 51%  Supply Chain management,
28 October 2016 RMB10,010,000 limited liability company
MTERRERERERAR" TE AR%100100007T/ fEgEn  ARAELT
0165104288 AE# 10,010,000 7
Ningbo Greentown Hotel the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Hotel management, limited
Management Company Limited 18 September 2016 - liability company
ERENEEERBRAR HE ARH1,0000007T,/ EEER  BREMLA
201659 A18H -
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Proportion of ownership interest
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Place of incorporation
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of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER =2} BE IEXBREAEERE
Ningbo Greentown Yuhua Education the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 90% - 100%  Education consultant service,
and Technology Company Limited 18 September 2016 RMB10,000,000 limited liability company
ERBHEEHEMBARDA T ABR%10,000,0007C/ BEHARE  BREMLLHF
201659A18H AR 10,000,000 70
Ningbo Greentown Yuhua Yaohong the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 63% - 70%  Education software
Education and Technology 16 August 2017 RMB3,000,000 development, limited
Company Limited liability company
EREHEERIHENBRRAT" i AR H3,000,0007, HEANEE  AREAAT
01758A168 AR 3,0000007C
Nanchang Greentown Education and the PRC RMB4,000,000/ 90% - 100%  Education consultant service,
Technology Company Limited 14 August 2017 RMB4,000,000 limited liability company
HERNAEHEARDA* Gl ABRH4,000,0007/ BEHARY - ARELLA
01758F148 AR 4,000,0007C
Nanchang Yinqu Education and the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 72% - 80%  Education consultant service,
Technology Company Limited 11 September 2017 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
HERBAENEARDA" T ABRH5,000,0007/ YEHARY - ARELLA
017494118 AR 5,000,000 7T
Zhejiang Twin City Cultural and the PRC RMB11,000,000/ 80% - 100%  Education consultant service,
Creative Company Limited 17 March 2015 - limited liability company
HTER L RIZARAR HE ARH11,0000007T/ BERARE  BREAAT
015538178 -
Green Flash Network Technology Co., Ltd.  the PRC RMB50,010,000/ 80% - 80%  Information Technology
14 June 2017 RMB50,008,000 Service, limited liability
company
RBENRERAR i AR#50,010,0007T,/ ERRMRY  AREAAF
01756A148 AR #50,008,0007C
Zhejiang Lebo Education Technology the PRC RMB 10,000,000/ 90% - 100%  Education Technology,
Company Limited 31 May 2017 RMB2,000,000 limited liability company
MIEBAENRERATAR i AR 10,000,0007T,/ HEMR  BREART
017558318 AE#2,000,0007C
Hubei Changtou Greentown Property the PRC RMB8,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 06 June 2017 RMB1,375,849 limited liability company
RN ERBERAF HE AR 8,000,007,/ NEER  BEREAERA
01756A6H ARH 1,375,809
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Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLY
Place of incorporation
and business and date Registered/ Group's Held Held
of establishment/ issuedand effective by the bya  Principal activity
Name of company incorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  and legal status
SRR EFBE
URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Zhejiang Lvbang Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Management Company Limited 25 May 2001 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
MIBANFEEARAA E AR#5,0000007C/ WEER  BREMLF
2001658258 AR 5,000,0007C
Hangzhou Wulin Greentown Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Service Company Limited 22 December 2017 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
MR ERBERA G ABH3,000,0007/ WEER  BREELA
017512828 AR H1,000,0007C
Hangzhou Lianrui Advertisement the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 80% - 100%  Advertisement design,
Company Limited 08 April 2015 RMB763,800 limited liability company
MMBEREARAR" e ABH#3,000,0007/ RE&a ARELAT
201554 A8H ARH7638007
Hainan Greentown Tianhe Property the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Service Co., Ltd. 23 January 2013 RMB5,000,000 limited liability company
BEERANDEREER LA hE AR5,0000007T,/ NEERE  AREALF
2013614238 AR 5,000,00070
Tianjin Greentown United Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Management Co., Ltd. 05 May 2016 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
REERRBNEERERAR i AR 1,000,007,/ NEEE  AREALF
201655850 AE#1,000,0007T
Zhejiang Four Seasons Tube Home the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 70% - 70%  Information Technology
Environment Co., Ltd. 09 January 2015 RMB35,000,021 Service, limited liability
company
HIOEE R BRI AERAR i AR50,000,0007T,/ ERRMRE  AREAAR
201551898 AEH 35,000,021 7T
Heze Greentown Services Co., Ltd. the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
27 December 2018 RMB2,000,000 limited liability company
HESHMERBARAR" G AB%5,0000007T/ WEER  AREMLF
0185124278 AE#2,000,0007T
Beijing Jingliang Greentown Property the PRC RMB8,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Service Company Limited 16 September 2019 RMB8,000,000 limited liability company
ERRRRANEREERAR e AR #8,000,0007, NEER BREARA
20195698168 AR#8,000,0007C
2020FEHE SMREEEBRAF
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URAL,/ 2R i/ BROR *&E ARE WERR
NAEE R A BHEx  ERER BH BE IEXBREAEERE
Hangzhou Single Minded Enterprise the PRC RMB8,000,000/ 40% - 40%  Business consultant, limited
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. 16 September 2019 RMB698,380 liability company
RMARESHEXERERERAA() + ABR%8000,0007C/ BEEH ARELAT
20195698168 AR 698,380 7T
Greentown IT the PRC RMB21,333,333/ 37.5% - 37.5%  Information Technology
10 April 2014 RMB21,200,000 Service, limited liability
company
MBI B RITERAR (i) G AR%213333837/ EREMRS  BREMAR
2014548108 AR 21,200,000 70
Hangzhou Greentown Air Conditioning the PRC RMB30,000,000/ 70% - 100%  Equipment Maintenance
Equipment Maintenance Service Co., Ltd. 02 June 2012 RMB12,500,000 Service, limited liability
company
MMEREBREGERB AR AR i AR#30,0000007T,/ REEERS  ERETLF
201266820 AR 12,500,000 70
Wauhan Intelligence Greentown the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 40% - 40%  Property management,
Senvices Co,, Ltd. 14 May 2018 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
REERRANXERERAR () Gl K 1,000,007/ NEER  BREMLF
2018F58148 AR 1,000,0007C
Shanghai Bailong Network the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 35% - 35%  Information Technology
Technology Co., Ltd. 21 January 2003 - Service, limited liability
company
LERRBENEARAR G K 1,000,007/ BRBMET - BRELAA
2003518218 -
Zhejiang Lingfeng Education the PRC RMB55,000,000/ 42% - 53%  Wholesale and retail, limited
Logistics Management Co., Ltd. 16 August 2002 RMB38,000,000 liability company
MIBEHE D ERERDR () G AEH 55,000,007/ HERTE ARAMAF
200268 A16H AR 38,000,0007C
Dalian Hengxin Property the PRC RMBA4,500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Management Co., Ltd. 19 October 2010 RMB4,500,000 limited liability company
RNEBENERBERDF* i AR#4,5000007T,/ NEERE  AREALF
20104104196 AR 4,500,00070
Xi'an Hongji Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Management Co., Ltd. 26 April 2010 RMB3,000,000 limited liability company
ALEENFERERDA* i AR 3,000,007,/ NEEE  AREALF
01054 R268 AE#3,000,0007C
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Sunshine Greentown Property the PRC RMB11,111,100/ 55% - 55%  Property management,
Management (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. 10 September 1995 RMB6,666,700 limited liability company
Bt R (F %) ARAA E AREN,11,1007L/ WEER  BREMLF
199549 4108 AR 6,606,7007C
Beijing Yifang Real Estate the PRC RMB2,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing, sales and
Brokerage Co., Ltd. 23 December 2016 - other services, limited
liability company
IRERRMESDERAR e AR 2,000,007,/ ERME  HEREMRS
0165127230 - BRAIAF
Anhui Shengan Greentown Property the PRC RMB?7,500,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management,
Management Co., Ltd. 25 November 1997 RMB7,500,000 limited liability company
RHRTEANERBBERAF hE ARH7,500,0007,/ NEER  BREARA
197511 A 258 ARH7,500,0007C
Montessori Academy Group Australia AUD22,457,690/ 56% - 56%  Nursery services, day-to-day
Holdings Pty Ltd. Acquired on AUD22,457,690 education services, limited
05 July 2019 liability company
RAFE 2457 60% 7/ RERB - ARHERE
YR 201947 A5H 22,457 690/ 7T BREARR
Lvman Technology Company Limited. the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 45% - 60%  Communication limited
Acquired on RMB50,000,000 liability company
01 January 2020
AR BB )G G AR 50,000,007,/ Bl BREAMLH
WEER 202061 A1H  AKE50,000,0007C
Jinan High-tech Greentown Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management,
Management Company Limited Acquired on RMB10,000,000 limited liability company
01 July 2020
ERRARINEERARAA Gl AE10,00,0007/ NEER  BREMLF

* The English translation of the Company name is for reference only. The

UEER 20207 A1 AR 10,000,0007C

official names of these companies are in Chinese.

*

RAIBWHEXBEZEHRSE - ZF QAN
EERTAR o

2020 EHRE SWRIEEEERAA
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36 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
()  The subsidiaries were acquired by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

(i) Pursuant to the agreements, the Group could control
majority voting rights of the board of directors, and could
control the financial and operating policies of the entities.
Accordingly, these entities’ financial information was
consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(i)  On 1 January 2020, Greentown Technology Industry
Services Company Limited (“Greentown Technology”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, acquired
additional 40% equity interests in Lvman Technology , a
then associate of the Group, at cash consideration of
RMB28,409,000. After acquisition, the equity interests of
Greentown Technology in Lvman Technology increased to
60% and Lvman Technology became a subsidiary of the
Group from 1 January 2020. The remeasurement of the
previously held 20% equity interests in Lvman Technology
at its acquisition-date fair value, as deemed disposal of an
associate, resulted in a gain of RMB10,063,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

37 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
(@) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
directors proposed a final dividend and a special dividend.
Further details are disclosed in note 31(b).
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(iii)
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N ALFENEARMBRE

M2020E1 A1H - AEEEEE
MEARGHEREERBERA
a([HEEER D) NEEREBARE
28,409,000 7T W B 7 BFAE A & B B
BN REB R B IN0% HREHE o
Ik 1% - BT R AR E BRI
RELL BB 2 60% » £R58 RHE R 2020
F1AVBRAELAEEWNEAR -
HUHE B 2 AT A A2 BHE 20%
BIENAFEETENE  GA
HEBZ AR REIE2020F 12
ANBLEFERAELRZARE
10,063,000 7T ©
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

BIAARETTIIR)

38 & £2020512A31H It F
EE BB RERNIER
HEARREBUTRELENTE

HETZZEUKERERAEH  &6eq
AeEB|MmE 220206128318 1k
FENMAEMETERZETBREK
MEZIBIEE] - EAI R BN RS
ERIE75  RBREH - LT ERTATEE
BAREEERE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RELT B AR B %A
HETHEENR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

1 January 2021

(Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HFRS 16)
FRBERNE — BEER(BAMBRERAR W - FAGREAE 395K - 20211 A1 H

BRWBRERNF 7 - BEMBRELEAE 45
BRUHEREERNE 1657 ZERT)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

ERUBMEERE IR ER] - HER 18t

Amendments to HKAS 16,
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

1 January 2022
20221 A1 R

1 January 2022

BB ERIE 16K ZIBR] - W% - BELRE  HEAZAAEHE 20221 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

ERGHERIEITRZAER] - BRIEAH — BITEA KA

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

202291 A1H

1 January 2022

EEB kA 4RI 2018 FF = 2020 F I HA 2 F E s 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
ERESTENE 1R ZEE]  BELEARBIIERD 202341 A1H
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BRMBHREERE 75 REBEORBEBHBHREENE 7R ZETRBREL 20231 HA1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between Available for optional

an Investor and its associate or joint venture

BEEMEREERE 10K LB B ST ERISE 285K 2 E5] -
REFEABENRSAERFAZHNEEREIEE

adoption/effective date
deferred indefinitely
AR ERMERAN, E R H B
R ERRITE
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 38 & £2020F12A318H It F

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED E S A {8 18 R E RAVIEET
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR FMEARZEAREELENEE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED) (&)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the AEBEGRZEEHNERERBENTE
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of BB R - BRFTSERARAE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of E%Z%“EJJTK—I LHIGRAMBRREL
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated BAFE

financial statements.
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